L

e Stz i iy

A TEXTBOOK OF

ENGLISH

LANGUAGE
GRADE 11

Publisher:
New College Publications, Quetta.

for

Balochistan Textbook Board, Quetta.




Appeal

Balochistan Textbook Board is a dedicated organziation
committed to undertake publication of quality textbooks in line
with the curriculum. These books are the fruits of efforts by
renowned educationists and experts. Despite our constant
endeavours, chances of inadvertent mistakes cannot be ruled
out, and there is always room for improvement. Therefore, we
look forward to valuable suggestions to enhance the quality of
the textbooks.

Yahya Khan Mengal

Chairman

Balochistan Textbook Board, Quetta.
Ph/Fax: 081-2470501
Email: btbb_quetta@yahoo.com




Al rights (copy right etc) are reserved
According to the National Curriculum 2006 under the National Textbook and Learning Materials Policy
2007. N.O.C. No. 356-60/CB Dated: 12/04/2017. Office of the Director Bureau of
Curriculum & Extension Centre, Balochistan, Quetta.

Compiled By: Editor:

Mr. Muhammad Munir Prof. Sultan Mehmood Niazi
M.A English, L.L.B M.A (English Literature),

Associate Professor, English Department, PGD - TEFL (Sydney University, Australia)
Tameer-i-Nau Public College Quetta

Mr. Abdul Majeed Khan

M.A English

Associate Professor, English Department,
Tameer-i-Nau Public College Quetta

Internal Review Committee

Mr. Nadir Shah Ms. Munawwarah Rehman
Assistant Professor Chairperson English Department
Govt. Degree College, Quetta. University of Balochistan, Quetta
Mr. Muhammad Hassan Sarparah Mr. Agha Umar Farooq
Subject Specialist (Coordinate Officer) Lecturer
Balochistan Textbook Board, Quetta Tameer-i-Nau Public College, Quetta
Provincial Review Committee

Mr. Daroo Khan Barech Dr. Gulab Khan
Deputy Director, (Curriculum) BOC, Assistant Director, (Curriculum) BOC,
Quetta. Quetta.
Mr. Abdul Ghafoor Ms. Mehwish Malghani
Associate Professor, Assistant Professor, English Department,
Government Degree College, Quetta. SBK University, Quetta.
Mr. Naeem Nasir Mr. Arifullah
Lecturer, English Language Centre, Senior Subject Specialist,
Balochistan University, Quetta. Bureau of Curriculum, Quetta.
Mr. Azmat Butt Mr. Muhammad Amin Kakar
Ex- Head of Department FIC, Lecturer, Government Science College,
PAF Base, Samungli, Quetta. Quetta.

Composed By: Muhammad Idrees

Layout Designing: Balach Computer Graphics Quetta

Prepared by: New College Publication, Quetta.

Supervision: Din Muhammad

o Printer: New College Publication, Quetta.




Unit
No.

Unit Title

The Selfish Giant

Crime and
Punishment

A Psalm of Life
(Poem)

A Library

Global warming

Sonnet (116)
(Poem)

Vanka

How to Write
and

How to Write
Badly

Reading and
thinking skills

Writing Skills

o Comprehension questions e Extended narrative

e Analyze story elements

* Recognize
personification

o Comprehension
questions

o Comprehension
questions

e Comprehension questions

e Use library skills

e Use dewey decimal
system

» Comprehension
questions, skim text

Revision1-5

e Poet's point of view and
theme of the poem

« Comprehension questions

» Comprehension
questions

» Comprehension
questions

incident, Essay on
general subject
sResearch project

o Writing on characters
» Research project

 Essay writing
» Research project

« Essay writing
» Research quantitatively

» Expository
composition
» Research project

¢ Summary
 Research project

» Business / Formal
letter writing

» Research project

e Write application for
job

» Prepare resume

¢ Research project




¢ Punctuation

» Group/class
Presentation

o Evaluate and
use
expressions to
inquire.

« Group
discussion

« Argue in
favour or
against

o Share findings

» Useful
expressions
to inquire

e Class
presentation

» Relative pronouns, ellipses,
use of tenses

¢ Collective, material, abstract,

countable and uncountable
nouns

¢ Simple, compound and
complex sentences

e Active and passive voice
¢ Nouns, noun phrases and
noun clauses

» Rules of change of number
of nouns

¢ Conditional sentences
« Relative pronouns

Vocabulary

e Translation

e Roots, Affixes, Literal
and figurative language;
anaphoric and cataphoric
reference

e Colloquialism

o Simile,

Metaphor and
imagery

» Dictionary skills;
translation

o Idiomatic
expressions

e Recognize
literary
techniques

» Synonyms,
antonyms

Page
No.

20

33

39

49

2 =

69

79




» Summary
» Research project

9  To askylark (Poem) e Comprehension
questions

o Comprehension
questions

10 Two of a Kind » Research project

« Comprehension » Essay
questions » Research project

11 The Quake Jumpers

o Comprehension
questions

e Argumentative /

12 Sympathy (Poem) A : a
ersuasive writing

s Research project

13 Pompeii, The « Comprehension « Letter writing
Vanished City questions » Research report
14 The Patriot (Poem) ¢ Comprehension e Summary
questions » Main theme
¢ Research project
15  Simba Simba « Comprehension » Narrate the story

» Comprehension
questions
o Elements of the play

16

The Rising
of The Moon

questions

« Research project

s Cloze Passage







THE SELFISH GIANT

Oscar Wiide (1856 — 1960}

On completion of the unit, stndents will be able to:
= answer the comprehension questions.

» recognize personification.

# illustrate punctuation.

» write an ¢ssay on a general subject.

o+ analyze the elements of the story.

= write an extended narrative incident.

« translate English passages into Urdu.
= create and deliver group / class presentations,

Pre-reading:,
» Have you ever read any short story?
» What is fiction and non-fiction?

Every afternoon, as they were coming from .;é'
school, the children used to go and play in the Giant's :
garden.

It was a large lovely garden, with soft green #;
grass. Here and there over the grass stood beautiful *
flowers like stars, and there were twelve peach-trees |
that in the spring-time broke out into delicate §
blossoms of pink and pearl, and in the Autumn bore
rich fruit. The birds sat on the trees and sang so
sweetly that the children used to stop their games in §
order to listen to them. “How happy we are here!” 8 S§Si .
they cried to each other. e SR

One day the Giant came back. Hehadbeento i i it
vigit his friend the Cornish ogre, and had stayed with him for seven years. After the
seven years were over he had said all that he had to say, for his conversation was
limited, and he determined to return to his own castle. When he arrived, he saw the
children playing in the garden.




“What are you doing there?” he cried in a very gruff voice, and the children
ran away.

“My own garden is my own garden,” said the Giant, “anyone can understand
that, and I will allow nobody to play in it but myself.” So he built a high wall all
round it, and put up a notice-board.

TRESPASSERS WILL BE PROSECUTED

He was a very selfish Giant.

The poor children had now nowhere to play. They tried to play on the road,
but the road was very dusty and full of hard stones, and they did not like it. They
used to wander round the high wall when their lessons were over, and talk about the
beautiful garden inside. “How happy we were there,” they said to each other.

Then the spring came, and all over the country there were little blossoms and
little birds. Only in the garden of the Selfish Giant it was still winter. The birds did
not care to sing in it as there were no children, and the trees forgot to blossom. Once
a beautiful flower put its head out from the grass, but when it saw the notice-board it
was so sorry for the children that it slipped back into the ground again, and went off
to sleep. The only people who were pleased were the Snow and the Frost. “Spring
has forgotten this garden,” they cried, “so we will live here all the year round.” The
Snow covered up the grass with her great white cloak, and the Frost painted all the
trees silver. Then they invited the North Wind to stay with them, and he came. He
was wrapped in furs, and he roared all day about the garden, and blew the chimney-
pots down. “This is a delightful spot,” he said, “we must ask the Hail on a visit.” So
the Hail came. Every day for three hours he rattled on the roof of the castle till he
broke most of the slates, and then he ran round and round the garden as fast as he
could go. He was dressed in grey, and his breath was like ice.

“I cannot understand why the Spring is so late in coming,” said the Selfish Giant, as
he sat at the window and looked out at his cold white garden; “I hope there will be a
change in the weather.”

But the Spring never came, nor the Summer. The Autumn gave golden fruit
to every garden, but to the Giant's garden she gave none. “He is too selfish,” she
said. So it was always Winter there, and the North Wind and the Hail, and the Frost,
and the Snow danced about through the trees.

One morning the Giant was lying awake in bed when he heard some lovely
music. It sounded so sweet to his ears that he thought it must be the King's musicians
passing by. It was really only a little linnet singing outside his window, but it was so
long since he had heard a bird sing in his garden that it seemed to him to be the most

9



beautiful music in the world. Then the Hail stopped dancing over his head, and the
North Wind ceased roaring, and a delicious perfume came to him through the open
casement. “I believe the Spring has come at last,” said the Giant; and he jumped out
of bed and looked out.

What did he see?

He saw a most wonderful sight. Through a little hole in the wall the children
had crept in, and they were sitting in the branches of the trees. In every tree that he
could see there was a little child. And the trees were so glad to have the children back
again that they had covered themselves with blossoms, and were waving their arms
gently above the children's heads. The birds were flying about and twittering with
delight, and the flowers were looking up through the green grass and laughing. It
was a lovely scene, only in one corner it was still winter. It was the farthest corner of
the garden, and in it was standing a little boy. He was so small that he could not reach
up to the branches of the tree, and he was wandering all round it, crying bitterly. The
poor tree was still covered with frost and snow, and the North Wind was blowing
and roaring above it. “Climb up! little boy,” said the Tree, and it bent its branches
down as low as it could; but the boy was too tiny.

And the Giant's heart melted as he looked out. “How selfishT have been!” he
said; “now I know why the Spring would not come here. I will put that poor little boy
on the top of the tree, and then I will knock down the wall, and my garden shall be
the children's playground forever and ever.” He was really very sorry for what he
had done.

So he crept downstairs and opened the front door quite softly, and went out
into the garden. But when the children saw him they were so frightened that they all
ran away, and the garden became winter again. Only the little boy did not run, for his
eyes were so full of tears that he did not see the Giant coming. And the Giant stole up
behind him and took him gently in his hand, and put him up into the tree. And the
tree broke at once into blossom, and the birds came and sang on it, and the little boy
stretched out his two arms and flung them round the Giant's neck, and kissed him.
And the other children, when they saw that the Giant was not wicked any longer,
came running back, and with them came the Spring. "It is your garden now, little
children,” said the Giant, and he took a great axe and knocked down the wall. And
when the people were going to market at twelve o'clock they found the Giant
playing with the children in the most beautiful garden they had ever seen.

All day long they played, and in the evening they came to the Giant to bid
him good-bye.

“But where is your little companion?” he said: “The boy I put into the tree.”

10



The Giant loved him the best because he had kissed him.
“We don't know,” answered the children; “He has gone away.”
“You must tell him to be sure and come here tomorrow,” said the Giant. But

the children said that they did not know where he lived, and had never seen him

before; and the Giant felt very sad.
Every afternoon, when school was over, the children came and played with

the Giant. But the little boy whom the Giant loved was never seen again. The Giant
was very kind to all the children, yet he longed for his first little friend, and often

spoke of him. “How I would like to see him!” he used to say.
Years went over, and the Giant grew very old and feeble. He could not play

about any more, so he sat in a huge armchair, and watched the children at their
games, and admired his garden. “I have many beautiful flowers,” he said; “but the

children are the most beautiful flowers of all.”
One Winter morning he looked out of his window as he was dressing. He did

not hate the Winter now, for he knew that it was merely the Spring asleep, and that

the flowers were resting.
Suddenly he rubbed his eyes in wonder, and looked and looked. It certainly

was a marvelous sight. In the farthest corner of the garden was a tree quite covered
with lovely white blossoms. Its branches were all golden, and silver fruithung down

from them, and underneath it stood the little boy he had loved.
Downstairs ran the Giant in great joy, and out into the garden. He hastened

across the grass, and came near to the child. And when he came quite close his face
grew red with anger, and he said, “Who hath dared to wound thee?”” For on the palms
of the child's hands were the prints of two nails, and the prints of two nails were on

the little feet.
“Who hath dared to wound thee?” cried the Giant; “tell me that I may take

my big sword and slay him.”
“Nay!” answered the child; “but these are the wounds of Love.”
“Who art thou?” said the Giant, and a strange awe fell on him, and he knelt

before the little child.
And the child smiled on the Giant, and said to him, “You let me play once in

your garden, today you shall come with me to my garden, which is Paradise.”
And when the children ran in that afternoon, they found the Giant lying

dead under the tree, all covered with white blossoms.

11



About the Author

Oscar Wilde was born in Ireland in 1856. He attended
Trinity College in Dublin and Magdalen College, at Oxford; while
still, a university student, Oscar Wilde became involved in the
aesthetic movement, and gained wide-spread reputation for his

brilliant wit.

After completing his studies, he moved to London and
became a popular writer. His irony, biting criticism,
unconventional ideas and eccentric behavior made him the talk of

the town. He died in Paris in 1900.

Reading and Thinking Skills:

1. Answer the following questions.

1) Where did the story take place?
1) Why could not children play on the road?
i11)  Why did the Giant chase the children away from his garden?
iv) Do you think that the Giant was really selfish? If yes, why?
V) What happened to the garden after the children left?
vi)  When did the spring return to the garden?
vii)) Why did the beautiful flower slip back into the ground?
viil) Why was one tree covered with frost and snow?
ix)  Why could not the small boy reach up to the branches of the tree?
X) How did the Giant learn to love children?
. Choose the correct answer.
1) Cornish ogre was
(a) anenemy ofthe Giant.
(b) adwarf.
(c) amaneating Giant.
(d) afriend ofthe Giant.
1) The writer of the story is
(@) Oscarwilde.
(b) H.G.Wells.
(¢c) JeromeK.Jerome.
(d) Katherine Mansfield.
iii))  After many years, the Giant was unable to play with the children,

because he
(a)  didn'tlike to play anymore.
(b)  wasfeeble and weak.

[12°



iv)

vii)

viii)

(c)  had gonetoseehis friend.

(d)  wasfedupplaying the same game time and again.

In the garden of the selfish Giant, it was

(a) still Winter.

(b) still Autum.

(c) still Spring.

(d) still Summer.

The Autumn gave golden fruit to every garden, but to the Giant's
garden

(a) shegavetoomuch.

(b)  shegavesome.

(c) shegavenone.

(d)  shegaveenough.

One morning, the Giant was lying awake inbed when he

(a) heardalovelysong.

(b)  heard some lovely music.

(c) heardaloudcry.

(d) heardapoem.

Through a little hole in the wall the children had crept in, and they
were

(a) standing outside the garden.

(b) singingsongs.

(c) sitting on the chairs.

(d) sitting in the branches of the trees.

‘When the children saw the Giant, they were so frightened that they all
ran away, and

(a) the garden became Winter again.

(b)  the garden became Summer again.

(c) thegardenbecame home again.

(d) thegarden became school again.

“It is your garden now, little children,” said the Giant, and he took a
greataxe

(a) andknocked down the door.

(b) andknocked down the window.

13



(¢}  andknocked down the mirror.
(d) andknocked down the wall.
X) When the children ran in that afternoon, they found
(a) thelittle monkey dead under the tree.
(b) theGiantlying asleep under the tree.
(¢}  theGiantlying dead under the tree.
(d) thelittleboy dead underthe tree.

3. Tick the sentences as True or False.

i) Giant was selfish only in the beginning. (T/F)
ii) He had been to visit his friend, the Cornish ogre, and had

stayed with him for eight years. (T/F)
iii)  The Giantloved thelittle girl the most. (T/F)
iv)  The Giant admitted that the children are the most beautiful

flowers of all. (T/F)
V) After coming from school, the children used to go and play

in the ground. (T/F)
vi)  “Whohath dared to wound thee?” cried the boy. (T/F)
vii)  Every afternoon, when school was over, the teachers came

and played with the Giant. (T/F)
viii)) Years went over, and the Giant grew very old and feeble. (T/F)
ix)  The Gianttook a great axe and knocked down the wall. (T/F)

X) Downstairs ran the Giant in great joy, and out into the garden. (T/F)

Critical Thinking:

»  What lesson do you get after reading the story?

Personification

'The practice of representing objects, qualities, etc. as humans, in art and
literature; an object, quality, etc. that is represented in this way: the personification
of autumn inkeat's poem.' (Oxford Advanced Learner's Dictionary)
Examples:

i) Death lays his icy hands on kings.

ii Love healed all his wounds.
U Identify the examples of personification used in the text.
° Find out and share at least five examples of personification from any other
source.

14



Grammar:

Punctuation Marks
The fullstop (.)
Examples:
i) Iamreading a story.
ii. Helivesinthe U.S.A.

The Question Mark (?)
Examples:
1) Where is your father?
ii) Do you study two hours daily?

The Quotation Marks/Inverted Commas (“ )
Examples:

i) He said, “letus go forawalk.”
ii)  Shesaid, “Who are you?”
Thecomma (,)
Examples:
Yes, you can gonow.
Oh, what a beautiful scenery!

His father was a big, strong, clever boxer.
She said, “My brotherisill.”

The Colon (3)
Examples:
1) These are our options: we go by train and leave before the end of the
show; or we take the car and see it all.
i1) The garden had been neglected for a long time: it was overgrown and

full of weeds.
The Semicolon (5 )
Examples:
1) She was determined to succeed whatever the cost; she would achieve
her aim.

ii) The sun was already low in the sky; it would soon be dark.

L5



The Apostrophe ( )
Examples:
i) My friend's brother is a doctor.
ii)  Thestudents' books are on the table.

The Exclamation Mark ( ! )
Examples:
1) That is marvelous!
i)  Never!'shecried.

The Hyphen (=)
Examples:
i) hard-hearted
ii) fork-lift-truck

‘unctuate the following passage.

winston is one of the most laid-back people i know he is tall and slim with black
hair and he always wears a t-shirt and black jeans his jeans have holes in them
and his baseball boots are scruffy too he usually sits at the back of the class and he
often seems to be asleep however when the exam results are given out he always
getsan "A" i don't think he is as lazy as he appears to be

Write an essay on:

'The Unforgettable Day of My Life'.

After he/she has written the essay, proofread and edit it, (in pairs) keeping
in mind the following points:

CHECK LIST

Faulty sentence structure.
Unclear pronoun reference.
Subject/ verb agreement.
Inconsistency in verbs / tenses.

16



Faulty parallelism.

Vague language.
Errors of punctuation and spelling.

Redundancy.

Collect the data from different sources (experts, library, interet etc.) and
write a research report on causes of child labour in Pakistan. Also suggest some
possible measures to get rid of this evil in the society.

Story Writing

Elements of story
(i) Plot (ii) Character (iii) Conflict (iv) Setting (v) Theme
Plot of a Story

A plot is the sequence of related events in a story. A typical plot concerns a
conflict, a struggle between opposing forces and follows a pattern as:

Climax
A
& //l \\\ ‘-%
4}’ / N %
& 7/ \
& /’ Ny
_________ I/ \\L_________
Exposition Resolution
Examples from the text:

Exposition:

Every afternoon, as they were coming from school, the children ...... “How
happy we are here!” they cried each other.
Rising Action:

One day the Giant came back. He had been ........ snow danced about
through the trees.
Climax:

One morning the Giant was lying awake ...... He was really very sorry for
what he had done.

17



Falling Action:

So he crept downstairs and opened the front door ....... The little boy he had
loved.
Resolution:

Downstairs ran the Giant in great joy ....... All covered with white blossoms.

Plot:

To sum up, plot is the progression of events that make up the action.
Throughout the course of a story's plot events unfold, develop to a climax, and are
then resolved during the resolution.

Characters:

The characters in a story are the individuals who participate in the action, the
characters in this story are the Giant, Children, Spring, etc.
Setting:

The setting of a story is the time and place of the action. Setting provides a
context for the action. The story is setin a garden.

Theme:
The theme of a short story is its central message or an insight of life.

How to Write a Story

1. You should have clear idea of the whole plot of the story before you start
writing it.

2. All sentences and paragraphs should have a logical sequence.

3. Where possible try to introduce dialogues and conversation.

4. The story should be written in simple and idiomatic language.

5 The conclusion of a story should be very impressive.

6. Give asuitable title to the story.

1. Write a story on:
(i) Howyouhelped someone in trouble?
(ii))  Arich manunexpectedly lostall his wealth.

2 Read any other story and analyze its elements by giving examples.

18



Vocabulary:

Translation

Translation from one language to another language is a skill. It should be kept in
mind that some words, phrases or proverbs have specific meaning in each language.
Therefore, it is not possible to translate them literally while translating from one
language to another language, we have to keep the sense of the sentences.

Examples:

The old woman was highly delighted to see her U";' C ) C LS sl 2 et
AT I Pyl e

son alive.

Are you feeling dizzy? ..4‘-_5,;!/’5 Al
May I ask your name, please? Ty /“(" l§t>
Don't beat about the bush, come to the point. ) /_-,LJ._,W,@_-/J /a,i/v,g

Translate the second paragraph of the story "The Selfish Giant' keeping in mind the
above points.

Oral Communication Skills:

Presentation skills
] Introduction:

Give your listeners general information on the topic and explain how your
presentation is structured.
L Actual presentation:

Sub-divide your presentation into several sub-topics. You may illustrate
your presentation by pictures or drawings.
. Conclusion:

Try to find a good conclusion.

Form groups and make a presentation on the story elements of “The Selfish Giant”
and present it in the class, followed by a question answer session.

19



CRIME AND PUNISHMENT

R. K. Narayan (1906 — 2001)

Students Learning Outcomes:

On completion of the unit, students will be able to:

» usecollective, countable and uncountable, material and abstract nouns.
¢ illustrate the use of tenses.

¢ identify and demonstrate the use of relative pronouns.

» illustrate the use of cataphoric and anaphoric references.

identify ellipses in a text,

use the knowledge of roots, suffixes and affixes to determine the meaning of
unfamiliar words.

understand and use colloquial and idiomatic expressions given in the text / glossary.
» evaluate and use expressions to inquire.

® 9

L

Do you have a vision of an ideal teacher?

"What is sixteen and three multiplied?” asked the teacher. The boy blinked.
The teacher persisted, and the boy promptly answered: “Twenty-four,” with, as it
seemed to the teacher, a wicked smile on his lips. The boy evidently was trying to
fool him and was being contrary on purpose. He had corrected this error repeatedly,
and now the boy persisted in saying twenty-four. How could this fellow be made to
obtain fifty in the class test and go up by double-promotion to the first form, as his
parents fondly hoped? At the mention of “twenty-four” the teacher felt his blood
rushing to his head. He controlled himself, and asked again: “How much?” as a last
chance. When the boy obstinately said the same, he felt as if his fingers were
releasing the trigger. He reached across the table, and delivered a wholesome slap
on the younger's cheek. The boy gazed at him for a moment and then burst into
tears. The teacher now regained his normal vision, felt appalled by his own action,
and begged frantically: “Don't cry, little fellow, you mustn't...”

“I'will tell them,” sobbed the boy.

“Oh, no, no, no,” appealed the teacher. He looked about cautiously.
Fortunately this nursery was at a little distance from the main building.

20



“I'll tell my mother,” said the boy.

According to the parents, the boy was a little angel, all dimples, smiles, and
sweetness — only wings lacking. He was their only child; they had abundant
affection and ample money. They built a nursery, bought him expensive toys, fitted
up miniature furniture sets, gave him a small pedal motor car to go about in all over
the garden. They filled up his cupboard with all kinds of sweets and biscuits, and left
itto his good sense to devour them moderately. They believed a great deal in leaving
things that way.

“You must never set up any sort of contrariness or repression in the child's
mind,” declared the parents. “You'll damage him for life. It no doubt requires a lot of
discipline on our part, but it is worth it,” they declared firmly. “We shall be bringing
up ahealthy citizen.”

“Yes, yes,” the teacher agreed outwards, feeling more and more convinced
every day that what the little fellow needed to make him a normal citizen was not
cajoling — but an Anna's worth of cane, for which he was prepared to advance the
outlay. For the teacher it was a life of utter travail — the only relieving feature in the
whole business was the thirty rupees they paid him on every first day. It took him in
all three hours every evening — of which the first half an hour he had to listen to the
child-psychology thesis of the parents. The father had written a thesis on infant
psychology for his M.A., and the lady had studied a great deal of it forher B.A. They
lectured to him every day on their theories, and he got more and more the feeling
that they wanted him to deal with the boy as if he were made of thin glass. He had to
pretend that he agreed with them, while his own private view was that he was in
charge ofalittle gorilla.

Now the teacher did not know how to quieten the boy, who kept sobbing. He
felt desperate. He told the young boy, “You must not cry for these trifling matters,
youmust be like a soldier...”

“A soldier will shoot with a gun ifhe is hit,” said the boy in reply. The teacher
treated it as a joke and laughed artificially. The boy caught the infection and
laughed, too. This eased the situation somewhat. “Go and wash your face,”
suggested the teacher — a fine blue porcelain closet was attached to the nursery. The
boy disobeyed and commanded: “Close the lessons today.” The teacher was aghast.
“No, no,” he cried.

“Then I will go and tell my mother,” threatened the boy. He pushed the chair
back and got up. The teacher rushed up to him and held him down. “My dear fellow,
I'm to be here for another hour.” The boy said: “All right, watch me put the engine on
its rails.”

21



“If your father comes in. ..” said the teacher.

“Tell him it is an engine lesson,” said the boy, and he smiled maliciously. He
went over to his cupboard, opened it, took out his train set, and started assembling
the track. He wound the engine and put it down, and it went round and round. “You
are the station master,” proclaimed the boy, “No, no,” cried the teacher. “You have
your tests the day after tomorrow.” The boy merely smiled in a superior way and
repeated, “Will you be a station master ornot?”

The teacher was annoyed. “I won't be a station master,” he said defiantly,
whereupon the young fellow said: “Oh, oh, is that what you say? He gently touched
his cheek, and murmured: it is paining me here awfully,  must see my mother.” He
made a movement towards the door. The teacher watched him with a dull
desperation. The boy's cheek was still red. So he said: “Don't, boy. You want me to
be a station master? What shall T have to do?”

The boy directed, When the train comes to your station, you must blow the
whistle and cry, “Engine Driver, stop the train. There are a lot of people today who
have bought tickets.”

The teacher hunched up in a corner and obeyed. He grew tired of the position
and the game in thirty minutes, and got up, much to the displeasure of his pupil.
Luckily for him the engine also suddenly refused to move. The boy handed it to him,
as he went back to his seat, and said: “Repair it, sir.” He turned it about in his hand
and said: “I can't. I know nothing about it.”

“It must go,” said the boy firmly. The teacher felt desperate. He was
absolutely non-mechanical. He could not turn the simplest screw if it was to save his
life. The boy stamped his foot impatiently and waited like a tyrant. The teacher put it
away definitely with: “I can't and I won't. The boy immediately switched on to
another demand. “Tell me astory...”

“Youhaven't done a sum. Itis eight-thirty.”

“I don't care for sums.” said the boy. “Tell me a story.”

“No...”

The boy called, “Appa! Appa!”

“Why are you shouting like that for your father?”

“Ihave something to tell him, something important”

The teacher was obliged to begin the story of “a Bison and a Tiger”, and then
he passed on to “Ali Baba and the Forty Thieves” and “Aladdin's Lamp”. The boy
listened, rapt, and ordered: “I want to hear the story of the bison again. Itis good...”
The teacher was short of breath. He had done six hours of teaching at school during
the day. “Tomorrow. I've lost all my breath...”

22



“Oh! All right. I'll go and tell...” exclaimed the boy; he got up and started
running all of a sudden towards the house, and the teacher started after him. The boy
was too fast for him and wheeled about madly, and made the teacher turn round the
garden thrice. The teacher looked beaten. The boy took pity on him and stopped
near the rose bush. But the moment he went up and tried to put his hand on him, the
boy darted through and ran off. It was a hopeless pursuit; the boy enjoyed it
immensely, laughing fiendishly. The teacher's face was flushed and he gasped
uncomfortably. He felt a darkness swelling up around him. He sank down on the
portico step.

At this moment Father and Mother emerged from the house, “What is the
matter?” The teacher struggled up to his feet awkwardly. He was still panting badly
and could not talk. He had already made up his mind that he would confess and take
the consequence, rather than stand the blackmail by this boy. It seemed less
forbidding to throw himself at the mercy of the elders. They looked inquiringly at
the boy and asked: “Why have you been running in the garden at this hour?” The boy
looked mischievously at the teacher. The teacher cleared his throat and said: “T will
explain....” He was trying to find the words for his sentence. The father asked:
“How's he preparing for his test in arithmetic...?” On hearing the word “test” the
boy's face fell: he unobtrusively slunk behind his parents and by look and gestures
appealed to the teacher not to betray him. He looked so pathetic and desperate that
the teacher replied: “Only please let him mug up the 16" table a little more... He is
all right. He will pull through. “The boy looked relieved. The teacher saw his
grateful face, felt confident that the boy would not give him up now, and said:
“Good night, sir; we finished our lessons early, and [ was just playing about with the
child... something to keep up his spirits, you know.”

About the Author

R.K Narayan was born in Madras (now Chennai),
South India. Many of his novels and stories are set in the
fictional territory of Malgudi (fictional south Indian town).
But, as Naryan says, he can detect Malgudi characters “even
in New York”.

23



Answer the following questions.

i)
ii)
1ii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)
viii)

ix)

X)

What instructions were given to the teacher by the boy's parents 7
Why did the boy give wrong answers?

Why did the teacher slap the boy?

What was the reaction of the boy?

What were the strategies used by the boy to get his own way?

What were the stories told by the teacher?

How did the boy blackmail the teacher?

When the parents of the boy emerged from the house, what was the
reaction of the teacher and the boy?

The father asked the teacher how the boy was preparing for his
Arithmetic test, what was the answer of the teacher?

Why did the teacher favour the boy at the end?

Choose the correct answer.

i)

ii)

ii)

iv)

The boy didn't give a correct answer, because he
(a) didn'tknow the table of sixteen.

(b)  wanted toannoy the teacher.

(¢) didn'tlike arithmetic.

(d) wasabsentminded.

The boy in the story was

(a) anorphan.

(b)  theonlychild ofhis parents.

(c) well-behaved student.

(d) aduncefellow.

The parents of the boy were

(a) illiterate.

(b) poor.

(c) greedy.

(d) rich and provided their son with all kinds of expensive toys
and sweets.

According to the parents, the boy was a little angel, all dimples,
smiles, and sweetness only

(a) wingslacking.

(b)  onewinglacking.

24



(c)  wisheslacking.

(d) powerlacking.

V) “You must never set up any sort of contrariness or repression in the
child's mind,” declared the
(a) mother.

(b) father
(c)  parents.
(d) teacher.

vi)  Nowtheteacher did not know how to quieten the boy, who kept
(a) laughing.

(b)  sobbing.
(c) shouting.
(d) reading.

vii) The boy directed, when the train comes to your station, you must
blow the whistle and cry, ‘Engine Driver,
(a) speedupthetrain.’

(b) slowupthetrain.’
(¢) leavethetrain.’
(d) stopthetrain.’

viii) Onhearing the word “test” the boy's face fell: he unobtrusively slunk
behind his parents and by look and gestures appealed to the
(a) mothernottobetray him.

(b) fathernottobetray him.
(c) teachernottobetray him.
(d)  teachertobetray him.

ix) He looked so pathetic and desperate that the teacher replied ‘Only
please let him mug up the
(@ 16™tablealittle more.’

(b)  12"tablealittle more.’
(¢) 13"tablealittle more.’
(d 17"tablealittle more.’

X) The teacher saw his grateful face, felt confident that the boy would
not give him up now, and said: “Good night, sir; we finished our
lessons early, and I was just
(a) playing about with the child.’

(b) eating with the child.’
(c)  working with the child.’
(d) advisingthechild.’

125

|



Tick the sentences as True or False.

1) The teacher loved to teach the little boy. (T/F)

i) The father of the boy had written a thesis on child
psychology for his M.A (T/F)

iii))  The teacher told the parents that the boy was not doing
mathematics sums properly. (T/F)

iv)  The teacher thought that the little boy was an angel. (T /F)
V) The boy asked the teacher to sing a song instead of

teaching him. (T/F)
vi)  He went over to his cupboard, opened it, took out his
bus set, and started assembling the track. (T/F)

vii) The teacher was absolutely non-mechanical.
viii) He had done six hours of teaching at school during

the day. (T/F)
ix)  On hearing the word “test” the boy became very happy.(T / F)
X) The teacher did not favour the boy at the end. (T/F)

o The teacher was being paid 30 rupees; do you think the teacher's financial
position was weak? Give reasons.

Write down the characters of the following:
(a) Boy (b) Teacher (c) Parents

Write a research report highlighting the causes and solution of the
absenteeism of the college students.

Grammar:

Use the following nouns in your sentences and state whether these are
collective, material, abstract, countable, or uncountable nouns.

26



Kind of Noun

Sentence

i)  kindness

ii) congregation
1ii) beauty

iv) galaxy of stars
v) milk

vi) astory

vii) furniture

viii) shoal of fish
ix) gold

X)

confidence

The tense denotes the time of an action or happening or state. The table
shows a summary of tenses.

Present Past Future
Indefinite I take a shower He bought some He will go to Sibi
every day. books yesterday. tomorrow.
Continuous or He is sleeping now. | He was sleeping at | He will be playing
Progressive 6:00p.m. in the evening.
Perfect I have finished my |He had gone away |He will have
work. before I came. finished his work
before you come.
Perfect continuous | I have been working | He had been He will have been
for two hours. reading for two doing this work for
hours when [ went | two days tomorrow.
there.

Read the first paragraph of the unit and identify different tenses used in the

text,

271



Relative Pronouns

A relative pronoun is one which introduces a subordinate clause. It relates
the subordinate clause to the noun to which it refers in the main clause.
Example

The game which I like is football.

Relative pronoun

Fillin the blanks with relative pronouns (who, whose, which or that)

1) Children parents are dead are called orphans.

ii) Ilike the shirt you gave me for my birthday.

iii) It washisbrother taught him English.

iv)  Hereisthebook you lentme.

V) This is the student won the spelling contest. J
Antecedents

The noun to which a 'Relative pronoun' refers is called its antecedent.

Antecedents are nouns {or words) that t;)klt:the place of pronouns.

i) Ziarat is popular because it has a cold climate.

ii) Imetthe President who has just come from Iran.
(Ziarat and President are Antecedents)

Identify the relative pronouns and antecedents in the following sentences.
i) Here is a student who tries hard.

ii) They are the ones who have been chosen.

iii)  Thisis the book which I like the most.

(iv)  One of the actors, who is my favourite, has fallenill.

Anaphoric reference

Anaphoric reference means that a word in a text refers back to other ideas in
the text forits meaning,
Example:

I went out with Sa/man on Sunday. 'He' looked cheerful.

'He' clearly refers to Salman, there is no need to repeat his name.

28



Cataphoric reference

Cataphoric reference means a word in a text refers to another later in the text
that youneed to look forward to understand it.
Examples:

(i)  When ke arrived, Jibran noticed that the door was open.

(i) When 'he’was running upstairs, Asim slipped and fell down.

Identify the cataphoric and anaphoric references in the following sentences.

1) As they were coming from school, the children used to go and play in the
Giant's garden.

ii) The teacher hunched up in a corner and obeyed. He grew tired of the
position.

iii)  Muneeb was the first who entered the classroom. He is my best friend.

iv)  Shewas very frightened, when Asma saw a snake.

V) Alittle girl, Nazia, was playing in the garden.

vi)  Themonkey took the banana and ate it.

Re- read the unit, identify five anaphoric and cataphoric references and
write in the relevant column,

Anaphoric references Cataphoric references

Three dots in a row signify that words or figures are missing, If there are four
dots in a row, the fourth dot signifies a fuii stop.

29



The author has used ellipses in the story, try to find them out.

Roots, Sufixes, Preﬁx

Root: The original word to which you add suffix or prefix is called a root or base.
Many roots in English are derived from Latin, Greek or other languages.

Example:
Latin
anima breathe animal
Capio seize, hold, tale capture, reception
venio come, go invent, convention
Creatum made, produce create

Greek

Hydro Water hydrant
Autos self automobile
phone sound, voice telephone
graphe write, draw telegraph, graph

Affixation is a process or word formation by adding a prefix or suffix to a root
word with or without changing the word class.

kL



1 Add the given prefix to the roots to make new words.

Root Meaning English word
i) mis— wrongly, badly
il)  pre— before
iii) circum— around
iv)  bio- life
V)  post— after
vi)  homo— same
vii)  tele— a long distance
viii) vice— in place of
IX) bi— two
X)  quad- four

2. Add the given suffixes to the roots to make new words.

Suffixes Words
i)y —ful
i) —less
i) —ship
iv) —ness
v) —ment

Literal and Figurative Language

Literal language uses words in their ordinary senses. It is opposite of
figurative language.

Figurative language is writing or speech not meant to be interpreted literally.
It is often used to express ideas vividly and forcefully.

Most phrases and idioms cannot be translated literally from one language to
another.
Examples:
1) He hit me with a stick. (Literal meaning)
1) An idea hit my mind. (figurative meaning)

31



Colloquialism
Colloquialism is an informal word or expression which is more suitable for
use in speech than in writing.
Examples
I When his chum was in hospital, Ahmed visited him every day.
(meaning “a close friend”).

ii) Come offit, Rashid; please be serious.
(meaning “Stop talking like that™)

Activities:
i 8 Find out phrasal verbs and idiomatic expressions in the text and use them in
your own sentences.

2. Translate the third paragraph of this unit into Urdu.
Pronunciation

Pronounce the following words with the help of pronunciation key in the
dictionary.
| theory | [ psalm | [continuously] | miniature | [ devour |

| psychology | | gorilla | | desperate | | porcelain | | fiendish |

Expressions to Inquire

° What ....7
. Where ....7
° Why ....7
° When.....?
° How....?

Construct dialogue by using the 'expressions to inquire' and perform in pairs.

32



A PSALM OF LIFE

Henry Wadsworth Longfeliow (1807-1882)

Students Learning Outcomes:

On completion of the unit, students will be able to:

answer the comprehension questions.

apply critical thinking to explore the poem and poet's point of view.
write summary of the poem.

write a general paragraph.

collect information about the given research project.

analyze the figure of speech (simile, metaphor, imagery)

use convention and dynamics of group discussion.

L
L 4
L
L
®
L J
L J

How is word "Psalm' pronounced?
Name some of the great religious personalities in history and discuss their impact
on their fellow citizens.

[ ]

L ]

TELL me not, in mournful numbers,
Life is but an empty dream! —

For the soul is dead that slumbers,
And things are not what they seem.

Life is real ! Life is earnest!
And the grave is not its goal ;
Dust thou art, to dust returnest,
‘Was not spoken of the soul.

Not enjoyment, and not sorrow,
Is our destined end or way ;
But to act, that each to-morrow

Find us farther than to-day.

Art is long, and Time is flecting,
And our hearts, though stout and brave,

Still, like muffled drums, are beating
Funeral marches to the grave.

B3



In the world's broad field of battle,
In the bivouac of Life,

Be not like dumb, driven cattle !
Be a hero in the strife !

Trust no Future, howe'er pleasant !
Let the dead Past bury its dead !
Act,— act in the living Present !
Heart within, and God o'erhead !

Lives of great men all remind us
We can make our lives sublime,
And, departing, leave behind us
Footprints on the sands of time ;

Footprints, that perhaps another,
Sailing o'er life's solemn main,

A forlorn and shipwrecked brother,
Seeing, shall take heart again.

Let us, then, be up and doing,
With a heart for any fate ;
Still achieving, still pursuing,
Learn to labor and to wait.

About the Author

Henry Wadsworth Longfellow was a U.S poet. He was
the author of Evangeline, the song of Hiawatha. A Psalm of
Life is among his didactic and moralistic poems.

34



Reading and Thinking Skills:

Answer the following questions.

i)
i)

iif)
iv)
v)

vi)

What is the theme of the poem?

“Be not like dumb, driven cattle!

Beaherointhestrife!”

What do these lines suggest?

Why should we read the biographies of great personalities?
Which personality has inspired you and how?

Whatis importance of patience in achieving goals?

Why are great men remembered even after their death?

Choose the correct answer.

i)

i)

iii)

iv)

'"Psalm' means

(a) asacred songorpoem.
(b)  biographyofaperson.
(c) amusical song.

(d) aballad.

The poet says 'life' is

(a) adream.

(b)  realand earnest.

(c) enjoyment.

(d) full oftears.

The poem has been written by
(a) William Blake.

(b) S.T. Coleridge.

(c) H.W.Longfellow.

(d) EmilyBronte.

We should live in
(a) present.
(b) future.
(¢) past.

(d) dreams.
Patience brings
(a) bad fruit.
(b) tasty fiuit.

35



(c)  rotten fruit.
(d) sweetfruit.
vi)  Thepoetsays, 'life is indeed real and death is:
(a)  mnotthe goal oflife.”
(b) thegoal oflife.”
(c) endoftime.”
(d) thegoal of man.”
vii) Greatpeople leave their footprints on
(a) thesandsofdesert.
(b) thesands ofplains.
(c) thesandsoftime.
(d) thesandsofrivers.
viii) Wemay take lesson from
(a) thedeath.
(b)  thehardships.
(c) thehardwork.
(d) theachievements of great men.
ix)  Thepoem provides advice and counsel
(a) toweakmen.
(b) toyoungmen.
(c) tooldmen.
(d) tochildren.
X) We should not lose heartin
(a) thetimeof happiness.
(b) thetimeofvictory.
(c) thetimeofcrises.
(d) thetime of speaking.

Mark the sentences as True or False.

1) Artislong and time is fleeting. (T/F)
i1) We should have trust in future. (T/F)
ili)  Learnto labour and to wait. (T/F)
iv)  Weshould act in the present. (T/F)
V) A person may die but good deeds remain forever. (T/F)
vi)  Patience has noimportance in life. (T/F)

36



vii) We should be optimists. (T/F)
viii) Deathisnot the end oflife. (T/F)
ix)  Lifeisthe name ofupsand downs. (T/F)
X) Life is the name of setting examples for others. (T / F)

. Do you agreedisagree with the poet's point of view?
° How can one live forever in the hearts of people?

1) Paraphrase all the stanzas of the poem.

i1) Write down a summary of the poem.

i) Write about 200-250 words on the life of our “Hazrat
Muhammad Hﬂ?”, telling how he brought the greatest revolution in the

Go through the biographies of some famous personalities and select the one
you like the most and write down the reasons for your liking. (About 300
words)

world.

Vocabulary:

Simile: It consists of comparing two things of different kinds resembling at
least in one point. In 'simile’ 'like' or 'as' is used to make comparison.
e.g. Asbraveasalion.

Metaphor: An expression which describes a person or object in a literary way by
referring to something that is considered to have similar
characteristics to the person or object you are trying to describe.
Forexample: Asimisthetiger of ourclass.

Imagery:  The use of words or pictures in books, films, painting etc to describe
ideas or situations.

For example: 11ove the scent of peaches.

37



Here is a list of few similes, metaphor and imageries. Can you identify them?
Write “S” for smile, “M” for metaphor and “I” for imagery. The first has
been solved for you.

i) I wandered lonely as a cloud. q
ii) As obstinate as a mule. |
iiiy | Hope is the poor man's bread.

iv) The Camel is the ship of desert.

V) He is the apple of his father’s eyes.

vi) He ate sweet and juicy mangoes.

vii) | Death lays his icy hands on kings.

viii) | The rustling of leaves is a kind of music for me.

ix) | Revenge is a kind of wild justice.

X) Infancy is the dawn of life.

xi) | How far that little candle throws its beam! So, shines a
good deed in a naughty world.

xii) || Isaw huge trees in the thick and dark forest.

Oral Communication SI(ills:'_

Discuss in groups the theme of the poem and its appeal to an ordinary man.

Guidelines for group-discussion

o Present and explain your point of view clearly.

® Support or modify your opinions with reasons.

Agree and disagree politely.

® Summarize the main points of discussion for the benefit of the whole group.

38




A LIBRARY

By: Prof. Muhammad Munir

Students Learning Outcomes:

On completion of the unit, students will be able to:
answer the comprehension questions.

use library skills.

use a Dewey Decimal System.

use the dictionary.

translate a given passage into Urdu.

research quantitatively.

analyze and construct simple, compound and complex sentences.
argue in favour or against a point.

* Have you ever borrowed a book from a library?
o How is a library useful to you?

Alibrary plays a vital role in the
cognitive growth of students. Sir
Richard Steel says, “Reading is to the
mind what exercise is to the body.” A
library contains collection of books. It
offers us fiction (novels, short stories,
plays etc.) as well as non-fiction wgdss
(biographies, religion, health, etc.)
books for our information.

Kinds of Libraries
1. Public library
2 Special library / information centre

3 Academic library

1. Public Library
Public library is meant for everyone. Membership can be sought by anyone.
This kind of library includes all kinds of books.

39



2. Special Library/Information Centre

It is also known as information centre. Special libraries include corporate
libraries, law libraries, medical libraries, museum libraries, news libraries and non-
profit libraries.

%} Academic Library

An academic library performs all those functions for which academic
institutions are meant.

Most of the libraries are well organized. You can use them effectively by
learning how they are organized.

The first thing you observe, as you enter a library, is the circulation desk.
This is the counter where you sign for books and take them out. You can also get any
information you want.

The card catalogue is also near the entrance. These cards tell you which
books are in the library and where to find the book you need.

Main Section of a Library

1. Fiction: In this section novels, dramas and story collections are available. These

books are arranged in alphabetical order by the last name of the author or by the title.

Z. Biographies and Auto-biographies: In this section books are found about
lives of the great people.

3. Reference section: This section contains encyclopedias, dictionaries,
almanac etc. No reference books or periodicals are issued.

Dewey Decimal System

This system has a code number. It tells you what the book is about . This
system is called decimal system because after the main number, there is a decimal
point followed by another number.

Below are the code used by most of the libraries in the world.

00-99 General Reference, Computer Science
100-199 Philosophy, Psychology

200-299 Religion

300-399 Social Sciences

400-499 Languages

500-599 Natural Sciences and Mathematics
600-699 Applied Sciences/ Technology
700-799 Arts, Recreation, Sports

800-—899 Literature

900-999 History, Geography, Travel

40



Rules and Regulations

b

B

Every library has its own rules. Some common rules are as follows.

Books are strictly non-transferable.

Books are issued for a specific period.

Aborrower who disfigures or damages a book is liable to penalty.

A fine per day can be imposed for retention of a book beyond the specific
time.

No reference books or periodicals will be issued.

Using the card Catalogue

The card catalogue will help you to locate books in a library.

L Call Number
790 Henry, Lisa
Author Card —»{ H426
790 A History of Olympic Track Events «———— Book Title
H426
790 TRACK EVENTS « Subject
H426
Henry, Lisa. < Author
Title Card > A History of Olympic Track Events.
Chicago, Sports Press, 1978 «———— Publication Year
: " Publisher
238 p., illus. City of Publication
4 Book is illustrated
Number of pages

Subject Card ————»

Reading and Thinking Skills:

Answer the following questions.

1) ‘What are the kinds of libraries?

ii) What is Dewey Decimal system?

iii)  Whatare the general rules and regulations of alibrary?
iv)  Whatis the main section of library?

V) Whatis apublic library?

vi)  Whyarereference books and periodicals not issued?
vii) Why are books issued for a specific period of time?

41



viiil) Whatis aspecial library?

ix)

x)

In which section are the encyclopedias and dictionaries kept in a library?
What is the importance of card catalogue?

Choose the correct option.

i)

i)

iii)

1v)

Alibrary plays a vital role in

(a) theprogress of economy.

(b) thecognition.

(c) thecognitive growth of students.
(d) thecognitive growth of plants.
Public library includes

(a) allkindsofbooks.

(b)  onlydictionaries.

(c) onlyencyclopedias.

(d) onlynewspapers.

Special library is also known as

(a) collegelibray.

(b) information centre.

(¢)  schoollibrary.

(d)  university library.

Circulation desk is the counter where you sign for books and
(a) keepitontheshelf,

(b) buyit.

(¢) keepthemback.

(d) takethemout.

Biographies and Auto-biographies is the section where books are
found

(a) aboutscience and technology.
(b)  aboutlives ofthe great people
(c) aboutplants.

(d) aboutanimals.

42



vi)  Reference section contains
(a) encyclopedias, dictionaries, almanac etc
(b)  dictionaries and newspapers.
(c) encyclopedias.
(d) fictionbooks.
vii)) Booksare strictly
(a) transferable.
(b) non-transferable.
(c) onsale.
(d) notforsale.
viil)) Aborrower who disfigures or damages abook is
(a) liabletowork onthe shop.
(b) liabletopayloan.
(c) liabletopenalty.
(d) freetogo.
ix)  The card catalogue will help you to
(a) getIDcard.
(b) getmembership card.
(¢) locatenewspapers.
(d)  locatebooksinalibrary.
x)  Deweydecimal systemhasa
(a) codenumber.
(b) pagenumber.
(¢) officenumber.
(d)  booknumber.

Critical Thinking:

»  Why is a library divided into different sections?

43



How to use a dictionary

A dictionary is a collection of facial description about words. The words

are arranged in alphabetical order.

Pronounciation
Part of speech

Entry word ~ ’

Meaning
Etymology

l » Guide words < l

extremist 308

extremist n. (also attrib.) person with
extreme views. O extremism n.

extremity /ik'stremiti/ n. (pl -ies) 1
extreme point; very end. 2 (in pl) the
hands and feet. 3 condition of extreme
adversity. [Latin: related to EXTREME]

extricate /'ekstrikeit/ v. (-ting) (often
foll. by from) free or disentangle from
a difficulty etc. o extricable adj. ex-
trication /-‘keif(e)n/ n. [Latin tricae
perplexities]

extrinsic /ek'strisik/ adj. 1 not inher-
ent or intrinsic. 2 (often foll. by
to) extraneous; not belonging. 0 ex-
trinsically adv. [Latin extrinsecus
outwardly]

extrovert /[‘ekstra,va:t/ —n. 1 outgoing
person. 2 person mainly concerned with
external things. —adj. typical of or with
the nature of an extrovert. o extrover-
sion /-'va:f(a)n/ n. extroverted adj.
[Latin verto turn]

extrude /ik'stru:d/ v. (-ding) 1 (foll. by
Jfrom) thrust or force out. 2 shape metal,
plastics, etc. by forcing them through a
die. 0 extrusion n. extrusive adj.
[Latin extrudo -trus- thrust out]
exuberant /1g'zju:berant/ adj. 1 lively,
high-spirited. 2 (of a plant etc.) prolific. 3
(of feelings etc.) abounding. 0 exuber-
ance n. exuberantly adv. [Latin uber
fertile]

exude /1g'zju:d/ v. (-ding) 1 ooze out. 2

ell). 3 display (an emotion

. 0 exudation /-'de1f(a)n/ n.

sweat

exult /1g'zalt/ v. be joyful. 0 exultation
[-'terf(a)n/ n. exultant adj. tly
ady. [Latin ex(s)ulto from salip salt-

leap]
-2y var nsz

eye /ai/ 1 organ of sight. 2 eye
by the colour of the iris
(has blue eyes). 3 region round the eye
(eyes swollen from weeping). 4 (in sing.
or pl.) sight. 5 particular visual ability
(a straight eye). 6 thing like an eye, esp.:
a a spot on a peacock’s tail. b a leaf bud
of a potato. 7 calm region at the centre of
a hurricane etc. 8 hole of a needle. —v.
(eyes, eyed, eyeing or eying) (often
foll. by up) watch or observe closely,
esp. admiringly or with suspicion. o all
eyes watching intently. an eye for an
eye retaliation in kind. have an eye for
be discerning about. have one’s eye on
wish or plan to procure. have eyes for
be interested in; wish to acquire. keep
an eye on 1 watch. 2 look after. keep an
eye open (or out) (often foll. by for)
watch carefully. keep one’s eyes open
(or peeled or skinned) watch out; be on
the alert. make eyes (or sheep’s eyes)

44

eyrie

(foll. by at) look amorously or flirta-
tiously at. one in the eye (foll. by for)
disappointment or setback. see eye to
eye (often foll. by with) agree. set eyes
on see. up to the (or one’s) eyes in
deeply engaged or involved in. with
one’s eyes shut (or closed) with little
effort. with an eye to with a view to.
[O1d English]

eyeball —n. ball of the eye within the
lids and socket. —v. US slang look or
stare (at).

eyeball to eyeball adv. collog. con-
fronting closely.

eyebath n. small vessel for applying
lotion etc. to the eye.

eyebright n. plant used as a remedy for
weak eyes.

eyebrow n. line of hair on the ridge
above the eye-socket. O raise one’s
eyebrows show surprise, disbelief, or
disapproval.

eye-catching adj. collog. striking.

eyeful n. (pl. -s) collog. 1 (esp. in phr. get
an eyeful (of)) good look; as much as
the eye can take in. 2 visually striking
person or thing. 3 thing thrown or
blown into the eye.

eyeglass n. lens to assist defective
sight.

eyehole n. hole to look through.

eyelash n. each of the hairs growing on
the edges of the eyelids.

eyelet /'a1lit/ . 1 small hole for string or
rope etc. to pass through. 2 metal ring
strengthening this. [French oillet from
Latin oculus]

eyelid n. either of the folds of skin
closing to cover the eye.

eye-liner n. cosmetic applied as a line
round the eye.

eye-opener n. collog. enlightening ex-
perience; unexpected revelation.

eyepiece n. lens or lenses to which the
eye is applied at the end of an optical
instrument.

eye-shade n. device to protect the eyes,
esp. from strong light.

eye-shadow n. coloured cosmetic ap-
plied to the eyelids.

eyesight n. faculty or power of seeing.

eyesore n. ugly thing.

eye strain n. fatigue of the eye muscles.

eye-tooth n. canine tooth in the upper
jaw just under the eye.

eyewash n. 1 lotion for the eyes. 2 slang
nonsense; insincere talk.

eyewitness n. person who saw a thing
happen and can tell of it.

eyrie /'1er1/ n. 1 nest of a bird of prey,
esp. an eagle, built high up. 2 house etc.
perched high up. [French aire lair, from
Latin agrum piece of ground]



Pronunciation Key
Consonants Vowels and diphthongs
P pen /pen/ S SO /sau/ ir see /si:/ A cup /Kap/
b bad /baed/ Z Z00 /zuz/ i happy /'haepi/ 3: bird /bz:d/
t tea /ti/ [ shoe /fu/ 1 sit /sit/ @ about /a'bauvt/
d did /did/ 3 vision /'vizn/ e ten /ten/ el say /ser/
k cat /keet/ h hat /haet/ & cat /kaet/ au go /gav/
g got /got/ m man /man/ a: father /'fa:de(r)/ a1 five /farv/
tf chain /tfem/ n no /mav/ p got /got/ av now /nauv/
d3z jam /dzem/ n sing /sm/ J! saw /sou/ o1 boy /bor/
f fall /forl/ 1 leg /leg/ v put /pot/ 19 near /nra(r)/
vV van /veen/ r red /red/ u actual /'aktfual/ ea hair /hea(r)/
6 thin /6m/ j yes /jes/ u: too /tuz/ va pure /pjva(r)/
0 this /dis/ w wet /wet/

Find out the meaning and pronunciation of the following words from the
dictionary:

1) eradicate i) detest

1ii)  ambition 1v)  controversy
V) application vi)  tragedy

vil) adequate viii)) nevertheless
ix)  inevitable X) alleviate

Following points will help you to use a dictionary.

° Locate guide words (a word printed at the top of the page)

Locate entry word (a head word)

Choose appropriate word definition.

Identify pronunciation with the pronunciation key.

Identify syllable (unit of pronunciation forming the whole or part of a word)
division and stress pattern.

Identify parts of speech.

Identify correct spelling.

Locate phrases and idioms.

Identify word etymology. (The study of the origin of words)

Multiple Word Meaning: Some words have more than one meaning. When
you look up a word in the dictionary, you will probably have to decide which
meaning best fits in the sentences you are reading. In other words you must consider
the contextual meaning.

145



Vocabulary:

Translate into Urdu the last paragraph of the unit.

Write an essay on 'My College Library'. (200-250 words)

| _Actiity: |

Collect the data on the following question from twenty classmates. Analyze the
data on the basis of average result.

How often do you use the library?

Frequently Sometimes Never

46



Grammar:

if)

iii)

Type of Sentences
Simple sentences

Compound sentences
Complex sentences

Simple sentences
Example:

(a) She ran through the streets.

2 2

Subject  predicate

(b) Swimming is my favourite hobby.
s N

Subject predicate

Compound sentences

Examples:

(a)  The student studies every night, but his grades do not show his hard
work.

(b)  Aslam plays football and also gives time to his studies.

Complex sentences

Example:
(a)  Although she studied all weekend, she still failed the test.

Dependent clause Independent clause

(b) Heachieved good marks in the test because he worked very hard.

Independent clause Dependent clause

47



Identify simple, compound and complex sentences and write in your

notebooks.

1) The young seagull was alone on his ledge.

ii) His two brothers and his sister had already flown away the day before.

iii)  Hehad been afraid to fly with them.

iv)  Butfor thelife of him, he could not move.

V) The great expanse of sea stretched down beneath, and it was such a long way
down, miles down.

vi)  Thetrain was late.

vii)) He gotup late but reached his office on time.

viii) Kabeer and Feroze left by bus before I arrived, so 1 did not see them at the bus
station.

ix)  While he waited at the station, Umair realized that the train was late.

X) I take exercise daily.

Re-read the unit and discuss different types of sentences.

Oral Communication Skills:

K Group-~discussion )

Divide the class into two groups and arrange a group- discussion on 'the

books are now obsolete and all information can be found on the internet. Ask
students to give reasons in favour or against the topic.

48



GLOBAL WARMING

Glenn Murphy

Students Learning Outcomes:

On completion of the unit, students will be able to:
« answer the comprehension questions.

skim text to have general idea ofthe text.

Infer theme/main idea.

demonstrate the use of nouns, noun phrases and clauses.

use the active and passive voice.

understand and use the idiomatic and colloquial expressions.
write an expository composition.

share findings in class presentation.

e M In E

What is global warming?
What is climate change?

Global Warming

Our earth was formed about 4.6 billion years ago and its temperature has
changed through history. It has been warmer in the past than it is today, and
sometimes much colder. But it is the speed at which the earth is now heating up that
is alarming. For the first time in history, humans, not nature, are the main cause of
Earth's changing climate or, as it is commonly known as global warming.

Fossil Fuels

Millions of years ago, when plants and animals died, some of them were buried,
crushed, and fossilized under the ground. Oil, coal, and natural gas are formed from
these fossilized remains _ this is why they are called fossil fuels. When we burn the
fossil fuels we release large amounts of carbon into the atmosphere as part of the gas
carbon dioxide (Co2). It is also released naturally from sources such as volcanoes,
but humans and the machines we use are producing more Co2 than ever before.

Greenhouse Gases
Greenhouse gases absorb heat from the Sun and help warm the planet, which
makes it possible for plants and animals to live. Most greenhouse gases are a natural

49




part of life. For example, humans breathe out small amounts of carbon dioxide into
the air. But human activities have caused some gases to build up too much. Many
scientists believe that this increase in greenhouse gases is causing global warming.

The Greenhouse Effect

The greenhouse effect is a natural process discovered in 1896. It has kept our
planet warm enough to support botanical life for billions of years. But as the amount
of greenhouse gases increases, more heat is trapped in the atmosphere. The natural
process has sped up and earth is getting hotter.

Large Population

The increasing number of people on earth is one of the greatest factors in
global warming. The world's population grew nearly four times larger during the
past hundred years. More people mean that more fossil fuels are burned. This has
led to a massive rise in the levels of greenhouse gases in earth's atmosphere.
CityLife

It is not just that there are more people than ever before, it is also how we
choose to live that puts a strain on our planet. Life in large cities is comfortable and
convenient, but the energy this lifestyle requires has a high environmental cost.

Melting Ice

Melting ice is perhaps the most obvious effect of global warming. The vast
ice sheets of the Arctic are getting smaller every year. Many glaciers - the huge
rivers of ice that flow in slow motion down the mountains- are disappearing
completely. Melting ice contributes to rising sea levels, which could flood land and
destroy homes in low-lying areas. Sea levels have already risen by 8 inches
(200mm) over the last 100 years. That might not sound like much, but as the oceans
warm and glaciers melt, levels will continue to rise faster and faster. Before too
long, many low-lying villages, towns, cities, and islands will be threatened by
flooding,

Wetter, Drier

Some scientists predict that global warming will make many wet regions
even wetter and dry regions even drier. And as the sea temperatures rise, the existing
climate problems such as drought, desertification, and flooding may become more
common and more destructive.

Extreme Weather
Many scientists believe that we can already see signs of climate change in

50



the form of extreme weather conditions around the world. Hurricanes, forest fires,
and other weather-related disasters have always occurred, but some seem to be
getting stronger and more frequent as the world's atmosphere and oceans get warmer.

Pollution

Burning fossil fuels, the major cause of global warming, also causes air
pollution. Exhaust gases from factories, cars, and other vehicles contain greenhouse
gases that trap heat in our atmosphere. As well as making earth warmer, some of
these gases can create smog and acid rain.

More Diseases

A rise in temperature around the world is expected to cause an increase in
infectious diseases. Flooding could transmit diseases, such as typhoid and cholera
that spread through water. Also, the number of insects that carry diseases may
increase, move to warmer areas, and spread sicknesses, such as malaria and
encephalitis, to new places.

Steps for Preventing Global Warming/Climate Change
Cleaner Energy

If we want to stop climate change, rather than just slowing it down, we need to
do more than just reducing the amount of fossil fuels we burn. We must switch to
alternative energies; ideally from sources that produce low amounts of greenhouse gas
and that are renewable. Our supply of fossil fuels will one day be completely used up,
but energy resources which rely on sunlight and earth's natural cycles, will never run
out.
Cleaner Transportation

The exhaust gases from vehicles account for about a quarter of all the carbon
dioxide we release. As more people buy cars and take cheap flights, the amount of
pollution is increasing. Engineers are helping to clean up the future of travel by
designing more efficient cars, buses and airplanes, and moving toward new kinds of
fuel.
Preserving Forests and Oceans

Forests and oceans remove and trap carbon as part of their natural processes.
In turn, they can reduce the amount of carbon dioxide in the atmosphere and limit
the power of the greenhouse effect. By damaging forests, polluting oceans, and
burning fossil fuels, humans have upset the Earth's natural balance. This is why we
must work together to protect our precious trees and scas.

51



Less Waste

Most of our household waste ends up in solid waste landfills. These huge
trash dumps release methane- a greenhouse gas - as they rot. One simple way to cut
the amount of methane that is released, is to reduce the amount of trash you produce,
and recycle as much as possible of what is left.

Working Together

For a huge problem like climate change, we need big, global solutions. That
means the whole world working together, with scientists gathering and sharing
information, and governments taking action to find solutions.

1. Answer the following questions.
1) ‘What is the main cause of change in climate?
ii) What is causing global warming?
iii) How does melting of ice cause global warming?
iv)  Howdo floods cause increase in infectious diseases?
V) Why should we use renewable sources of energy?
vi)  Why should we use cleaner transportation?
vii) How can forests and oceans limit the power of greenhouse effect?
viii) 'Why should we reduce the amount of trash we produce?
ix)  How can wereduce the release of methane gas?
X) Why do we need combined efforts to control climate change?

2. Choose the correct answer.

i) The speed at which earth is now heating up
(a) isinteresting.
(b) isalarming.
(c) isfunny.
(d)  isentertaining.

ii) ‘When we burn fossil fuels we release large amounts of carbon into the
atmosphere
(a) aspartofthe gas oxygen.
(b)  aspartofthe gasnitrogen.
(c) aspartofthe gas methane.
(d)  aspartofthe gas carbon dioxide (CO,).

52



iii)

iv)

vii)

viii)

Many scientists believe this increase in greenhouse gases
(a)  iscausing global cooling.

(b)  iscausing global wars.

(c) iscausing global warming.

(d) iscausing global festivals.

Some scientists predict that global warming will make many wet
regions even wetter and

(a)  dryregionsever hotter.

(b)  dryregionsevendrier.

(c) dryregionseven pleasant.

(d) dryregionsevendry.

The increasing number of people on earth is one of

a) the greatest factors in global warming.

b) the smallest factors in global warming.

c) the small factors in global warming.

d) the great gases in global warming.

Flooding could transmit diseases, such as typhoid and cholera
(a) thatspreadinspace.

(b) thatspread athospital.

(c) thatspread through water.

(d) thatspreadinsand.

If we want to stop climate change, rather than just slow it down, we
need to do more than just reduce

(a) theamountofoil weburn.

(b) theamountof gasweburn.

(c) theamountoftrash webum.

(d) theamount of fossil fuels we burn.

The exhaust gases from vehicles account for about

(a) halfofcarbon dioxide.

(b) aquarter ofall the carbon dioxide we release.

(c)  agquarterofallthe oxygen we release.

(d)  aquarterofall the gases.

Forests and oceans remove and trap carbon as part of

(a) theirpower.

(b)  theirnatural processes.

(c) theirartificial processes.

(d) theirwater.

53]



X) We must work together to protect our
(a)  precious trees and seas.
(b) precioustreesandleaves.
(c¢)  precious trees and plants.
(d) precious seasand grass.

A Mark the sentences as True or False.
1) Humans and the machines we use are producing more (T /F)
CO, than ever before.

1i) When we burn fossil fuels we release large amounts of (T /F)
carbon into the atmosphere as part of the gas nitrogen.

iii)  Greenhouse gases absorb heat from the Sun and help (T/F)
warm the trees.

iv)  Many scientists believe this increase in greenhouse (T/F)
gases is causing global warming,

V) More people mean that more fossil fuels are (T/F)
burned.

vi)  The vast ice sheets of the Africa are getting smaller (T /F)
every year.

vii)  Some scientists predict that global warming will make (T/F)
many wet regions even wetter and dry regions even
drier.

viii) Flooding could transmit diseases, such as typhoidand (T/F)
cholera that spread through water.

ix)  Wemustnot switch to alternative sources of energies. (T/F)

X) By damaging forests, polluting oceans, and burning (T /F)
fossil fuels, humans have upset Earth's natural balance.

Read the lesson 'Global Warming” for skimming and tell the theme / main idea of
it.

® Climate change is causing a dire threat to all living beings. Do you
agree/disagree? Give reasons.

54



Grammar:

k Use of Nouns J
1.  AsaSubject:

Nounisused as asubjectinasicrcsice
Examples:

i) Alibought an expensive car last year.

ii)  Salmatcaches English in a good manner,

2.  AsanObject:
Noun is used as an object in a sentence.
Examples:
1) My friend gave me a book.
ii) The Government is trying to control inflation.

3. AsaComplement:
Noun is used as a complement in a sentence.
Examples:
1) He is a student of first year.
ii) She is ateacher.

Noun Phrases
Noun phrase consists of anoun and the modifier which distinguishes it.
Examples:

1) Tknow his address. (Noun phrase as an object)
i) The spotted dog was the winner. (Noun phrase as a subject)
1ii)  Heisastudent of class ten. (Noun phrase as a complement)

Noun Clauses
A noun clause is a subordinate clause which functions as a noun in relation to
the main clause. There are several types of noun clauses and they are distinguished

by their functions in the sentences.
Anoun clause can begin with that, what, when, which, where, ifetc.
Examples:

i) Tknow that the earth is round. (Noun clause as an object)
ii) That he teaches English is obvious. (Noun clause as a subject)
ili)  Iam sure that he did it. (Noun clause as a complement)

55



o Underline the noun clauses in the following sentences.
1) We did not know that Shahzaib wanted to be left alone.
i) I wonder where they have gone.
ii1)  ITknow where he lives.
iv)  Idon'tunderstand why Saleem is absent today.
v)  Pleasetell me what she said.
vi)  Idon'tknowifAbidisathome.
vil)  Ithink that Mr. Buttis a good teacher.
viii) Do youknow ifthe bus stops here.

o Identify nouns, noun phrases and noun clauses from the unit.

The Active Voice

Examples

1) I have read this book.

ii) The gardener plants a tree.

Itis also used where there is no object in a sentence.
Example

Plants grow well in alluvial soil.

The Passive Voice

Example
He has been arrested by the police.

® It is used when the doer is unimportant or unknown.
Example
My book has been stolen.

° Itis also used when the material of which a thing is made is referred to.
Example
This door has been made of wood by him.

® It is used when the active voice cannot be used as no action can be received.
Example
This piece of pottery has been cracked.

56



| _Activty: |

Change the active voice into passive voice.
1) They are reading books.

ii) Gambling has ruined many.

iii))  Whodid this?

iv)  Whydid your friend write such a letter?
V) All of them laughed at him.

vi)  They help the poor and needy people.
vii))  Weshould respect our teachers.

viii) Sheisreading the newspaper.

ix) [Itakeexercisedaily.

X) The teacher will guide us.

Vocabulary:

Colloquialism and Idiomatic Expressions

Colloquialisms_are words and phrases that are part of our everyday speech,
but that are not part of our formal language.

They are understood by all people in a specific location or geographic
region.

Examples of Colloguialism:

ain't (amnot) is not, have not, has not
freak out (become very excited)

Over yonder (over there)

ruckus (controversy, noisy disturbance)
reckon (guess, calculate, suppose)

Idiomatic Expressions:

Idiomatic expressions are peculiar to a language. These should not be taken
literally.

Examples
Notasausage: Nothing at all.
To make clean breast of: confess or admit to (something)

57



" Usethe following expressions in your sentence:

(a) Tohaveabeeinone's bonnet: (to be obsessed on some point)

(b) Tobeallears: (tolisten attentively)

(c) Topaythroughthe nose: (to pay an excessive price)

(d) Tosmellarat: (to suspect something wrongly done)
(¢) Tobeatone'swits ends: (tobeataloss)

(f)  Betweenthe devil and the deep sea: (surrounded by troubles)

(g) Notasausage: Nothing atall.

(bh) To make clean breast of: confess or admit to (something
Writing Skills:

. Expository Writins J

Exposition explains or classifies ideas, processes and the nature or functions
of things. e.g. How does this gadget work? Which is the way to the station? What is
'slang'?

Giving Direction

Assume that the person you are giving directions to is a complete stranger

to the area. Read the example on how to get to the railway station.

> > abour
F 3
Mo.rque
N
@ You are here Srr.mon

From where you are now, walk straight on till you come to crossroads. Do
not turn but continue walking. When you come to the next crossroads, turn right.
Keep straight on and when you reach the round about, turn right. The railway
station is on the right just after the mosque.

58



Write a composition on the following topics.
i) How to take care of a wound to prevent infection?
ii) How to entertain guests inexpensively?

Collect the data from different resources (people, library, internet etc) and
write a research report on the following question.,

® What are the dangers and hazards of climate change?

Form groups of five and make a plan to control the effects of global warming.
Share your findings in class presentation.

59



Revision 1-5

Answer the following questions.

i)
i)

viii)
ix)

x)

‘Whathappened to the garden after the children left?

Why could not the small boy reach up to the branches of the
tree?

Why did the boy give the wrong answers?

‘What were the stories told by the teacher?

‘Why should we read the biographies of great personalities?
‘Which personality has inspired you and how?

‘What are the kinds oflibraries?

What is Dewey Decimal system?

How does melting of ice cause global warming?

How do floods cause increase in infectious diseases?

Choose the correct answer.

i)

i)

iii)

)

Cornish ogre was
(a) anenemy ofthe Giant.
(b) adwarf.

(¢) amaneating Giant.

(d) afriend ofthe Giant.

The Autumn gave golden fruit to every garden, but to the Giant's
garden

(a)  shegavetoomuch.

(b) shegavesome.

(c) shegavenone.

(d) shegaveenough.

Theboy in the story was

(a) anorphan.

(b)  theonlychild of his parents.
(c) well-behaved student.

(d) aduncefellow.

The parents of the boy were

(a) illiterate.

60



viii)

(b) poor.

(c) greedy.

(d) rich and provided their son with all kinds of expensive toys
and sweets,

'Psalm’ means

(a) asacred songorpoem.

(b)  biography ofaperson

(c) amusical song

(d) aballad

The poet says 'life' is

(a) adream.

(b) realandearnest.

(c) enjoyment.

(d) full oftears.

Special library is also known as

(a) collegelibrary.

(b)  information centre.

(c)  schoollibrary.

(d)  university library.

Circulation desk is the counter where you sign for books and
(a) keepitontheshelf.

(b) buyit.

(c) keepthemback.

(d) takethemout.

Many scientists believe this increase in greenhouse gases
(a) iscausing global cooling.

(b) iscausing global wars.

(c¢)  iscausing global warming.

(d)  iscausing global festivals.

Some scientists predict that global warming will make many wet
regions even wetter and

(a) dryregionsever hotter.

(b)  dryregionsevendrier.

(c) dryregionseven pleasant.

(d) dryregionsevendry.

611



3 Tick the sentences as True or False,
i) The Giant took a great axe and knocked downthe wall. (T/F)
ii) The teacher told the parents that the boy was not doing

mathematics sums properly. (T/F)
iii)  Theboy asked the teacher to sing a song

instead of teaching him, (T/F)
iv)  Theteacher thought that the little boy was an angel. (T/F)
V) Learn to labour and to wait. (T/F)
vi)  Weshould actin the present. (T/F)
vii)) Theboy went over to his cupboard, opened it, took out

his bus set, and started assembling the track. (T/F)
viii) Theteacher was absolutely non-mechanical. (T/F)
ix)  More people mean that more fossil fuels are burned. (T/F)
X) The vast ice sheets of the Africa are getting smaller every

year, (T/F)

4, Critical Thinking
» Suggest the measures to prevent global warming.
S. Write summary of the poem “A psalm of life”.

m

Collect data from different resources (people, library, internet etc) and write
aresearch report on the following question.

. What steps are being taken to protect endangered wildlife?
2 Use the following nouns in your sentences and state whether these are
collective, material, abstract, countable, or uncountable nouns.
Noun Kind of Noun Sentence

1) love
i) herd
i11)  honesty
) ol
V) butter
vi)  football

62



Noun

Kind of Noun

Sentence

vii) money
viii) rupees

ix)  silver

X) sugar

8. Fillin the blanks with relative pronouns (who, whose, which or that)
1) Theboy, father is a doctor, is my friend.
i1) Itisthe pen was gifted to me.
iii)  Sheisthegirl got first position in annual examination.
iv)  Thatisthedog barks alot.
V) He is the teacher teaches me English.
vi)  Mr. Kashifis the doctor treats my grandfather.
vii)) Do youknow theboy brother is a footballer?

9. Write five anaphoric and cataphoric references in the relevant
column.

Anaphoric references | Cataphoric references

10. Identify the cataphoric and anaphoric references in the following
sentences.
i) As they were coming from school, the children used to go and play in

the Giant's garden.
ii) The teacher hunched up in a corner and obeyed. He grew tired of the
position.

iii) Muneeb was the first who entered the classroom. He is my best friend.
iv) Shewas very frightened, when Asma saw a snake.
v) Alittle girl, Nazia, was playing in the garden.
vi) The monkey took the banana and ate it.

63



SONNET (116)

William Shakespeare (1564 — 1616)

Students Learning Outcomes:

On completion of the unit, students will be able to:

» answer the comprehension questions,

+ understand the poet's point of view and theme of the poem.

@ paraphrase the poem.

+ write asummary of the poem.

¢ read the poem and give orally and in writing; theme and its development,
personal response with justification, recognize literary techniques.

$"‘fwmm§.ﬁ'£&gﬁ

o Whois your favourite poet and why?

Let me not to the marriage of true minds
Admitimpediments, Loveis notlove

Which alters when it alteration finds,

Or bends with the remover to remove:

O, no! itis an ever-fixed mark,

That looks on tempests and is never shaken;

It is the star to every wandering bark,

Whose worth's unknown, although his height be taken
Love's not Time's fool, though, rosy lips and cheeks
Within his bending sickle's compass come,

Love alters not with his briefhours and weeks,
Butbears it over even to the edge of doom,

If this be error and upon me proved,

I never writ, not no man even loved.

About the Poet

Shakespeare-dramatist/poet was born in Stratford-upon-
Avon in 1564. He wrote all of his great works that include: Hamlet, [
Macbeth, Julius Caesar, Othello, A Midsummer Night's Dream, §
Romeo and Juliet, As you like it, the Merchant of Venice, etc. in the
span of twenty five years. He died on April 23, 1616.




Reading and Thinking Skills:

Answer the following questions.

i)
i)

iii)

viii)
ix)

X)

‘What is the poem about?

Why do trust and understanding hold great importance in
relationships?

What view of love does Shakespeare present?

Why does the poet not give importance to physical beauty?
How can we describe true love?

Why can't we fully understand love?

Love is 'Wandering barks'. What does it mean?

Why does true love not change with the passage oftime?
‘What is untrue love?

Why does the poet describe true love as the star?

Choose the correct answer.

i)

i)

iii)

v)

When the poet says, “Love is not love which alters when it alteration

finds,” he means:

(a) lovechanges with each change in an object of affection.

(b) true love endures inspite of changes in circumstances and
appearance.

(c) alovethatenduresis worthless.

(d) lovecanbealteredto fit any situation.

A sonnet is apoem which

(a)  islyrical and uses figurative language.

(b)  doesnothaverhymed lines.

(c) consists of fourteen lines and follows a strict thyme scheme

and specific structure.
(d)  hasthirteen lines.
Thepoetuses.......cccc..... to describe love
(a) simile.
(b)  metaphor.
© satire.
(d) irony.
True love does not change when the one he or she loves
(a) alters.
(b) leaves.

65



vii)

viii)

(c) lovesback.
(d) staysthesame.
The image of an 'ever fixed mark' is that of a

(a)  stain.

(b) memory.

(c) mud

(d) lighthouse.

The sonnet CXVI is written by

(a) JohnKeats.

(b)  William Shakespeare.
(¢) William Woods Worth.
(d) Willam Blake.

Impediment means

(a)  success.

(b)  sadness.

(c)  happiness.

(d) hurdle.

"Wandering Bark' indicates

(a) lostship.

(b) losthome.

(c) lostlove.

(d) lostcourage.

Love's not times fool means

(a) loveissuccess.

(b) loveisblind.

(c) loveisnotatthe mercy oftime.
(d) loveisnoteverlasting.

Edge of doom means
(a) doomsday.
(b)  birthday.

(c) cornerofdoom.
(d)  upperpartofdoom.

Fillin the blanks with rhyming words

i)
iii)

v)

minds ii) mark
cheeks iv)  taken
proved

66



Critical Thinking:

¢ Do you agree / disagree with the poet's view of love as eternal and
unchanging? Give reasons.

Writing Skills:

L Write down the theme of the poem in your own words.

Paraphrase the following lines.

Let me not to the marriage of true minds
Admit impediments, Love isnot love
Which alters when it alteration finds,
Orbends with the remover to remove:

3. Write a summary of the Sonnet (CXVI).

Write a research report highlighting the steps being taken to improve
literacy rate in Balochistan.

Vocabulary:

Poetry is one of the three major branches of literature, the other being prose
and drama. Poetry appeals to the senses and emotions. It does this through poetic
devices. These are as follows:

Satire: Satire is a technique employed by the writers to expose and criticize
foolishness and corruption of an individual or a society by using humor.

Example:  Most political cartoons which we witness every day in the
newspapers and magazines are examples of satire. These cartoons criticize some
recent actions of political figures in a comical way.

Irony: Irony is a figure of speech where one says the exact opposite of what
one thinks. Irony can be described as the discrepancy between what is meant and
what is said, what is expected and what happens, what is meant and what is
understood or what is said and what is done.

67



Example:  In Romeo Juliet, Juliet drinks the sleeping draught and falls into
sleep, hoping to be reunited with Romeo. But this results in both their deaths.

Alliteration: Alliteration uses repeated similar consonants sounds to create an
atmosphere.

Example:  The seagull squabbles over scraps.

Assonance: Like alliteration, assonance is repetition of similar sounds except the
sounds are vowels. They also mimic the action or create an atmosphere.

Example:  Double, double, toil and trouble.

Imagery: [Imagery is the construction of details used to create mental images in
the mind of the reader through visual senses as well as the senses of touch, smell,
taste or sound. For example,

Example:  The thunder of clouds. (auditory)
The scent of mangoes. (smell)
The rugged and rough cliffs. (touch)
Sweet and juicy peaches. (taste)

Read the poem again and identify the literary techniques used in the poem.

68



VANKA

Anton Chekhov (1860-1904)

On completion of the unit, students will be able to:
* answer the comprehension questions.

apply rules of change of number of nouns.

analyze and compare business letters

locate appropriate synonyms and antonyms in a thesaurus.
use useful expressions during conversation.

» How should we treat the orphans?

Vanka was a little boy of nine who, three months before, had travelled from
the countryside to be apprenticed to Aliakin, the shoemaker, many many miles away
in Moscow. On Christmas Eve he did not go to bed. He waited until his master had
gone out to church, and then fetched a bottle of ink and a rusty pen from his master's
cupboard, spread out a crumpled sheet of paper before him, and began to write. As
he wrote, more than once he looked fearfully round at the door.

“Dear Grandpapa,” he wrote, “I am writing you a letter. I wish you a merry
Christmas and I hope God will give you all sorts of good things. You know I have no
papa or mamma, and you are all [have.”

Vanka turned his eyes to the dark window, on which shone the reflection of
the candle, and vividly pictured his grandfather, a small, thin, but extraordinarily
active man of sixty-five, with a perpetually smiling face. By day he slept in the
kitchen and at night, wrapped up in a huge sheepskin coat, he walked about
guarding the grounds shaking his watchman's rattle. Behind him, in Vanka's
imagination, pace the dogs Kashtanka and The Eel, (so called because he is black
and his body is long) wagging their tails. The weather is glorious. The night is dark,
but the whole village is visible: the white roofs, the columns of smoke rising from
the chimneys, the trees, silvery with frost, and the snowdrifts. The sky is strewn with
gaily twinkling stars, and the Milky Way is as bright as if it had been washed and
scrubbed with snow. Vanka sighed, dipped his pen in the ink, and went on:

69



“Yesterday my master dragged me into the yard by my hair and beat me with
a stirrup because I went to sleep while I was rocking the baby. Last week my
mistress told me to clean some herrings and I began cleaning one from the tail, and
she took it and poked its head into my face.

The apprentices make me steal the cucumbers, and then my master beats me
with whatever is at hand. And I have nothing to eat. I get bread in the morning and
porridge for dinner, and bread for supper. My master and mistress drink up all the tea
and the soup. And they make me sleep in the hall, and when the baby cries I don't
sleep at all because I have to rock the cradle. Dear Grandpa, please take me away
from here, home to the village. I can't stand it. I beg you on my knees. I will pray to
God for you all my life. Take me away from here, or else I shall die.”

Vanka's mouth twisted. He rubbed his eyes with a grimy hand and sobbed.

“I will grind your tobacco for you,” he continued, “and pray to God for you.
If don't you can kill me like Sidorov's goat. And if you want me to work, I can do the
ploughing and clean the boots. Dear Grandpa, I can't stand it. I shall die. I wanted to
run away to the village on foot, but I haven't any boots, and it is so cold. And when I
am big I will always take care of you and not allow anyone to hurt you at all, and
when you die, I will pray to God for you as I do for my dead mother. Moscow is a big
city. There are lots of horses, but no sheep. Dear Grandpa, when they have the
Christmas tree at the big house, keep some gilded nuts for me and put them away in
the green chest. Ask Miss Olga for them and say they are for Vanka.”

Vanka heaved a shuddering sigh and stared at the window again. He
remembered how he and his grandfather used to go to the forest for the Christmas
tree. Those were such happy days. Grandfather would drag the fallen fir tree up to
the big house, and there they would all set to work decorating it. The busiest of all
was Miss Olga, Vanka's favourite. While Vanka's mother was still alive and a
housemaid at the big house, Miss Olga used to give little Vanka biscuits, and
because she had nothing better to do, she had taught him to read and write, to count
up to a hundred, and even to dance the quadrille. But when his mother died, the
orphaned Vanka was banished to the kitchen, where his grandfather was, and from
there he was sent to Moscow, to Aliakin, the shoemaker.

“Do come, dear Grandpapa,” Vanka went on. “Please come. I beg you to
come and take me away. Have pity on your poor little orphan, because everyone
scolds me, and I'm so hungry, and it's so lonely. I can't tell you how lonely it is. And
the other day my master hit me on the head, so that I fell down and almost didn't
come to again. Give my love to Kashtanka and the Eel, and to the coachman, and
don'tlet anyone touch my accordion. Dear Grandpapa, do come.

70



Your loving grandson,

Vanka.”

Vanka folded the paper in four and put it in an envelope which he had bought
that evening for one kopeck. He reflected an instant, then dipped his pen in the ink
and wrote the address:

To my Grandpapa in the village.

Delighted to have finished his letter without interruption, he put on his cap
and, without waiting to throw his little overcoat over his shoulders, ran out into the
street in his shirt. The butcher, whom he had asked the evening before, had told him
that when letters are put into a mail-box, they are collected from there and carried all
over Russia in mail wagons with ringing bells. Vanka ran to the nearest mailbox and
dropped his letter in.

An hour later he was sound asleep, lulled by the sweetest hopes. He
dreamed he saw a stove. By the stove sat his grandfather swinging his legs and
reading his letter to the cook. Near the stove walked The Eel, wagging his tail.

About the Author

Anton Chekhov was one of the Russian greatest
writers. He was born in 1860 and died on 15® July, 1904 at the
age of 44. He was a Russian physician and author of short
stories. His career as a dramatist produced four classics and
his best stories are held in high esteem by the writers and
critics.

Reading and Thinking Skills:

1. Answer the following questions.
1) How did Vanka's master and mistress treat him?
1) Why did Vanka frequently look “fearfully” round at the door as he
wrote his letter?

1ii)  What was Vanka's promise to do for his grandfather?

iv)  What were the things which made Vanka unhappy?

V) Describe Vanka's life before and after he was sent to Moscow.
vi)  How has the writer made his description more vivid?

vii) Do you think Vanka's letter would reach to his grandfather?
viil) Why was Vanka writing a letter to his grandfather?

(71



ix)  Howdid Miss Olga treat Vanka?
X) Why will Vanka's grandfather not be able to receive the letter?

Choose the correct answer.
1) Vanka was
(a) anorphanofnine years.
(b) aboywho wentto Harrow for higher study.
(c) asportsman,
(d) arowdyboy.
1) Vanka wrote to his grandfather on
(a) ChristmasEve.

(b)  Sunday.
(c) Eid-ul-Fiter.
(d) Birthday.

11i)  Whotaught Vanka to read and write?
(a)  his father.
(b)  hismother.
(c) MissOlga.
(d)  his grandfather.
iv)  Whydid Vanka go to Moscow?
(a) tobecomeamechanic.
(b) tobeapprenticed to Aliakin as a shoe maker.
(c) tolearnthe trade of a plumber.
(d) tostudymedicine.
V) In the story, “Eel” was:
(a) akindoffish.
(b) thename of Vanka's dog.
(c)  Vanka's petcat.
(d)  Vanka'sparrot.
vi)  Vankahad travelled from the countryside
(a) tobeapprenticed to Aliakin, the shoemaker.
(b) tobetheslave ofthe King.
(c¢) tobeapprenticed to Aliakin, the dentist.
(d) tobeateacher of Aliakin, the shoemaker.
vil) Vankawrites, “The apprentices make me steal
(a) theoranges”.
(b) theapples”.

72



(c) themangoes”.
(d) thecucumbers”.
viil) Vankarubbed his eyes with
(a) atowel.
(b) agrimyhandand sobbed.
(c) apieceofcloth.
(d) agrimyhandand laughed.
ix)  Vankaremembered how he and his grandfather used to
(a) gotovillage.
(b) gotoEngland.
(¢) gotothe forest.
(d) gotofields.
X) Miss Olga used to give little Vanka biscuits and
(a) taughthimtoread and write.
(b)  taughthim howtoread.
(c)  taughthimhow towrite.
(d) taughthimhow tospeak.

3. Mark the sentences as True or False.

i) Aliakin was a shoemaker. (T/F)

iil)  Vankahad three dogs. (T/F)

iii)  Vanka wrote a letter to his grandfather that he was very (T/F)
happy in Moscow.

iv)  Vanka wrote the correct address on the envelope. (T/F)

v)  Vankalivedinavillage. (T/F)

vi)  Vanka could not sleep at all because he had to rock the (T/F)
cradle.

vii)  Vanka wrote to his grandfather, “I will grind my tobaccofor (T /F)
you.”

viii) Miss Olga was Vanka's mother. (T/F)

ix)  When Vanka's mother died, he was banished to thekitchen. (T /F)

X) Vanka was ten years old. (T/F)

Critical Thinking:

How does corporal punishment affect the personality of children?

73



Rules of change of number of nouns (Singular Plural)
1. Add's’ to the singular noun
Examples:
i) toy—toys
i) table—tables
2 Add’es' ifanoun endsin 'ch, sh, s, X, or o' after a consonant
Examples:
1) class—classes
ii))  bench—benches
iii)  bush—bushes
iv)  mango—mangoes
v)  tax—taxes
3. By changing the last letter 'y’ into 'ies’
Examples:
1) story —stories
ii) city —cities
4. By changing the inside vowel of the singular.
Examples:
i) man—men
i) tooth—teeth
o By suffixing 'en’ to the singular.
Examples:
i) child —children
ii) OX—OXen
6. By changing 'f" or 'fe' into 'ves'
Examples:
i) life —lives
ii) thief—thieves
Exceptions
i) chief—chiefs
ii)  roof—roofs
! By adding 's' to the main word in a compound word.
Examples:
1) son-in-law — sons-in-law
ii) passer-by —passers-by

74



Write down plural of the following nouns.

chair, buffalo, Negro, army, lady,
goose, foot, leaf, knife, proof,
step-son, student, maid-servant, class, page,
library, college, shelf, computer

Writing Skills:

A formal / business letter is usually written for official or business purposes.

The language should be much more formal than in friendly letters. It should be
polite and concise.

Analysis of a business letter

Parts of abusiness letter

(a) Sender's address (your address)
(b) Date

(c) Address of the person you are writing to
(d) Salutation

(e) Topic sentence/Subjecttitle

(f) Main body of the letter

(g) Closing

(h) Signature

(i) Name

Recognize the gudience and purpose.

Use appropriate vocabulary, sty/e and tone according to the relationship, the
knowledge and the interest of the recipient.

Emphasize the central idea.

Follow the conventions of a business letter with formats, fonts and spacing in
order to improve the document's impact and readability.

Revise business letters.

75



Formal Letter Layout

use this letter layout when you write your letter

Date*. Your address

\
\

Name, job title and ~
address of the person

-~ >

you are writing fo. \
oo

Insert Sir/Madam or
Surname Name with
title (Mr, Ms, Mrs, Dr,
etc.) \\# Tiear
Topic sentence what

is the letter about >

k 4

Main body of letter

Yours sincerely if you
know the recipient § ‘

name; “Yours faithfully” Yours
if you do not.
Signature —
Your name — %

Write a letter of complaint to a publishing firm about the numerous mistakes
you have found in the book which you ordered.

76



Write a research report on the impact of child labour on children.

‘Vocabulary:

writers are lavish in their use of synonyms.

1. Below are five words from the text with the number of other words in line.

Synonyms |
k yo ¥’ “Odd one out” a person

A synonym 1s a word which has almost the same | or thing differing from all
meaning as another. The purpose of synonyms is to give other members of a
flexibility and variety of a style. The great speakers and  Particular group or set in

someway.

Identify the “odd one out”. The first one is done for you.

-I perpetually | constantly | continually usually forever
b strewn spread sprinkled dotted shinning
¢ banished sent away exiled dismissed | forbidden
d scolds beats tells me off | reprimands | rebukes
€ lulled soothed comforted | encouraged | quietened
f fetch get retrieve carry sell
g vivid dark bright lively clear
h pity sympathy rude compassion | tenderness
i interrupt permit intervene interfere infringe
j crumple squeeze squash wrinke fresh
2. Write antonyms of the following words.
Words Antonyms Words Antonyms
active glorious
afraid ancient
hire major
mature noisy
optimist praise

77




Oral Communication Skills:

Useful expressions during conversation
When taking part in a conversation, it is important that you give yourself and
your partner time to think. To fill in that gap different expressions are used such as:

Now let's see ...
Justamoment please ....
I'm not sure perhaps ....
Well ...

Actually ...

With the help of the expressions given above, construct and present a dialogue.

78



HOW TO WRITE AND
HOW TO WRITE BADLY

C.E.M. Joad (1891-1953)
Students Learning Outcomes:

On completion of the unit, students will be able to:
answer comprehension questions.

prepare resume for ajob.

write an application for a job

identify and demonstrate use of relative pronouns.
identify, analyze and construct conditional sentences.
prepare class presentation.

e & & @

e @

* Do you know how to express your feelings or views to others effectively?

The object of writing is to say something we want to say, in other words, to
convey meaning. This, which should be an easy task, is considered by most people
to be fraught with difficulty. Writing is thought to be a complicated and highly
technical craft, not to be undertaken except by those who have first been initiated
into its mysteries and mastered its technique. So much at least is indispensable for
the writing of books, articles and essays. Letters are some-how-different; letters are
only a way of talking on paper, and are, therefore, outside the mysterious pale of
writing proper.

It is my lot to lecture to a class whose members are obliged to write me an
essay once a fortnight. The labour of extracting these essays is Herculean. Every
sort and kind of excuse is made to escape them: Snooks is working overtime, Jones
has forgotten how to spell, Brown does not know how to express himself and
Robinson has married a wife and cannot spare the time to write. One day I had an
idea. I asked Snooks and the rest to write me not an essay, but a letter. The letter was
to tell me how they liked the class, what they thought of the other members, what
suggestion they had to make for improving the lectures, and what-here I concealed
the Gregory powder in the jam. They thought of the subject set for the last essay. The
effect was magical; everybody suddenly found his pen and, blossoming into
expression, gave me the very thing I had been unable to extract when I asked for an
essay.

79



By this experience I was convinced of a truth I had often suspected, that all
the talk about style and form and quality of expression in writing which agitates
literary circles is simply highfalutin bunkum, designed to hoodwink people into the
belief that writing is much more mysterious than it really is, by those whose living
depends on the maintenance of the mystery, and that, if the plain man would only
take the trouble to say quite plainly what he thinks, good and even easy writing
would be the inevitable result.

Yet this is just what the plain man will not do. When, for example, he wants to
write to the papers, and considers it incumbent upon him to adopt what he calls a
literary style, he thinks that the desired result is to be achieved by using two or three
words when one would normally suffice: thus he calls an oyster “a succulent
bivalve”, a barber “a tonsorial artist”, and says “the delectable Ducky” when he
means Cornwall. These unfortunate expressions are based upon a false belief, the
belief that the object of writing is somehow different from the object of talking, and
that, whereas it is the business of the spoken word simply to convey meaning, the
business of the written word is to create what is called a literary effect. This false
beliefis due to two causes.

The first is the poison of journalese. We may agree that the world is
sometimes exciting; it is equally clear that sometimes it is not. But although the
world can please itself in the matter, the journalist has no option. Whether we are in
the midst of a great war or an August silly season his obligation to be bright, witty
and stimulating, and to produce a bright, witty and stimulating paper, remains the
same. And if nothing happens to excite or amuse he must make his words do for
themselves what events refuse to do for him.

Hence the characteristic of journalism is constant overemphasis. One way of
achieving this emphasis is by the use of unexpected and striking words. Thus the
cricket reporter will say “the sphere struck the uprights when he wishes to report the
fact that the ball hit the stumps”. Another method is by gross over-expression, and
by gross over-expression I mean the introduction of flowing and highly charged
phrases which are altogether disproportionate to the importance of the event or to
the sincerity of the writer's feeling.

Supposing, to take an example quoted by Galsworthy (On Expression), we
want to say, “The cat was on the mat”, and, having nothing else to say, and a
yawning half-column of space in which to say it, determine to make the statement of
this simple fact carry as much weight in the way of eloquence and emotion as we can
manage to pile on to it. Then, if we are clever at our job, we shall say: “Stretching
herself with feline grace, and emitting those sounds immemorially connected with

80



satisfaction, Grimalkin lay on a rug whose richly variegated pattern spoke
eloquently of the Orient and all the wonders of The Arabian Nights.” If we are not
clever at our job we shall succeed in being not impressive but merely, like the
American journalist who, wishing to report the fact that a mother was dead, sought
to arouse emotion by announcing that “the hand that rocked the cradle had kicked
the bucket.”

All this is bad, as bad as bad can be. It is vulgar, it is an offence against
simplicity, and it is a foe to all good writing. And, since there is no reason at all why
we should go out of our way to acquire the habit of journalese, let us, when we sit
down to write, take a solemn oath to say exactly what we mean to say nothing more,
to use the simplest words that will serve our purpose, and to use as few of them as we
can.

But there is another cause for the belief that writing is something more, and
something more important, than just talking on paper. Many authors, anxious to
exalt the mysteries of their trade, have maintained that writings is an art-in the sense
in which the painting of picture or the composing of music is an art. As an art it
possesses a definite technique; there is an appropriate diction to be learned,
judgment exercised in the selection of words, tricks of harmony and rhythm to be
mastered. In a word, there is the acquirement of a style, and unless the author has
firstmastered a style his writing will be of no value.

The belief in style as a thing which is valuable in itself, independently of the
meaning it conveys, was very prevalent at the end of the last century. The so-called
decadents, led by Oscar Wilde, cared much more about the way in which a thing was
said than about what was said.

Samuel Butler has a delightful passage in his famous Notebooks on this
attitude to writing, which he regards as pretentious cant:

“I never knew a writer yet who took the smallest pains with his style and was
at the same time readable... Men like Newman and R.L. Stevenson seem to have
taken pains to acquire what they called a style as a preliminary measure — as
something that they had to form before their writings could be of any value. I should
like to put it on record that I never took the smallest pains with my style, have never
thought about it, and do not know or want to know whether it is a style or whether it
is not, as I believe and hope, just common simple straightforwardness. I cannot
conceive how any man can take thought for his style without loss to himself and his
readers.”

He goes on characteristically to add: “I have, however, taken all the pains
that T had the patience to endure in the improvement of my handwriting...”

81



In other words, a man's style should be like his dress. It should be as
unobtrusive and should attract as little attention as possible. Butler is here voicing a
conviction which I feel very strongly. Provided that a man feels genuinely on a
particular subject, provided also that he has got clearly conceived in his head what
he wants to say on that subject, provided, too, that he is careful to say only what he
has clearly conceived and nothing more, then, if he has a sufficient knowledge of
grammar and the laws of syntax, his thoughts, when he comes to put them in down,
will automatically express themselves in the mould which we call good writing,
while the enthusiast, whose feeling is not merely genuinely but fanatically intense,
may unwittingly break out into great writing.

“A true original style”, says Shaw, “is never achieved for its own sake....
Effectiveness of assertion is the beginning and end of style. He who has nothing to
assert has no style, and can have none; he who has something to assert will go as far
in power of style as its momentousness and his conviction will carry him. Disprove
his assertion after it is made-yet his style remains.”

No man living writes better English prose than Shaw; no man has a more
true, original and effective style.

Yet surely, I shall be told, you will admit that there is music and beauty in
words. Two men may feel equally strongly, and think equally clearly, upon a given
subject, yet one will express himself with a passionate and moving sincerity that
will carry conviction, the other in the cold, colourless terms of a Government Blue
Book. Should we not aim at achieving that quality, whatever it may be, that clothes
with beauty the words of the one, and eschew the official bleakness of the other? To
this question I shall endeavour to suggest an answer in a further article.

About the Author

C.E.M. Joad, English philosopher who has helped to
“popularize” philosophy, he has written many types of essays,
which are the explorations of a quick and many sided man into
many realms of experience. This essay is out of his book, “The
Bookmark” and was originally contributed to a socialist
weekly paper.

82



Answer the following questions.

i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)

vi)
vii)
viii)

ix)

X)

How did the author make his class write an essay?

How do journalists make their reports over emphatic?

What does the writer say about using the simple words in writing?
Why is writing thought to be a complicated and technical craft?

Why is letter writing different from other styles of writings?

“The labour of extracting these essays i1s Herculean.” What does it
mean?

How does the talk of style and form of writing create mystery in the
minds of plain/common people?

How did American journalist report? Give examples.

What is the importance of simplicity in writing?

What does the author say about the style of G. B. Shaw?

Choose the correct answer.

i)

i)

iii)

iv)

The object of writing is to

(2) publish something we want to say.

(b)  convey something we want to say.

(c)  spendourleisure time.

(d) improveour handwriting.

What was the response of the class when the author told them to write
anessay?

(a) theywere very pleased.

(b) theymade every sort of excuse.

(¢) theydisliked him.

(d) noresponse.

The author told his class members to write a letter, because they
(8) could convey their meaning easily.

(b)  wanted to goon leisure trip.

(¢) didn'twanttodo anything.

(d) neededpractice in letter writing.

A journalist uses striking and unexpected words, because
(2) heisaverylearnedand literary man.

(b) hewantstoachieve over emphasis.

(c)  heneeds money.

(d) heneeds fame.

83



V) What is the suggestion of the author in writing?
(a) oneshould use bombastic words.
(b)  weshould not be sincere when we write an essay:.
(c) one should use simple words and one word would normally
suffice instead of using two or three words.
(d)  oneshould use complex words.
vi)  Thecharacteristic of journalismis
(a) constant overemphasis.
(b)  happiness.
(c) sadness.
(d) constantemphasis.
vii)) 'When we sit down to write, take a solemn oath to say exactly what we
(a) thinktoeat.
(b) lovetosay.
(c)  meanto say,nothing more.
(d) don'tmeantosay.
viii)) Aman'sstyleshould belike

(a)  hiscap.
(b)  hisdress.
(c)  hiscoat.
(d)  hiscar.

ix)  Effectiveness of assertion is the beginning
(a) andendofstyle.
(b) andmiddle ofstyle.
(c) andheadingofstyle.
(d) and way ofstyle.
X) No man living writes better English prose
(a) than Shakespeare.
(b) thanShaw.
(c) than William Wordsworth.
(d) JohnKeats.

* What problems do you face while writing? Share your feelings with your friends.

84



riting Skills:

Remember the following points in letters applying for a job:
1 In the introductory paragraph, state the post you are applying for and give
specific information about the advertisement to which you are replying (the

name of the newspaper and the date should be included).

2. The body should contain essential information.

3. In the concluding paragraph, express your willingness to provide additional
details and to attend an interview.

‘ Write an application for the job of an assistant in a well-known organization. ]

Preparing Curriculum Vitae (CV) or resume’

Curriculum Vitae

1. Personal details:
(i) Name (i)  Father'sName
(iii)) Address (iv) Telephone
(v) Age (vi) Gender
(vil) Marital Status (viii) NIC

2. Eduecation

3 Qualifications

4. Experience

5. Sports and other activities

6. Testimonials

7. References

Write a research report on planning to promote the use of information and
communication technology (ICT) in our education system.

85



Grammar:

Relative pronouns refer to persons or things already named, and are used to
introduce clauses.
Examples
1. Iread the book. The book was on the table.

I read the book which (that) was on the table.

2, We met the man who was in the bus.
3. I did not see the man whose cousin is here.
4, Here is the man whom I have not met before,

NOTE: Very often sentences are joined together without the use of a
Relative Pronoun.

Example
I met the man you had told me about.

Interrogative pronouns ask questions like:

Examples

1. Who ate the apples?

2. Which book do you like?

3 Whose car is black?

4. What are you writing?

5. Who did you walk to college with?

Conditional Sentences
There are three types of conditional sentences.

Conditional: Type I
This type tells us that something will happen if a certain condition is

fulfilled.

Examples:

i) If I go to the market, I will buy some story books for you.

ii) If you win the football match, the principal will award you with a prize.

Conditional: Type II
Conditional of this type is contrary to fact in future / present.

86



Example:
If the weather were nice today, I would go to the zoo.
(I want to go to the zoo, but the weather is notnice)

Conditional: Type IT1

Conditional of this type says that something didn't happen because a certain
condition was not fulfilled.
Example

Had he worked hard, he would have passed the exams.

1. Writedown the conditional sentences by filling the verb in bracket in

correct form.
1) Ifhe(come)here, I(convey)youmessage. (Type I, I, IT)
i1} IfI(have)enoughmoney,I (buy)thishouse. (TypeL I, IIT)
iii) IfI(meet) him,I(give)yourmessage. (Type I, I, I1I)
iv) IfI(find)your mobile phone, I (give)it you. (Type I, IL, I1I)
v) IfI(am)the minister of education, I (reform)
the examination system. (Type L, IL, I1T)

2. Fillin the blanks to complete conditional sentences.

1) If you play tricks on people, they nottrust youagain. (Typel)

i1) If you asked me to lend you some
money, I been happy to help you. (TypeIII)
iii} IfTwon amillion rupees in a lottery, (TypeIl)

Oral Communication Skills:

Prepare a three minute presentation on what you like or dislike. You could begin:
“I would like/dislike....
Agood talk:

» isorganized itdoesn'tramble.
» has some variety of tone.
¢ 1isclearand easy tolistento.

87



TO A SKYLARK

William Wordsworth (1770 — 1850)

Students Learning Outcomes:
On completion of the unit, students will be able to:

answer the comprehension questions.
» usesummary skills to summarize the poem.
» classify adjectives into different types.
» change and use degrees of adjectives.

Pre-reading:
» Name some of the songbirds found in Pakistan.
» What do you feel when you hear songs of cuckoo or nightingale?

Ethereal Minstrel! Pilgrim of the sky!

Dost thou despise that earth where cares abound?
Or, while the wings aspire, are heart and eye
Both with thy nest upon the dewy ground?
Thy nest which thou canst drop into at will, s,
Those quivering wings composed, that music still! ﬂ WA

To the last point of vision, and beyond,
Mount, daring warbler! — that love-prompted strain
("Twixt thee and thine a never-failing bond),
Thrills not the less the bosom of the plain;

Yet might'st thou seem, proud privilege! to sing
All independent of the leafy Spring

Leave to the nightingale her shady wood;

A privacy of glorious light is thine,

Whence thou dost pour upon the world a flood
Of harmony, with instinct more divine;

Type of the wise, who soar, but never roam—
True to the kindred points of Heaven and Home!

88



About the Author

William Wordsworth was born at Cocker-mouth in the
Lake District and educated at Hawakshed Grammar School
and St. John' College, Cambridge. After leaving Cambridge
he spent a year in France and was passionately in sympathy
with the revolutionaries. He lost his sympathy when the

revolution led to tofalitarian government. He was the Y
passionate lover of Nature.

Readlng and Thinking Skills:

| 5 Answer the following questions.
i) What are the characteristics of the skylark?
ii)  Howisaskylark better than a nightingale?
iii)  What sort of bond do the skylark and its family have?
iv)  Inwhich stanza the poet speaks of the skylark’s love of its home?

2. Choose the correct answer.

i) The Skylark is
{a) thelarkthatsings while soaring,
(b) akindofbeast.
{¢) anaquaticanimal.
{d) noneoftheabove.

ii)  Whatis the fact about the Skylark
(a) itisasmall bird thatnestsinahole in the ground.
{b)  abird that makesnestin a tree.
{c) abirdthatlays eggs in other birds nests.
{(d) itisamammal.

iti)  'Ethereal’means
{a) belongingtothe Sky and air; insubstantial.
{b) belonging to oceans.
{c) pertaintohills,

{(d) noneoftheabove.
iv)  Whois the wandering singer in the poem?

{a) Cuckoo

{b) Eagle

(c)  Nightingale
(d) Skylark

89



V) In the first stanza, the poet asks the skylark whether it prefers
(a) tosoaronhighorspendtime inits nest.
(b) tosoaronhigh.
(c) tospendtimeinitsnest.
d) to just fly.
vi)  Thepoet tells the skylark to
(a) singloudly.
(b) singproudly.
(c) singsadly.
(d) singsoftly.
vii) Thepoet compares the skylark to
(a) asparrow.
(b) aparrot.
(¢) akite.
(d) anightingale.
viii)) Thepoetadvises the
(a) idealisticpeople of Africa
(b) idealistic people of the world
(¢) idealistic people of Europe
(d) idealistic people of Asia
ix)  Wordsworth speaks of the skylark's love
(a) ofitshome.
(b) ofitswings.
(¢) ofitspower.
(d) ofits mountains,
X) Poet tells that the skylark has the ability to use its song to connect
(a) heavenand heaven.
(b)  heavenand home.
(¢) worldand trees.
(d) heavenand gardens.

Mark the sentences as True or False.

i) The poem is written by John Keats. (T/F)
ii)  The Skylark sings melodious songs. (T/F)
iii)  'Aspire' means strive and rise higher. (T/F)
iv)  Skylark and nightingale are the same birds. (T/F)

90



V) Skylark is known for its beautiful morning songs. (T/F)

vi)  Skylark loves its home and privilege to sing. (T/F)
vii)  Nightingale only sings at night. (T/F)
viii)) Thepoemisabouthope. (T/F)
ix)  Skylarkis an important romantic symbol for poets. (T/F)
X) Wise people always keep their chins up. (T/F)

Critical Thinking:

® What is the main theme of the poem?

Writing Skills:

Follow four basic steps in preparing a summary.
1. Reading:
A good reading helps to understand the original text.

2. Outlining:
Outlining helps you to compose a summary. For example: Noting the
author's purpose and the supporting details.

3. Checking:

By checking, necessary changes can be made at this stage.
4. Writing:

After final revision, summarize the text.

 Activiies: |

® Write a summary of the poem “To a Skylark”.

® Paraphrase the following lines.
To the last point of vision, and beyond,
Mount, daring warbler! — that love-prompted strain
(‘'Twixt thee and thine a never-failing bond),
Thrills not the less the bosom of the plain;
Yet might'st thou seem, proud privilege! to sing
All independent of the leafy Spring

91



Collect the data from different sources and write a research report on the
following topic.
# How does "tobacco use’' affect the human body?

Grammar:

Adjectives can be divided into the following kinds.
Adjective of Quality:

Examples:

1) Ali is a clever boy.
i) Ahmed is an intelligent student.

Adjective of Quantity:
Examples:
1) We have enough money.
i) The saint gave adequate advice.

Adjective of Number:

Examples:
i) There are many books in the shelf .
ii) Saima has ten rupees in her pocket.

Demonstrative Adjective:

Examples:
i) This boy studies in class ten.
ii) Those plants are fresh.

Possessive Adjective:

Examples:
i) That is his pen.
ii) My book is lost.

"9



6.  Distributive Adjective:

Examples:

i)
ii)

Each player was given a prize.
Every citizen must obey the traffic rules.

Make two sentences of each kind of adjective.

Comparison of Adjectives

There are three degrees of adjective for comparison.

1. Positive Degree

Example: ~ Ahmed is intelligent.

2.  Comparative Degree

Example: ~ Ahmed is more intelligent than Akram.

3. Superlative Degree

Example: ~ Ahmed is the most intelligent student of the class.

Write the missing degree of the given adjectives.

Positive degree Comparative degree Superlative degree
better best
intelligent

tall tallest

bad
higher highest

fast faster

brave
suitable

93




TWO OF AKIND

Adapted from: The Ventures by O' Henry

On completion of the unit, students will be able to:
answer the comprehension questions.
analyze the effect of irony in communication.
follow the order of adjectives in sentences.
identify and use the adjective phrases and clauses.

Have you ever been in any unexpected situation? Discuss.

(Two rich men in search of excitement dined at an expensive restaurant.
They had only two pennies between them.)

John Reginald Forster was bored. He was sitting in his club in New York city,
where he usually came late in the afternoon to have a drink before going to dinner.
Suddenly he got up and left the room. He got his hat and walked out to the street. He
felthe had to go away, somewhere. He wanted to meet someone who felt like he did.

At the end of an hour's walk, Forster stood at the corner of a wide avenue,
looking across it at an old hotel. Softly but beautifully lighted. He had to eat some
where, but it was no adventure to eat in that hotel. He knew it. He knew how
delightful the food was and how quick and attentive the waiters would be. The
dinner would be perfect, and he was so tired of perfect things!

Suppose he were to go to some cheap or even dangerous place far
downtown? Something might happen there; there might be a question without an
answer, a surprise for him. But he would need money. He began to search his
pockets. He felt in every one of the pockets of his dark business suit, but he did not
find a penny. He had a chequebook, and a bankbook showing more than ten
thousand dollars, but he had no money at all in his pockets.

A man nearby was watching Forster with amusement. He looked like any
thirty-year-old businessman waiting for a bus.

“Nothing at all?”” asked the man, coming nearer .

“Seems that way,” said Forster. “Now, I thought there wasadollarin...”

“I know,” said the other man with a laugh. “But it wasn't there.  had the same

94



experience myself just a few minutes ago. I looked in my pockets and found exactly
two pennies. What kind of dinner will two pennies buy?”

“You haven't had dinner, then?” asked Forster.

“No. But I would like to. Now, I'll suggest something to you. You look like a
man who would take a chance. Your clothes look proper and respectable. And I
think I can get into a good restaurant, too. Let's go over to the hotel across the street
and have dinner together. Let's choose like rich man — or, like rather poor gentlemen
who are having an expensive dinner for a special occasion. When we have finished,
we will toss one of my two pennies to see which of us will go to the head waiter and
tell him the truth - that we don't have any money at all. My name is Ives.”

"Fine," said Forster joyfully, happy to share in an adventure at last. "My
name is Forster."

The two men were soon seated at a corner table in the hotel dining-room.
Ives ordered the dinner. He began to name soft drinks and dishes with the calm care
of one who knew good food and drink. Forster, listening, gave admiring approval of
the order.

While eating the soup, Ives said, "I'm a man who has spent his life searching
for the unexpected thing. What I want is an adventure in which I cannot tell what is
going to happen. The world now is so dull that there is almost nothing you can begin
without knowing what the end will be. I don't want to know anything; I don't want to
reason about anything; I just want to do something without knowing what will
happennext.”

"I understand,” said Forster with delight. "You put into words what I have
often felt. I want to take chances on what's coming.

"Good," said Ives. "The restaurant will be even angrier with you for that. But
to return to what we were saying ... I returned to New York after travelling for three
years around the world. In other countries, everything is just the way it is here. I've
tried shooting dangerous animals in Africa. I know that I can kill them.. It feels
about as exciting as staying after school to do extra work."

"I know," repeated Forster. "I've felt it all. I haven't seen the world as you
have, but we agree. You know, I'm grateful for this little adventure of ours tonight.
There will be at least one breathless moment when the bill for the dinner is
presented. So, let's see which of us will tell the waiter that we have only two
pennies."

He threw up one penny. "Head or tail?" he asked.

"Head," called Ives.

"Heads it is," answered Forster, looking at the penny. "I lose. I suggest when

95



the waiter comes, you say that you have to telephone a friend. I will stay and look at
the bill long enough for you to get your hat and go. Thank you for such a strange
evening, Mr. Ives. I wish we could have others."

"I believe that the nearest police station is on McDougal Street," said Ives,
sighing. "I've enjoyed the dinner, too."

Forster motioned to the waiter, who came to the table and laid the bill by
Forster's coffee cup. Forster took it and added the figures with care. Ives leaned back
comfortably in his chair.

"Excuse me," said Forster, "but I thought you were going to call Grimes
about that play for Thursday night. Have you forgotten it?”

“Oh,” said Ives, setting himself more comfortably, “I can do that later. Get
me a glass of water, waiter.”

“You want to be here when I'm arrested, do you?” asked Forster.

“I'hope you don't mind,” said Ives. “Never in my life have I seen a gentleman
arrested in a public restaurant for not paying the bill.”

The waiter came back with the glass of water and remained, looking silently
down at the two men, Forster hesitated for a few moment, and then took a pencil
from his pocket and wrote his name on the bill. The waiter bowed and took it away.

“You see,” said Forester with a little laugh, “I have to confess something. I've
been having dinner at this hotel two or three times a week for more than a year. I
always sign my bills and pay by the month.”

“But,” he added, “it was kind of you to stay with me when you know I had no
money, and you might have been arrested, too.”

“I must confess too,” said Ives. “I own the hotel.”

About the Author

O' Henery (Pseud. Of William Sidney Ponter), (1862-
1910) U.S.A short story writer; known for the ironic twist
with which his stories characteristically end.

Reading and Thinking Skills:

1. Answer the following questions.
1) Who were Forster and Ives in the story? What did they want?
i) “Your clothes look proper and respectable”, what is meant by proper
and respectable?

96



iii)  Who was going to pay for the adventure?
iv)  Howare they going to pay the bill for an expensive dinner?
V) What are the two rich men in search of?
vi) Whydidn'tIves leave, as agreed, when the bill was presented?
vii) What was the purpose of asking for a glass of water?
viii) 'What did the two men have in common?
ix)  Whatisironic twist in the story?
X) Who was going to pay the bill at the end?
Choose the correct answer.
i) How much money Forster had in his pocket?
(a) twopennies.
(b) onedollar.
(c) nomoney.
(d) twopounds.
i)  Who was going to the head waiter to tell the truth that they had no
money?
(a) Mr Ives.
(b) Mr. Forster.
(¢) bothofthem.

(d) noone.
iii)  When they threw up the coin, who had lost the bet?
(a) Mr Ives.

(b) Mr. Forster.

(¢) Neither ofthem.

(d)  bothofthem sneaked away.
iv)  Whenthe waiter came, what happened?

(a) Ivespaidthebill.

(b)  Forster took a pencil and wrote his name on the bill.

(c)  Thewaiter called for police.

(d) IvesandForster were arrested.
V) ‘Who was the owner of the hotel?

(a) Forster.

(b) Ives.

(c) Neitherofthem.

(d)  Forster's Father.

97



vi)  Forster knew how delightful the food was and how quick
(a) themanagerwouldbe.
(b) thewaitress would be.
(c) thecookswouldbe.
(d) andattentive the waiters would be.
vii)  The two men were soon seated at a corner table
(a) inthehotel dining-room,
(b) inthelawn.
(¢) intheroom.
(d) inthecanteen,
viii) Forsterthrew up
(a) onepenny.
(b) onebottle.
(c) onecup.
(d) twopennies.
ix)  Ives,setting himself more comfortable, said,
() “Getmeasoftdrink, waiter.”
(b) “Getmeasoftdrink, waitress.”
(¢) “Getmeaglass of milk, waiter,”
(D) “Getmeaglass of water, waiter.”
x)  Forstertook apencil from his pocket and
(a)  wrotehisname onthebill.
(b)  wrotehis brother's name on the bill.
(c)  wrotehis account number.
(d) wrotehis bank's name.

Critical Thinking:

® Why were the two men pretending to be poor in the story?

Give an account of the little adventure Ives and Forster had?

98



Collect information from different sources and write a research report on the
following question.

o What are the causes and impacts of deforestation?

\ _Apsecrives

Position and Order of Adjective

Usually, adjectives precede a noun. There are three common positions.

i) Ahmed has just bought new cotton dress.

ii) The sky was quite red yesterday.

iii)  Your father looks Aappy this morning.

When two or more adjectives are used before a noun, they are often put in
this order:

Grammar:

1) size ii) age/temperature iii) shape
iv) colour V) origin vi) material
Example
. A smallred doll.
® Anew blue German car.

| Activity: |

Find the correct order of adjective.

i) young interesting man.

ii)  largebeautiful table.

iii)  athintall girl.

iv)  ablack small plasticbag.

V) a Russian old song.

vi)  awooden large beautiful round Pakistani table.
vii)  Apair ofleather black shoes.

viil)) Abigsquare blue box.

ix)  Littleblue, green and white house.
X) Abig, American, white dog.

99



Adjective Phrase

When a group of words without subject and predicate performs the function
of an adjective, it is called adjective phrase.

Examples:
i) He is aman of great honesty.
ii) She is a girl with loving nature.
Adjective Clause
An adjective clause is a clause which does the work of an adjective.
Example:

i) This is the pen which he gifted me.
ii) The time when the train will arrive is 10 o'clock.
iii) Do youremember the time when we missed the train?

1. Underline the adjective phrases in the following sentences.
i) The lady in the back of the caris Noreen.
iil)  The dogwith the long tail belongs to Nasir.
iii)  Idid not pick up the wallet lying on the floor.
iv)  Therunnerin the rear did not qualify.
V) Everyone was extremely delighted when the winner was
announced.
vi)  Eating outisusually not very healthy.
vii)) The movie was getting scarier and scarier.
viii)) Ilovethe taste of a sweet juicy peach.
ix)  Something in the corner was moving,
X) It was cold, bleak, biting weather,
2, Underline the adjective clauses in the following sentences:
1) The lady who is sitting in the back of the caris Noreen.
i)  Ipicked upawallet which was lying on the floor.
iii)  The dog that has a long tail belongs to Javed.
iv)  The runner who was last did not qualify.
V) Pizza, which most people love, is not a very healthy food.
vi)  Students who are intelligent get good grades.
vii)  The people whose names are on the list will go to the camp.
viii) Eco-friendly cars that run on electricity save gas.
ix)  Theboy, whose father is a principal, is my friend.
X) Fruit that is grown organically is expensive.

100



Revision 6 - 10

Reading and Thinking Skills:

Answer the following questions.

i)
i)

iii)
iv)
V)

vi)

vii)
viii)
ix)

X)

Why do trust and understanding hold great importance in any
relationships?

Why does the poet not give importance to physical beauty?

What was Vanka's promise to do for his grandfather?

‘What were the things which made Vanka unhappy?

Why is letter writing different from other styles of writings?

“The labour of extracting these essays is Herculean.” What does it
mean?

Why didn't Ives leave, as agreed, when the bill was presented?

What sort of bond do the skylark and its family have?

How is a skylark better than a nightingale?

‘What was the purpose of asking for a glass of water?

Choose the correct answer.

i)

ii)

iif)

When the poet says, “Love is not love which alters when it alteration

finds,” he means:

(a) lovechanges with each change in an object of affection.

(b)  true love endures in spite of changes in circumstances and
appearance.

(c) alovethatenduresis worthless.

(d) lovecanbealtered to fit any situation.

How can you tell that this poem is a sonnet?

(a)  itislyrical and uses figurative language.

(b) noneofthelinesthymed.

(c) itconsists of fourteen lines and follows a strict thyme scheme
and specific structure.

(d) noneoftheabove

What is the suggestion of the author?

(a) Inwriting one should use bombastic words.

101



iv)

vii)

viii)

(b)  Oneshould not be sincere when we write an essay.

(c)  One should use simple words and one word would normally
suffice instead of using two or three words.

(d) Noneoftheabove.

The characteristic of journalism is

(a)  constantoveremphasis.

(b)  happiness.

(c) sadness.
(d)  constantemphasis.
Who taught Vanka to read and write?

(a)  Hisfather.

(b) Hismother.

(c) MissOlga.

(d) His grandfather.

Why did Vanka go to Moscow?

(a) tobecomeamechanic.

(b) tobeapprenticed to Aliakin as a shoe maker.
(c) tolearnthetrade of a plumber.

(d) tostudymedicine.

The Skylark is

(a) thelarkthatsings while soaring.

(b) akindof beast.

(¢) anaquatic animal.

(d) noneoftheabove.

‘What is the fact about the Skylark?

(a) Itisasmall bird thatnestsinahole in the ground.
(b)  Abird that makesnestin a tree.

(c)  Abirdthatlays eggs in other birds nests.
(d) Itisamammal.

‘When they threw up the coin, who had lost the bet?
(a) Mr Ives.

(b) Mr Forster.

(c)  Neither ofthem.

(d) Bothofthemsneaked away.

The sonnet CX VI is written by

(a) JohnKeats.

(b)  William Shakespeare.

102



(c) William Blake.
(d) William Wordsworth.

3. Mark the sentences as True or False.

i) Aliakin was a shoemaker. (T/F)
iil)  Vankahadthree dogs. (T/F)
iii)  The Skylark sings melodious songs. (T/F)
iv)  'Aspire' means strive and rise higher. (T/F)
V) Forster and Ives did not have enough money in their pockets. (T/F)
vi)  The characteristic of journalism is sadness. (T/F)
vii)) Aman's writing style should be like his dress. (T/F)
viii) Miss Olga was Vanka's mother. (T/F)
ix)  Skylark and nightingale are same birds. (T/F)
X) Forster was the owner of the hotel. (T/F)

Critical Thinking:

4, Why did Forester and Ives hide their identity from each other?

5. Write a letter of complaint to railway station master about cancellation
of your reservation without any intimation.

6. Write an application for the job of computer programmer in a Software
Company.

7. Write antonyms of the following words.

Words Antonyms Words Antonyms
intelligent _ , ugly
brave , famous
hire _ , major
quiet , noisy
pessimist _ , fast

103



Change the following conditional sentences into the given type.

i) If you work hard you will succeed. (Type 1II)
ii)  If hecameIwould go with him, (TypeI)
iii)  If shehad a pen she would give it to you. (Type III)
iv)  If youcalledI would attend it. (Type 1)
V) If I (am) the minister of education, I (reform)
the examinationsystem. (Type I, 11, IIT)
vi)  If youplay tricks on people, they not
trust you again. (Type I)
vii) If you asked me to lend you some
money, been happy to help you. (Type-11T)
viii)) If Iwonamillion rupees inalottery, (Type II)
9. Write the missing degree of the given adjectives.
Positive degree Comparative degree Superlative degree
suitable
high
liberal
bad
good
slow
genius
generous

104




THE QUAKE JUMPERS

Rachef Redford

On completion of the unii, students will be able to:
+ engwer the comprehengion questions.

- wrile anessay.
+  uetrensitional devices.
» mnsedirectand indirectspeech,
* create and develop group/ class presentations.

# What do you kmow about the natoral calamitiez and their aftermaths?

On 8 QOctober 20085, a massive
earthquake measwring 7.6 on the
Richter scale erupted its epicenter in
Azpd Kashmir, It was as powerful as
the Quetta earthquake of 1935 and the
San Frenciaco earthquake in 1906,
and its effects were the most
catastrophic in large area of northemn
Pakigtan, The total death toll will
mbablynwerbaknﬂwnbutltlssa:dtubeatlﬂstsﬂﬂﬂllmthasmmypmpla
mjured. In one flattened school in northern Pakistan, 500 students died; elsewhers
1300 people died when 32,000 houses made of unreinforced concrete collapsed;
landslides buried entire villages in the Khyber Pakhtoon Khwa where 13,000
people died; in Islamabad a residential tower of sixty apartments collapsed. Three
million people were made homeless. The authoritics were faced with a
humanitarian crisia of titanic proportions, made even more critical in the
mountainous regions by the approaching winter,

It was these people m the remote mountain areas who posed the greatest
challenge to rescuers and aid workers. Convoys of relief ttucks with their intrepid
drivers set out daily from Muzaffarabad, winding up roads only recently cleared of
landslides, the asphalt in places hanging precipitously over the void. Butthe wheels

105



of the leading vehicles would often be left spinning in mud, stalling the whole
convoy and the loads would have to be transferred onto army trucks. Aid agencies
cleared some of the main valleys of landslides, and helicopters carrying supplies
had succeeded in landing in some places, but these valleys have many spurs, and
each spur has further spurs, each one with pockets of habitation. More than a month
after the earthquake, tens of thousands of people in inaccessible areas had still not
received any help. Those who live there are tough, resilient mountain people, but
thousands of them would soon die without shelter or food in the fast approaching icy
Himalayan winter.

Pakistani film-maker and mountain man, Nisar Malik, was in America
visiting his sick sister when he heard of the earthquake. He immediately returned to
Pakistan. With his expertise and knowledge of the mountain areas and their people,
he knew he could save some of them, but by joining up with the aid agencies, he
believed he could save hundreds of thousands of lives. Some aid agencies'
helicopters had been mobbed by desperate villagers, machine parts had been stolen,
and people had been injured by the rotor blades as they rushed forward to claim
supplies. Some flights had been cancelled as a consequence. Malik joined forces
with the World Food Programme (WFP) and formed Quake Jumpers, small, highly-
skilled units Pakistani mountain guides airlifted right into the mountainous disaster
areas by WFP helicopters. Malik knew and understood the villagers who make a
living by grazing their livestock and cultivating their crops. October is the month of
harvest and the earthquake struck just as they were bringing it down to sell. All they
have left now is their land. Malik's strategy was to airlift a Quake Jumpers' team into
remote villages before making any drop of aid.

The Quake Jumpers' teams talk to the people, assess their needs and make a
landing zone. The teams, made up of mountain climbers from Shimshal beyond
Hunza are provided with satellite communications equipment and high altitude
survival packs by the WFP, but these would be useless without their toughness and
courage. They are high altitude porters who can run with huge loads, and all have
climbed 8000 metre peaks. They teach the locals how to maintain their hastily made
helipad, how to unload and load a helicopter, and how to control the waiting people
so that casualties are avoided. The team then reports back to base through their
satellite phones and the supplies are then brought in by helicopter. "We fly seven
hours a day and have over 100 choppers. This is the largest air operation by
helicopters ever undertaken outside wartime, 'Malik said. It's a multinational effort
with Pakistan's own work helped by helicopters which can carry three tons of
supplies provided by the WFP, fabulously skillful Russian and Ukrainian pilots, and

106




the Red Crescent and the ICRC operating from helicopter bases in Abbottabad.

'We've made over twenty-two new landing zones in eighteen days and
distributed food in twenty of them,' said Malik speaking of his work in the Kaghan,
Jabori, and Alai Valleys. The support from the WFP has been phenomenal, and we
have forged links of trust between ourselves and the locals. We've been true to our
word-when we've dropped a team in the morning, supplies have arrived later the
same day. The only thing that can stop us is the micro weather systems in these
valleys-it can be fine in one valley but snowing in the next.' Malik's strategies are
consistently practical as well as life-saving: opening high altitude landing zones
above the villages enable people to slide the massive containers down the mountain
slopes, rather than haul them up. The Quake Jumpers are sharing their information
and expertise with other relief agencies so that they, too, can service the landing
zones through the winter. They will be working throughout the winter evacuating,
rescuing and trail breaking. The earthquake has caused the mountain to shift which
in spring will cause avalanches and landslides in areas where before there were
none. People living there will be at risk, but the Quake Jumpers aim to have been
fourteen four-man teams working through the winter to support them.

Thanks to Malik and his Quake Jumpers, many thousands of mountain
people who would otherwise have died will be able to resume their traditional way
of life in 2006.

About the Article

This article is about the response of one man, Nisar Malik, to the terrible plight of
the mountain people of Pakistan following the massive earthquake in October,
2005. By joining forces with the international aid agencies and forming his team
of “Quake Jumpers” he was helpful to save the lives of people living in remote
valleys.

1. Answer the following questions.
i) Why had the people in the remote mountain areas still not received
any aid a month after the earthquake? Give tworeasons.
ii) How did Mr. Nisar Malik respond, when he heard of the earthquake in
Pakistan?
iii)  Whyhad some aid-drops in the mountain area been slipped?

107



Name three qualities of the 'Quake Jumpers' team which enable them
to do their job efficiently.

How devastating was the earthquake of October, 2005 in north
Pakistan?

What difficulties were faced by the rescuers and aid workers?

How did the villagers make their living?

How many landing zones were made in eighteen days?

‘What was the only thing that could stop the Quake-Jumpers?

Why are the Quake Jumpers sharing their information and expertise
with other reliefagencies?

Choose the correct answer.

i)

i)

iii)

1v)

Richterscale is
(a) the scale of 0-10 for representing the strength of an
earthquake.

(b) thename ofaseismologist.

(c) thescale for measuring weather forecast.

(d) thescale for measuring the height of a building.

Where was Nisar Malik when the earthquake hit the northern part of
Pakistan?

(a) inEurope.

(b) inAmerica.

(c) inPakistan.

(d) inAzadKashmir.

What was the approximate death toll when the earthquake hit the
northern Pakistan in 20057

(a) atleast 80,000.

(b)  32,000.

(c) 1300.

(d) Twobillion.

‘What was collapsed in Islamabad?

(a) amedical college.

(b)  aresidential tower of sixty apartments.

(c) CNtower.

(d) AyubPark.

Apowerful earthquake hit Quetta in
(a) 2001.

108



(b)  1906.
() 1935,
d) 1978,

vi)  Theauthorities were faced with a humanitarian crisis of
(a) titanic proportions.
(b)  minorproportions.
(c)  smallproportions.
(d)  expensive proportions.
vii) Convoys of relief trucks with their intrepid drivers set out
(a) daily from Peshawar.
(b) daily fromIslamabad.
(¢) daily from Muzaffarabad.
(d) weekly from Muzaffarabad.
viil) More than a month after the earthquake, tens of thousands of people
in inaccessible areas had
(a) stillnotreceived gifts.
(b) stillnotreceived any help.
(c) receivedhelp.
(d) received food supply.
ix)  Malik joined forces with World Food Programme (WFP) and formed
(a) ahotel.
(b) acompany.
(c) aplay-ground.
(d) quake Jumpers.
X) The Quake Jumpers' teams talk to the people, assess their needs and

make

(a) apad

(b) alist.

(c) alandingzone.

(d) aplan.

e How can we prepare ourselves to minimize the aftermaths of naural
calamaties?

109



| ctiviy: |

Write an essay on 'The Traffic Problems in your city’.

The following points will help you in writing a general essay:

Write a clear introductory paragraph.

Provide key ideas which prove, explain or support the central thought.

Use a separate paragraph for each key idea.

Incorporate evidence (facts, quotation) examples or different points of view
(elaborating an idea/ opinion) to support each key idea.

Use appropriate transitional devices to connect ideas within or between
paragraphs.

Add aclosing or summary paragraph with a synthesis of central idea.

Use correct convention of grammar and punctuation.

Use appropriate vocabulary.

Write a research report on major earthquakes occured in Balochistan.

Transitional devices are words or phrases that connect parts of writing. They

show comparison, contrast, reason, condition, emphasis, concession etc.

Types Transitional Device
i) Comparison and As, asif, like, similarly, in comparison etc.
Contrast Yet, on the other hand, on the contrary, although,

1n contrast, etc.

ii) Reason Since, because, because of, due to, therefore etc.

iii) Condition If, unless, as long as, or etc.

iv) Emphasis Obliviously, in fact, indeed, positively, certainly,
never etce.

v) Concession Though, despite the fact, of course, still etc.

110



| Activity: |

Read the sentences and insert appropriate transitional devices:

He gives orders he were my boss.

a) if b) asif c) but d) although
He missed the train heavy snow.

a) because b) forinstance c) becauseof d) due
Samina decided to have a party , she won the title.

a) since b) if c) obviously d) of

Sadam is proud as aking.

a) certainly b) as c) and d) but

I'will wait the rain stops.

a) but b) like c) till d) because

It was raining he came to school.

a) like b) but c) because d) therefore
She was sick , she did not go to the picnic.

a) infact b) therefore c¢) onthe otherhand d) unless
You will not succeed you work hard.

a) unless b) or c) similarly d) if

Women usually enjoy shopping. , men often dislike it.

a) despite b) despite of ¢) incontrast d} while
Heisafatboy he runs very fast.

a) but b) like c) because d) because of

Change the narration of the following sentences.
1) Rabia said, “I don't like chocolate.”

11)  Mothersaid tome, “Don't stay out too late.”
iii)  Hesaid, “Please help me with this box.”

iv)  Hesaid, “Whata quaintbridge!”

V) I asked him, “Where are you going?”’

vi)  The stranger said to me, “Do you know the way to the nearest
hotel?”

vii} My father said to me, “All that glitters is not gold.”
viii} My friend says, “How are you feeling?”

ix)  Palwishasaid tome, “Iwentto the zoo yesterday.”
X) My friend said to me, “Let us play in the garden”.

111



Oral Communication Skills:

k Concept maps J
¢ Plan introduction

» Provide a clearly stated introduction.

¢ Use an “attention-getter” in the introduction .... A quote, an interesting fact or
statistic to your topic.

» Focus on your presentation, maintain eye contact. Do not talk to the screen, or
to your notes. Speak to the audience in a conversational tone. Talk with a clear
voice. Know your topic well. Use an outline as a prompt.

» Prepare a definite conclusion. That is, summarize your most important points
or quickly emphasize a couple of main ideas.

Prepare a class presentation on the following:
How would you deal with an unusually dangerous or difficult situation
such as earthquake, flood or drought?

112



SYMPATHY

(By Allama Iqbal adapted from a poem
by William Cowper- 1731-1800)

Students Learning Outcomes:

On completion of the unit, students will be able to:
» answer the comprehension questions.

* write apersuasive/argumentative essay.
o evaluate and use expressions for various functions and co-functions.
o agree/disagree politely.

» Have you ever helped a needy person in your life? Narrate it.

Perched on the branch of a tree

Was anightingale sad and lonely

"The night has drawn near", He was thinking
"I passed the day in flying around and feeding
How canIreachup to the nest

Darkness has enveloped everything"?
Hearing the nightingale wailing thus

A glow-worm lurking nearby spoke thus
"With my heart and soul ready to help I am
Though only an insignificant insect [am
Never mind if the night is dark

I shall shed light if the way is dark

God has bestowed a torch on me

He has given a shining lamp to me

The good in the world only those are

Ready to be useful to others who are

113

-




About the Author

Allama Muhammad Igbal (1877-1938) was bom in
Sialkot, Pakistan on 9" November, 1877, He is the National poet of
Pakistan and the poet of the East. He is the author of several works
in Urdu, Persian and English. He wrote many beautiful poems for
children. "Hamdardi' translated in English as *‘Sympathy’ is one of
the famous poems remembered by children by heart.

Reading and Thinking Skilis:

1. Answer the following questions.
i) Why was the nightingale sad?
ii)  Where was the nightingale sitting?
iify ~ Whowasready tohelp the nightingale?
iv)  Howhad the nightingale spenthis day?
v)  Whatdidthe glow-worm say to the nightingale?
vi)  Howwould the glow-worm help the nightingale?
vil) Whatdid the glow-worm say about itself?
viii} Why did the glow-worm decide to help the nightingale?
ix)  Whatis the main theme of the poem?
x)})  Whoarethe good people in the world?

2. Choose the correct answer.
1) The nightingale was sitting
(a) onamountain.
(b) onaflower
{c) onthebranchofatree.
(d ontheroofofahouse.
1))  Thenightingale passed the dayin
(a) flyingandeating,
(b) sleeping.
(c) cating.
(d) drinking and jumping.
iii)  “Darknesshasenveloped
(a) something.”
(b)  everything.”

114



(c) myhome.”

(d) mytree.”
iv)  Aglow-worm offered to the nightingale.
(a) food
(b)  water
(c) advice
(d)  Thelp

V) The glow-worm said, “I shall shed light if
(a) thestreetisdark.”
(b)  thejungleisdark™.
(c) thewayisdark.”
(d) theareaisdark.”
vi)  Theglow-worm shines

(a) inlight.
(b) incold.
(¢) inhot.

(d) indark.

vii) The glow-worm was
(a) readytojump.
(b) readytohelp.
(¢) readytocry.
(d) readytofly.

viii) The glow-worm was ready to help
(a) withheartandlegs.
(b)  withheartand hands.
(c)  with heartandsoul.
(d) withwings.

ix)  “Shininglamp” means
(a) courage.

(b) light
(c) fire.
(d) thunder.

X) We should always be ready to
(a) takeexercise.
(b)  helptheneedy people.
(c)  helptherichpeople.
(d)  helptheanimals.

115



Critical Thinking:

» Why have the human beings been given the title of “The supreme creature™?
Writing Skills:

Argumentative / Persuasive Essa

Keep in mind the following points when writing a composition of an

argumentative or persuasive nature.

Distinguish the fact from an opinion.

State an opinion on the topic

List ideas and arguments that support the opinion.

Organize ideas and supporting arguments in a clear, structured and logical

manner.

Distinguish between language used for persuasion and propaganda.

Use persuasive language to enhance ideas.

Use special devices to support arguments e.g. appeal to logic through

reasoning, appeal to emotion or ethical belief.

® Participate and respond to opposing arguments by defending point of view
with factual evidence, quotation, expert opinion, logical reasoning and
commonly held beliefs.

Write aresearch report on the following question.
¢  What measures can be taken to bring special children in the main stream of
our country?

® © @ o

Write an essay of 300 words on any one of the following topics.
1) People today are selfish and greedy. Do you agree?

i1) Television has too great an influence on our life today. What are your
views?
i)  “Scienceis more of amenace than ablessing”. What do you think?
Grammar:

Modal verbs are auxiliary verbs which perform special functions. They are;
can, could, may, might, shall, should, will, would, must, ought to, used to,
need and dare.

116



Use/Function Examples

1. Ability to do something in the present I can speak English.
(substitute form: to be able to)

2. Permission to do something in the present Can I go to the supermarket?
(substitute form: to be allowed to)

3. Request Can you wait amoment, please?
4. Offer I canlend you my car till tomorrow.
5. Suggestion Can we visit grandfather at the
weekend?
6. Possibility It can get very hot in Sibi.
Use/Function Examples
1. Ability to do something in the past I could speak English,

(substitute form: to be able to)
2. Permission to do something in the past  CouldI go to the market?
(substitute form: to be allowed to)

3. Polite question Could I go to market, please?
4. Polite request Could you wait a moment, please?
5. Polite offer I could lend youmy car till tomorrow.

Use/Function Examples
1. Possibility It may rain today.
2. Permission to do something in the present May I go to the market?
(substitute form: to be allowed to)

3. Polite suggestion May I help you?
Use/Function Examples

1. Possibility (less possible than may) It might rain today.

2. Hesitant offer MightIhelp you?

17|



Use/Function

1. Force,necessity
2. Possibility
3. Advice, recommendation

Imust go to the supermarket today.
Youmustbe tired.
Youmust take your breakfast daily.

Use/Function

Examples

1. Prohibition
(must is little stronger than may)

You must not work on father’s computer.

You may not work on father’s computer.

Use/Function

Examples

1. Something which is not
necessary.

I need not go to the supermarket, we are
going to restaurant tonight.

Use/Function

Examples

1. Advice
2. Obligation

You should drive carefully in bad weather.
You ought to switch off the lights when you
leave the room.

Function

Examples

1. Wish, request, demand, order
(less polite than would)

2. Prediction, assumption

3. Promise

4. Spontaneous decision

5. Habit

Will you please shut the door?

I think it will rain on Friday.

I'will be punctual.

Can somebody drive me to the bus stop?
_ Twill

She is strange, she will sit for hours without
talking.

118




Use/Function Examples
1. Suggestion Shall I carry you bag?
Use/Function Examples
1. Wish, request (more polite than | Would you please shut the door?
will)
2. Habitsinthe past. Sometimes he would bring me some flowers.

Use/Function Examples

1. It expresses bravery or courage. | How dare he speaks against me?

He does not dare to come here.

Make four sentences of each modal verbs, with different usage.
Fill in the blanks with the suitable modal auxiliary verbs.

1) It rain tomorrow.

i) _ Itakeyourbook for one day?

iii) I speak whenIwastwo years old.
iv). _ youplease openthe door?

V) My clothesaredirty.]  washthem.
vi) You_  stopsmokingoryou'll die.
vii) People  drivemore carefully.

viil) IwonderIfyou  help me.

Oral Communication Skills:

Arrange a debate contest on “Handsome is he that handsome does”. Ask the
students to prepare their speeches in favour or against the motion.

119

L%



POMPEII,
THE VANISHED CITY

(This pazsage s taken from: Time-iife Books 1982)

ﬂnmmpbﬂonnfthzun&,mdmtuwﬂllnnbleto
angwer the comprehension questions.
illustrate the use of adverbs.

identify and use adverbial phrases and clauses.
recognize varying positions of adverbs.

write aresearch report.

write aletter.

prepare themselves for job interview.

% ® B & & 4 B

In the middle years of the
first century A.D., Pompeii was a
prosperous and thriving city, only a
few days' journey by road from the
great city of Rome. It had about
20,000 residents, and was situated
on a well-waiered coastal plain
with particularly fertile aoil, o I -
bearing three or more crops a year. Thechmatcwasgenﬂemﬂlbnefwmtm long
springs and autumns, and summer days cooled by sea breczes. The nearby sea
offered a fine harvest for fishermen. Pompeii lay alongside the Sarmo River which
served as a highway to the interior. While ease and pleasure were very much in the
air, the hum of business was always audible. In addition to its role ag a trading link
between the Italian interior and the outside world, Pompeii was a regional centre for
cloth making and dyeing, and & home for many other craftsmen. But the cause of
Pompeii's destruction had been present all along. Above it loomed the volcano,
Mount Vesuvius, now beginning to stir after centuries of sleep, Vesuvius had
concealed its nature well. Riging to a height of only about 2,000 metres, the
moyntain had given no clear sign of threatening behavior through all of its recorded

120



history. Its upper slopes were sometimes warm, but this was hardly considered
menacing; few people were even aware that it was a volcano. It was innocently
cloaked in green, with pastures, orchards and vineyards spreading up its sides.
Understandably enough, no legend or folk-tale warned of its darker side the volcano
had not erupted in more than a thousand years.

However, all that while, tremendous pressure had been building up far
underground. Early in August of 79 A.D., tremors shook the countryside around
Vesuvius, accompanied by a deep rumbling sound that signalled the approaching
end of the volcano's long repose. Some people gathered their belongings and left for
safer ground. They were none too soon. During the very early morning of August
24, with a tremendous crack, the rocky crust that had long sealed the volcano gave
way under pressure and was blown into fragments, transforming Mount Vesuvius
into a giant cannon, open to the sky. It sent a vast mass of molten rock heavenwards,
which then rained down on Pompeii. During the early hours of the eruption, most of
the remaining population fled. Yet at least 2,000 people decided to stay, intimidated
by what was going on but unwilling to abandon their precious homes and profitable
business. Soon the volcano demonstrated a new way to kill. A hot cloud of
lightweight ash poured down the sides of the mountain, followed by rock fragments
made fluid by temperature as high as 400 degree Centrigrade. Pompeii escaped
these avalanches at first, but Vesuvius was still gaining strength and finally took
deadly aim at Pompeii, killing every person remaining there. The ash covered
everything that was left, burying the city in its final agony.

Through time, Pompeii almost completely slipped from the world's memory.
Even among scholars, the precise location of Pompeii remained unknown,
primarily because a thick flow of molten rock had poured over the area from
eruptions in later years. This had entirely altered the shape of the coast. Also, when
the digging to uncover the ruins began in the eighteenth century, the debris from
these excavations had been left scattered in heaps around the site, further obscuring
it. Rainwater, too, collected and had hastened its decay. These early excavators had
acted purely for the sake of plunder; they made no genuine effort to investigate the
past. This did not come about until the appointment in 1860 of the archaeologist
Fiorelli as director of the excavations.

Fiorelli set as his goal the total recovery of the vanished city of Pompeii.
His approach was the essence of discipline and orderliness. He removed all the
debris that had piled up during earlier excavations and installed a drainage system to
draw off the rainwater. He differed from previous archeologists because he was the
first to believe that systematic study of the ruins and all that they contained was

121



essential. Only in this way could their past history be thoroughly understood. After
tracing the perimeter walls, he mapped out the site and divided it into districts,
identifying individual buildings and carefully numbering them in a logical
sequence.

Bit by bit, as details accumulated and were pieced together, the long buried
past came alive. Because the city and its houses had been taken from the world
almost intact, they could be brought back almost whole. As the work proceeded,
Fiorelli made sure that every new object that emerged was given a precise
description, not just of its appearance and nature, but also of its position in relation
to other objects. He insisted that, whenever possible, new discoveries were left in
place rather than removed for shipment to a museum or storechouse. Not only
interior wall paintings were left intact, but also exterior notices, shop signs and even
graffiti.

As he worked, he recorded his progress in journals to help future
archaeologists, many of whom followed the lead set by Fiorelli. As a result of his
excavations, all manner of household items were found: eggs and fish were
discovered lying on a dining table, as well as pots containing meat bones. Personal
items of every kind turned up, like jewellary, cosmetics, perfume and combs. In a
way, voices could be heard as well, as the graffiti that were uncovered gave insight
into the lives of the citizens of Pompeii. Among these scribblings on the walls were
messages from lovers, personal attacks and casual observations on the world in
general. The excavation told a story of ordinary life stopped in its tracks.

And then there were the people themselves, recovered by a method that even
today still seems almost magical....

At Pompeii, volcanic ash had been the cause of a sort of preservation
miracle. During the later phases of the eruption, this ash enveloped many of the
victims and then solidified around them, leaving body-shaped cavities behind when
the flesh decayed. Fiorelli was the first to realize the possibility that there were
human remains buried in the ruins of the city, and that their impressions might have
been left deep in the sandy covering of volcanic ash.

The moment of discovery occurred in February 1863, when a workman
accidentally made a hole in a mound at the site. Fiorelli noticed that there was a
cavity of some sort. He ordered liquid plaster to be poured into the cavity and gave
time to solidify. He had the surrounding ash removed, revealing complete figure
that was uncannily life-like. Eventually, he was responsible for many victims being
uncovered by this technique, and people's fascination grew as the intimate details of
Pompeii's tragic story were disclosed. The plaster casts fixed the terror and

122



desperation of that long ago disaster in a kind of eternal present.

From the first cast created by Fiorelli in 1863 to the many others created by
archeologists since, these frozen images of death send a shock and a jolt to our sense
even so many centuries later. The rediscovery of Pompeii is one of archeology's
greatest stories, because from it has come not only an extraordinary scene of
disaster but also a precisely detailed and comprehensive picture of life in the
classical world. It was the destiny of Pompeii to speak to the future with
unsurpassed clarity —a destiny that involved a terrible doom.

Reading and Thinking Skills:

1. Answer the following questions.

i)
i)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)
viii)
ix)

X)

What was it that first sent people fleeing from Pompeii?

How was Pompeii city before destruction?

Explain why some people chose to stay in Pompeii?

What finally caused the death ofthose who stayed in Pompeii?
Suggest the reasons why Fiorelli insisted that discoveries were left in
place and not moved to museum.

What two features of its position made Pompeii an ideal trading link
between the Italian interior and outside the world?

Why were some people reluctant to leave Pompeii?

Why was Pompeii skipped away from the world's memory till 18607
What is the significance of the rediscovery of Pompeii?

How was a hole made in a mound at a site?

2. Choose the correct answer.

I

if)

What is the fact about Pompeii city?

(a)  Onceitwas aprosperous city which destroyed in 79 A.D.

(b)  Its inhabitants already knew that a volcano was going to erupt
anytime.

(¢) Itwasaprosperous city of Denmark.

(d) Itwasdestroyedin20B.C.

During the early hours of eruption of lava

(a) everyonefled.

(b) 2000 people decided to stay.

(c) nobodyleftthe city.

(d) 5000 residents decided to stay.

123



iii)

iv)

vii)

viii)

Pompeii was situated near
(a) Paris.

(b) Rome.

© London.

(d) Tokyo.

The height of Mount Vesuvius is

(a) about2000 meters.

(b) 5000 meters.

(c) 1500 meters.

(d) 100 meters.

Fiorelli was

(a) anarcheologist.

(b) anastronomer.

(c)  anarchitect.

(d) aplumber.

The climate of Pompeii was

(a)  gentle with brief winters.

(b)  gentle with severe winters.

(c) severecold.

(d) severehot.

Pompeii was a regional centre for

(a) capsmaking and dyeing.

(b)  shoesmaking.

(c) clothmaking and dyeing,

(d)  Jackets making.

During the early hours of the eruption,

(a) mostofthe remaing population stayed.
(b)  Mostofthe remaining population fled.
(c) Mostofthe population died.

(d) Mostofthe population gotinjured.
Not only interior wall paintings were left intact,
(a) butalsothe train signs.

(b)  butalsotheroad signs.

(c)  butalsotheshopsigns.

(d) butalsoexterior notices, shop signs and even graffiti.
The early excavators had acted purely

(a) forthe sake of knowledge.

(b)  forthe sake of plunder.

(c¢) forthesakeofgold.

(d) forthe sake of silver.

124



3. Mark the sentences as True or False.

i) 'Graffiti' means writings or drawings on a surface in a (T/F)
public place.

ii) Fiorelli was the first archeologist who studied the ruins of (T /F)
Pompeii systematically.

iii) 2000 people decided to stay because they didn't want to (T /F)
abandon their precious homes and business.
iv) The early excavators had acted purely for the sake of (T/F)

plunder.

V) The re-discovery of Pompeii does not tell anything about (T /F)
the city.

vi)  Pompeii was a prosperous and thriving city. (T/F)

vii)  The volcano had not erupted in more than a thousand years. (T /F)

viii) Ahot cloud of lightweight ash poured down the side of the (T /F)
plains.

ix)  John set as his goal the total recovery of the vanished city (T /F)
Pompeii.

X) Fiorelli was the first to realize the possibility that therewere (T / F)
human remains buried in the ruins of the city.

Critical Thinking:

e Why should we take precautionary steps before a disaster occurs?

Grammar:
Adverb
Adverb is a word which tells more about a verb, an adjective or another adverb.
Examples:

i) Mr. Naeem teaches English devotedly.
ii) The weather is oo hot, today.
iii)  Ourcricketteam played very well.

NOTE: An adverb is used to express manner, time, place, reason or cause
of anaction.

Adverbial Phrase

An adverbial phrase is a group of words without subject and predicate, which
performs the function of an adverb.
Examples:

1) The tiger ran with great speed.

i1) He spoke in soft manner.

125



iii)  She was cooking food at that moment.

Adverb clause

An adverb clause is a dependent clause which works as an adverb.
Examples:

1) As soon as the train left, he reached the station.

i1) The patient had died when the doctor came.

1ii)  Hecouldnot go outside because it was raining heavily.

iv)  Shestudied hard in order that she could pass the exams.

V) You can go on picnic wherever you want.

vi)  Ifwestudy round the clock, we will get good marks.

Identify the adverbial phrases or clauses in the following sentences.
1) He switched on the radio so that he could listen to the news.

i1) His brother arrived in the evening.

iii)  Hearrived before the game started.

iv) My family had shifted to another place.

V) He will get a good job when he graduates.

vi)  Weshould not speak in a rude manner.

vii) Evenifwe hurry, we may not getthere on time.

viii) Aslamkept the books on the shelf.

ix)  The frightened child ran away as fast as he could.

Position of Adverbs
We can put adverbs in different positions in sentences. There are three main
positions but also a lot of exceptions.
The three main positions of adverbs in English sentences:
1. Adverbatthebeginning of a sentence
Unfortunately, we could not see Mount Everest.
2. Adverbinthe middle of a sentence
The children often ride their bikes.
3. Adverbattheend of a sentence
Shaziareads a comic story every afternoon.

126



Insert the given adverbs in their normal position in the following sentences.

i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)
viii)

Students play an important role in the development of a society. (always)
I am sorry. (terribly)

My brother speaks English. (well)

She has seen a Kangaroo. (never)

They have to get up early. (usually)

Thebus is going. (fast)

My teacher writes. (quickly)

I gotolibrary. (daily)

‘We missed the train. (unfortunately)

He takes a morning walk. (every morning)

Writing Skills:

Write a letter to your friend suggesting him / her to opt information technology
(IT) for his / her future career.

® Collect information from different sources about any historical place in
Pakistan and write a research report on it.

Oral Communication Skills:

Preparing For Job Interview

Do's and Don'ts for an Interview.

Do take a practice run to the location where you are having the interview —
or otherwise be sure you know exactly where it is and how long it takes to get
there.

Do your research and know the type of job interview you will encounter.
And do prepare and practice for the interview, but don't memorize or over-

rehearse your answers.
Do dress the part for the job, the company, the industry.
Do plan to arrive about 10 minutes early. Late arrival for a job interview is

never excusable. If you are running late, do phone the company.

127



Do greet the receptionist or assistant with courtesy and respect.
Don't chew gum during the interview.
If presented with a job application, do fill it out neatly, completely, and

accurately.

Do bring extra resumes to the interview. (Even better, if you have a job-skills
portfolio, do bring that with you to the interview.)

Do greet the interviewer(s) by title (Ms., Mr., Dr.)

Do shake hands firmly. Don't have a limp or clammy handshake!

Do wait until you are offered a chair before sitting. And do remember body
language and posture: sit upright and look alert and interested at all times.
Don't fidget or slouch.

Don't tell jokes during the interview.

Do make good eye contact with your interviewer(s).

Do show enthusiasm in the position and the company.

Do brush your teeth, use mouthwash, or have a breath mint before the
interview.

Do avoid using poor language, slang, and pause words (such as “like,” “uh,”
and “um”).

Don't be soft-spoken. A forceful voice projects confidence.

Do have a high confidence and energy level, but don't be overly aggressive.
Don't act as though you would take any job or are desperate for employment.
Do avoid controversial topics.

Don't say anything negative about former colleagues, supervisors, or
employers.

Do make sure that your good points come across to the interviewer in a
factual, sincere manner.

Don't ever lie. Answer questions truthfully, frankly and succinctly. And don't
over-answer questions,

Do stress your achievements. And don't offer any negative information
about yourself.

Don't answer questions with a simple “yes” or “no”. Explain whenever
possible.

128



o Do show off the research you have done on the company and industry when

responding to questions.
. Don'tbring up or discuss personal issues or family problems.
. Do remember that the interview is also an important time for you to evaluate

the interviewer and the company she represents.

. Don't respond to an unexpected question with an extended pause or by
saying something like, “boy, that's a good question.” And do repeat the
question aloud or ask for the question to be repeated to give you a little more
time to think about an answer. A short pause before responding is okay.

° Do always conduct yourself as if you are determined to get the job you are
discussing. Never close the door on an opportunity until you are sure about it.

° Don't answer cell-phone calls during the interview, and do turn off (or set to
silentring) your cell phone.

° Do show what you can do for the company rather than what the company can
do for you.

° Don't inquire about salary, vacations, bonuses, retirement, or other benefits

until after you've received an offer. Be prepared for a question about your
salary requirements, but do try and delay the salary talk until you have an
offer to join.

° Do close the interview by telling the interviewer(s) that you want the job and
asking about the next step in the process.

o Do try to get business cards from each person you interviewed with — or at
least the correct spelling of their first and last names. And don't make
assumptions about simple names regarding their spellings.

o Do immediately take down notes after the interview concludes so you don't
forget crucial details.

Ask a student to act as an interviewer and the second student to as a candidate and
conduct a job interview in pairs.

129



UN“-IIII.IIII---.IIIIIII
14 EEEREz] JOINEEEEEN

HEN|
Students Learning Outcomes:

HEENR|
On completion of the unit, students will be able to:
¢ answer comprehension questions.
write summary of the poem.
use future continuous, future perfect and future perfect continuous tenses.
write and practice dialogues.

¢ How the faith in God keeps alive hope in our mind?

IT was roses, roses, all the way,

With myrtle mixed in my path like mad:

The house-roofs seemed to heave and sway,
The church-spires flamed, such flags they had,
A year ago on this very day.

The air broke into a mist with bells,
The old walls rocked with the crowd and cries.
Had I said, “Good folk, mere noise repels—

But give me your sun from yonder skies!”
They had answered, “And afterward, what else?”

Alack, it was I who leaped at the sun

To give it my loving friends to keep!
Naught man could do, have I left undone:
And you see my harvest, what I reap
This very day, now a year is run.

There's nobody on the house-tops now—
Just a palsied few at the windows set;
For the best of the sight is, all allow,

130



At the Shambles' Gate—or, better yet,
By the very scaffold's foot, I trow.

I go in the rain, and, more than needs,

A rope cuts both my wrists behind;

And I think, by the feel, my forehead bleeds,
For they fling, whoever has a mind,

Stones at me for my year's misdeeds.

Thus I entered, and thus I go!

In triumphs, people have dropped down dead.
“Paid by the world, what dost thou owe
Me?”—God might question; now instead,
'Tis God shall repay: I am safer so.

About tha Author

Robert Browning was an English poet and playwright of
the Victorian age. He was widely recognized as a master of
dramatic monologue and psychological portraiture. The study of
buman mind and soul is Browning's dominant interest in the
writing of poetry. His other famous poems are:

'My Last Duchess', 'Rabbi Ben Ezre' and The Last Ride
Together'. He is a robust optimist. He has also written "Divine'
pocIms.

About the Poem

'The Patriot' is a brilliant piece of dramatic verse, It deals with the fickleness of
public opinion and hero worship. The same people who lift you up to the skies will also
fall you down into the ditch,

The speaker of the poem is a patriot. He thinks of his glorious past. A year ago he
was given a grand welcome on his arrival to the town.

But everything has changed now. The patriot is being taken to the scaffold for all
his 'misdeeds’. People are throwing stones at him. What an ill-fate to a man who spent all
hig life for his countrymen! The patriot is optimist. He hopes that since he did notreceive
his reward in this world, he will be rewarded in the world hereafler.

131



Answer the following questions.

i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)
viii)
ix)

How did the countrymen welcome their hero at the beginning?
How was the patriot's arrival announced?

Why did the public change their attitude?

“Good folk, mere noise repels, But give me your sun from yonder
skies!”What do you infer from these lines?

Do you think the poet is optimist? Give reasons in support of your
answer.

How was the patriot being taken to the scaffold?

How was he treated this time?

Why was the patriot bleeding?

Where will the patriot be rewarded?

Choose the correct answer.

i)

i)

iii)

iv)

The speaker in the poem thinks

(a)  ofhis glorious past.

(b)  abouthis family.

(c¢)  abouthis friends.

(d) nothing.

How does the patriot know that his forehead bleeds?
(a)  hetouches his forehead.

(b)  hecansee the blood running down.

(¢) bythefeel.

(d) someone hastold him.

When the patriot was unpopular, how did the people react?
(a) whoeverhad mind, hit him with stones.

(b) theyshowednoreaction.

(¢) theystillloved him.,

(d) theyscattered roses on his way.

Ayearago, he was given

(a) agrand welcome on his arrival.

(b)  agrand welcome on his departure.

(¢) agrand welcome on his marriage.

(d) agrand welcome at his office.

132



vii)

The house roofs were full of people who
(a)  wantedto play with him.

(b)  wantedtoinvite him.

(c) wantedto gowithhim.

(d) wantedtohavea lookathim.
But everything has

(a) beensoldnow.

(b) changednow.

(c) purchasednow.

(d) burntnow.

There is nobody on

(a) themountains now.

(b) thetreesnow.

(c) thehouse-tops now.

(d) thetablesnow.

Re-read the poem and write down the missing words in each line.

i)

i)

iii)

v)

The air broke into a mist with

(a)  shells. (b) bells.
(c) wells. (d) smell.
Alack, it was Iwho leaped at the

(a) run. (b) fun

(c) sun (d hen.

I go in the rain, and, more than

(a) breeds. (b) needs.

(c) feed. (d) read.

Thus I entered, and thus I

(a) go. (b) owe.

(c) blow. (d flow.

Just a palsied few at the windows

(a) yet. (b)  set.

(c) let. (d) met.

With myrtle mixed in my path like

(a) mad.

(b) sad.

(c) bad.

(d) dad.

133



vii)  Ayearago on this very

(@ play
() slay
(c) day
(d may
viii) To give it my loving friends to
(@  peep!
(b)  sheep!
(c) leap!
(d  keep!
ix)  Thisveryday,nowayearis
(a fun.
(b) tumn.
(c) run
(d learn.
X) Tis God shall repay: I am safer
(a) so.
(b) no.
(c) know.

@ low.

*  Why should we be loyal to our country?

» What is the main theme of the poem?
e Paraphrase the first three stanzas of the poem.
® Write down summary of the poem.

Write a research report on the achievements of any one of the greatest
scientists of Pakistan.

1. Future continuous tense
We can use the future continuous to say that something will be goingon ata
certain time in the future.

134



Example
This time tomorrow, I will be playing hockey.
2.  Future perfect
We can use the future perfect to say that something will have been completed
by a certain time in the future.
Example
The builder says, “He will have finished the roof by Saturday™.

3.  Future perfect continuous

It indicates an action a part of which will be completed at some point in
future and the rest will be continuous.
Example

They'll have been doing this work for three days tomorrow.

For each sentence, put one of the verbs in bracket in the simple future and the

other in the future continuous tense.

i) Nazish (attend) the party tonight. She (wear) hernew dress.

iil) My friend (arrive) by plane at five o'clock. I (wait) for him at the airport.

iii)  I(be)back inhalfan hour. You (stay) until then.

iv)  I(notbe)awake when you leave in the morning, I (sleep).

V) Hira (be) at home the whole morning. She (help) her mother with the
cleaning of the house.

i) Write dialogues showing offer and respond to greetings, compliments,
invitations, introductions and farewells.

ii)  Practise the same dialogues in the class in pairs.

135



SIMBA: SIMBA

(Adapted from Going Solo by Aroald Dahl)

Students Learmning Outcomes:

On completion of the unit, students will be able to:

answer the comprehension questions.
narrate the story.

complete the cloze passage.

punctuate the given paragraph.
recognize and rectify faulty sentences.
share and discuss their problems.

‘ mﬁ :;;3. i&.;{#{ég

» Have you ever had a thrilling experience in your life?

L ]

The District Officer in Tabora was called
Robert Sanford, a man in his early thirties who had
a wife and three very small children, a boy of six, a
girl of four and a baby.

That evening, I was sitting on the veranda
having a drink with Robert Sanford and his wife
Mary, while two of the children were playing out
on the grass in front of the house under the
watchful eye of their black nurse. The heat of the
day was becoming less intense as the sun went e
down. e

“So what's been going on in Dar-us-Salaam?” Robert Sanford asked me.
“Anything exciting?”

I told him about the poisonous black mamba and my servant Salimu.

When I had finished, Mary Sanford said, “We had a spitting cobra near our
back door notlong ago. Robert shot it,”

“Do you like this sort of life?” I said to Robert Sanford, changing the topic.

“I love the freedom,” he said. “I administer about two thousand square miles of
territory and I can go where I want and do more or less as I please. That part of it is
marvellous.”

136



We sat there watching the sun go down behind the flat brown plain that was
covered with thorn trees, and we could see the sinister vultures waiting like
feathered undertakers for death to come along and give them something to work on.

Suddenly, the voice of a man yelling in Swahili exploded into the quiet of the
evening. It was my boy, Mdisho. “Bwana! Bwana!” he was yelling from somewhere
behind the house. “Simba, bwana! Simba! Simba!”

Simba is Swahili for lion. All three of us leapt to our feet, and the next
moment Mdisho came tearing round the corner of the house yelling at us in Swabhili,
“Come quick, bwana! Come quick! A huge lion is eating the wife of the cook!”
Robert Sanford flew into the house and came out again in five seconds flat holding a
powerful rifle and ramming a cartridge into the breech. “Get those children
indoors!” he shouted to his wife as he ran down off the veranda with me behind him.

Mdisho was dancing about and pointing towards the back of the house and
yelling in Swahili, “The lion has taken the wife of the cook and the lion is eating her
and the cook is chasing the lion and trying to save his wife!”

“Where is it?”” Robert Sanford shouted, but he had no need to ask, for we very
quickly spotted the massive sandy-coloured lion not more than eighty or ninety
yards off and trotting away from the house. He had a fine bushy collar of fur around
his neck, and in his jaws he was holding the wife of the cook. The lion had the
woman by the waist so that her head and arms hung down on one side and her legs on
the other, and I could see that she was wearing a red and white spotted dress. The
lion, so startlingly close, was loping away from us in the calmest possible manner
with a slow, long-striding, springy lope. Behind the lion, not more than the length of
a tennis court behind, ran the cook himself in his white cotton robe, running most
bravely and waving his arms like a whirlwind, leaping, clapping his hands,
screaming, shouting “Simba! Simba! Let go of my wife! Let go of my wife!”

It was a scene of great tragedy and comedy both mixed up together, and now
Robert Sanford was running full speed after the cook who was running after the
lion. He was holding his rifle in both hands and shouting to the cook, “Pingo! Pingo!
Get out of the way, Pingo! Lie down on the ground so I can shoot the Simba! You are
inmy way! You are in my way, Pingo!”

But the cook ignored him and kept on running, and the lion ignored
everybody, not altering his pace at all but continuing to lope along with slow springy
strides and with the head held high and carrying the woman proudly in his jaws,
rather like dog who is trotting off with a good bone.

Both the cook and Robert Sanford were travelling faster than the lion who

137



really didn't seem to care about his pursuers at all. And as for me, I didn't know what
to do to help them so I ran after Robert Sanford. It was an awkward situation because
there was no way that Robert Sanford could take a shot at the lion without risking a
hit on the cook's wife, let alone on the cook himself who was still right in his line of
fire.

The lion was heading for one of those hillocks that was densely covered with
jungle trees and we all knew that once he got in there, we would never be able to get
at him. The incredibly brave cook was actually catching up on the lion and was now
not more than ten yards behind him, and Robert Sanford was thirty or forty yards
behind the cook. “Ayee!” the cook was shouting, “Simba! Simba! Simba! Let go my
wife! I am coming after you, Simba!”

Then Robert Sanford stopped and raised his rifle and took aim, and I thought
surely he is not risking a shot at a moving lion when it's got a woman in its jaws.
There was an almighty crack as the big gun went off and I saw a spurt of dust just
ahead of the lion. The lion stopped dead and turned his head, still holding the
woman in his jaws. He saw the arm-waving shouting cook and he saw Robert
Sanford and he saw me and he had certainly heard the rifle shot and seen the spurt of
dust. He must have thought an army was coming after him because instantaneously,
he dropped the cook's wife on the ground and broke for cover. I have never seen
anything accelerate so fast from a standing start. With great leaping bounding
strides he was in among the jungle trees on the hillock before Robert Sanford could
ram another cartridge into his gun.

The cook reached the wife first, then Robert Sanford, then me. I couldn't
believe what I saw. I was certain that the grip of those terrible jaws would have
ripped the woman's waist and stomach almost into two, but there she was sitting up

on the ground and smiling at the cook, her husband.
“Where are you hurt?” shouted Robert Sanford, rushing up.
The cook's wife looked up at him and kept smiling, and she said in Swabhili,

“That old lion he couldn't scare me. I just lay there in his mouth pretending I was
dead and he didn't even bite through my clothes. “She stood up and smoothed down
her red and white spotted dress which was wet with the lion's saliva, and the cook
embraced her and the two of them did a little dance of joy in the twilight out there on
the great brown African plain.

Robert Sanford just stood there gaping at the cook's wife.

138



Reading and Thinking Skills:

Answer the following questions.

1) Why did Robert Sanford order the cook to be down?
i1) Why did the lion leave the Cook’s wife unharmed?
111)) Whywasitascene of great tragedy and comedy?
iv)  Whydid the cook's wife pretend to be dead in the lion's month?
V) What is meant by “sinister vultures waiting like feathered
undertakers for death™?
vi)  Whatis meant by ‘stopped dead’?
vii)) Why did the cook's wife remain unhurt?
viii)) Why was it an awkward situation?
ixX)  Whatdoes'Simba” mean in Swahili?
X) How many people were chasing the lion?
Choose the correct answer.
1) Robert Sanford had
(a) foursmall children. (b) nochildren.
(c) threesmall children. (d) bigchildren.
ii) Swahili is a language widely used by
(a) atribeinAfrica. (b) aborigines.
(c) theChinese. (d) the Dutch.
iii)  Thelionhad taken away
(a) thebabyofthecook. (b) thecook'swife.
(c¢) RobertSanford'swife. (d) the wife of the narrator of the story.
iv)  Thewife ofthe cook was
(a) woundedbythelion. (b) killedby thelion.
(¢) unhurtandunharmed. (d) veryscared.
V) Simba in Swahili language means
(a) crocodile. (b) lion.
(c) cobra, (d) boa.
Mark the sentences True or False.
i) Ahuge lion ate up the wife of the cook. (T/F)
ii)  Thecook's wife had a strange escape from a huge lion. (T/F)
iii)  The grip of the terrible jaws of the lion had wounded the
cook's wife. (T/F)
iv)  Thelion was killed by Robert Sanford. (T/F)

139



V) The cook was overjoyed when he found his wife safe and

sound. (T/F)
vi)  Mdisho said, “ A big wolf is eating the wife of the

cook™. (T/F)
vii)  Thelion had a fine bushy collar of fur around his neck. (T/F)
viii) The lion, so startlingly close, was loping away from us in

the calmest possible manner. (T/F)
ix)  Itwasa great scene of tragedy and sadness. (T/F)
X) The incredibly brave cook was not actually catching up on

the lion. (T/F)

Critical Thinking:

® Why was Robert Sanford unable to shoot the lion?

Writing Ski "5:_ Cloze Passages
A cloze passage
¢ Narrate the story in your own words. is a passage with

e Fill the blank spaces with the given words. blank spaces in

it. The blank
shot still fire awkward faster ?gzc;isl;ccur B
pursuers way risking care intervals.

Both the cook and Robert Sanford were travelling than the lion who
really didn't seem to about his at all. It was an situation
because there was no that Robert Sanford could take a at the lion
without but on the cook’s wife, let alone on the look himself who was

right in his line of ;

Use the following words in your sentences making the meaning clear.
i) awkward ii) incredible ili)  massive
iv)  charging V) pretend

Write aresearch report on the following question.
» Which olympic events were practised in ancient Greece?

140



1. Write down the correct form of the verb in each sentence.
i) The heat of the day (become) less intense as the sun (go) down.
ii) The cook and Robert Sanford (travel) faster than the lion.
iii)  The cook (reach) the wife first, then Robert Sanford, then me.
iv)  Thecook's wife looked up at him and (keep) smiling.
V) The lion (has) a fine bushy collar of fur around his neck, and in his jaws he
was (hold) the wife of the cook.
2. Punctuate the following paragraph.
it was a scene of great tragedy and comedy both mixed up together and now
robert sanford was running full speed after the cook who was running after the lion
he was holding his rifle in both hands and shouting to the cook pingo. pingo get out
of the way pingo lie down on the ground so I can shoot the simba you are in my way

you are in my way pingo.
& Correct the following faulty sentences.
i) I saw five times that film. (word order)
ii) An accident ocurred. (spelling)
iii)  whatdidhesay. (punctuation mistake})
iv)  ITamstudying english. (punctuation mistake})
V) Jabbar entered to the university. (punctuation)
vi)  Isawabeauty picture. (word form)
vii) Heishere since March. (verbtense)
viii) [wenttobed. Because Iwas tired. (incomplete sentence)
ix) HeisaM.A. (article)
X) He got on the taxi. (word choice)

Oral Communication Skills:

Group-Activity

Divide the class into different groups asking students to discuss the problems they
are facing in their college.

141



Revision 11 - 15

Answer the following questions,

i)
if)

iii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)
viii)
iX)

x)

Why had some aid-drops in the mountain area been slipped?
Name three qualities of the 'Quake Jumpers' team which enable
them to do their job efficiently.

Who was ready to help the nightingale?

How had the nightingale spent his day?

Why were some people reluctant to leave Pompeii?

Why was Pompeii skipped away from the world's memory till 18607
How was the patriot being taken to the scaffold?

How was he treated in the beginning?

Why did the cook's wife remain unhurt?

Why was it an awkward situation?

Choose the correct option.

i)

if)

iii)

iv)

Apowerful earthquake hit Quetta in:
(a) 2001.
(b) 1906,
(¢) 1935.
(d 1978

The authorities were faced with a humanitarian crisis of
(a) titanic proportions.

(b)  minorproportions.

(c)  smallproportions.

(d) expensiveproportions.

A glow-worm offered to the nightingale.
(a) food

(b)  water

(¢) advice

(d)  help

The glow-worm said, “I shall shed light if
(a) thestreetisdark.”
(b) thejungleisdark™.

142



vi)

vii)

vii)

(c) thewayisdark.”
(d) theareaisdark.”

Pompeii was situated near
(a) Paris.

(b) Rome.

(c) London.

(d) Tokyo.

The height of Mount Vesuvius is

(a) about2000 meters.

(b) 5000 meters.

(c) 1500 meters.

(d) 100meters.

‘When the patriot was unpopular, how did the people react?
(a) Whoeverhad mind, hit him with stones.
(b)  Theyshowednoreaction.

(c)  Theystill loved him.

(d)  They scattered roses on his way.
Ayearago, he was given

(a) agrand welcome on his arrival.

(b)  agrand welcome on his departure.
(c) agrand welcome on his marriage.
(d) agrand welcome at his office.

The lion had taken away

(a) thebabyofthe cook.

(b)  thecook's wife.

(c)  Robert Sanford's wife.

(d) thewife of the narrator of the story.
The wife of the cook was

(a) woundedby thelion,

(b)  killed by thelion.

(¢)  unhurtand unharmed.

(d) veryscared.

Mark the sentences as true or false.

i)
i)

'Graffiti' means writings or drawings on a surface in a
public place.
A huge lion ate up the wife of the cook.

143

(T/F)

(T/F)



iii)  The cook was overjoyed when he found his wife safe and

sound. (T/F)
iv)  Pompeii was a prosperous and thriving city (T/F)
v)  Mdisho said, “A big wolf is eating the wife of the (T/F)
cook”,
vi)  The re-discovery of Pompeii does not tell anything about (T /F)
the city.

vii)  The volcano had not erupted in more than athousand years. (T /F)
viii) Ahot cloud of lightweight ash poured down the side ofthe (T /F)

plains.

ix)  John set as his goal the total recovery of the vanished city (T /F)
Pompeii.

X) The lion had a fine bushy collar of fur around his neck. (T/F)

° Why should we be kind and helpful to others?

4. Change the narration of the following sentences.
i) He said tome, “What is your name?”
ii) Akmal said to me, “When did you arrive in Sibi?”
iii)  Shesaid, “Will youhelp me?”
iv)  Hesaid, “Whata quaint bridge!”
V) I asked him, “Where are you going?”’
vi)  Thejudge said, “Call the first witness.”
vii) My father said to me, “Your English is excellent.”
viil)) My friend says, “How are you feeling?”
ix)  The gardenersaid, “Do not pluck the flowers.”
X) Bilal said, “I am sick.”

5. Fillin the blanks with the suitable modal auxiliary verbs.

1) I speak English very well.

ii) He not attend the meeting yesterday.
i) We respect our teachers and parents.
iv) you please open the door?

V) My clothes are dirty. I wash them,

144



vi)
vii)
viii)
ix)

X)

Why you talk like this to your teacher?
People drive more carefully.
I'wonderIfyou help me.

They not come today.

I go to supermarket today.

Change the following sentences into future continuous tense.

i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
V)
vi)
Vii)
viii)
ix)

x)

I'will work hard.

They will help the poor and needy people.

We will attend the class regularly.

She will work on computer.

Youwill attend IT classes.

They will not cheat him.

The teacher will explain the structure to us.

The students will ask questions about information technology.
They will not sleep in the park.

We will cooperate with one another.

Write down the correct form of the verb in each sentence.

i)

ii)
iii)
iv)

V)

The heat of the day (become) less intense as the sun (go) down.
The cook and Robert Sanford (travel) faster than the lion.

The cook (reach) the wife first. Then Robert Sanford, then me.
The cook’s wife looked up at him and (keep) smiling.

The lion (has) a fine bushy collar of fur around his neck, and in his
jaws he was (hold) the wife of the cook.

145



The Rising of The Moon

(Lady Gregory)

answer the comprehension questions.
apply critical thinking to interact with text.
use summary skills.

complete cloze passage.

research qualitatively.

® 2 » o @

Pre-reading:

» Who do you think is the greatest playwright in English literature?
» Have you ever read any Shakespearean play?

Characters

* Sergeant

. Policeman X

* Policeman B

* ARagged Man

SCENE

Side of a quay in a seaport town. Some posts and chains. A large barrel.
Enter three policemen, moonlight.

Sergeant, who is older than the others, crosses the stage to R. and looks down
steps. The others put down a pastepot and unroll a bundle of placards.
PolicemanB. I think this would be a good place to put up a notice. (He points to

barrel.)
Policeman X.  Better ask him. (calls to Sergeant.) Will this be a good place for a
placard? (No answer.)
PolicemanB.  Will we put up anotice here on the barrel? (No answer.)
Sergeant. There's a flight of steps here that leads to the water. This is a place

that should be minded well. If he got down here, his friend might
have a boat to meet him: they might send it in there from outside.
PolicemanB.  Would the barrel be a good place to put a notice up?
Sergeant. It might; you can put it there.

146



Sergeant.

PolicemanB.

Sergeant.

Policeman X.

Sergeant.

PolicemanB.

Sergeant,

Sergeant.
Man.

(They paste the notice up)

(reading it). Dark hair—dark eyes, smooth face, height five feet
five— there's not much to take hold of in that—it's a pity  had no
chance of seeing him before he broke out of gaol. They say he's a
wonder, that it's he makes all the plans for the whole organization.
There isn't another man in Ireland would have broken gaol the
way he did. He must have some friends among the gaolers.

A hundred pounds is little enough for the Government to offer for
him. You may be sure any man in the force that takes him will get
promotion.

I'll mind this place myself. I wouldn't wonder at all if he came this
way. He might come slipping along there (points to side of quay),
and his friends might be waiting for him there (points down-
steps), and once he got away it's little chance we'd have of finding
him; it's may be under a load of kelp he'd be in a fishing boat, and
not one to help a married man that wants it to be rewarded.

And if we get him itself, nothing but abuse on our heads for it from
the people, and maybe from our own relations.

Well, we have to do our duty in the force. Haven't we the whole
country depending on us to keep law and order? It's those that are
down would be up and those that are up would be down, if it wasn't
for us. Well, hurry on, you have plenty of other places to placard
yet, and come back there then to me. You can take the lantern.
Don't be too long now. It's very lonesome here with nothing but
the moon.

It's a pity we can't stop with you. The Government should have
brought more police into the town, with him in gaol, and at assize
time too. Well, good luck to your watch.

(They go out).
(walks up and down once or twice and looks at placard). A

hundred pounds and promotion sure. There must be a great deal of
spending in a hundred pounds. It's a pity some honest man not to
be the better of that.

(A Ragged man appears at left and tries to slip past. Sergeant
suddenly turns.)

Where are you going?

I'm a poor ballad-singer, your honour. I thought to sell some of

147



Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

these (holds out bundle of ballads) to the sailors.
(Hegoeson.)
Stop! Didn'tI tell you to stop? You can't go on there.
Oh, very well. It's a hard thing to be poor. All the world's against
the poor!
Who are you?
You'd be as wise as myselfif] told you, but I don't mind. I am one
Jimmy Walsh, a ballad-singer.
Jimmy Walsh? I don't know that name.
Ah, sure, they know it well enough in Ennis. Were you ever in
Ennis, Sergeant?
Whatbrought you here?
Sure, it's to the assizes I came, thinking I might make a few
shillings here or there. It's in the one train with the judges I came.
Well, if you came so far, you may as well go farther, for you'll walk
out of this.
T'will, I will: I'll just go on where I was going.

(Goes towards steps.)
Come back from those steps: no one has leave to pass down them
to-night.
I'll just sit on the top of the steps till I see will some sailor buy a
ballad off me that would give me my supper. They do be late going
back to the ship. It's often I saw them in Cork carried down the
quay in a hand-cart.
Move on, I tell you. I won't have anyone lingering about the quay
tonight.
Well, I'll go. It's the poor have the hard life! May be yourself might
like one, Sergeant. Here's a good sheet now. (Turns one over)
Content and a Pipe... that's not much. The Peeler and the Goat...
you wouldn't like that. Johnny Hart... that's a lovely song.
Move on.
Ah, waittill you hearit. (Sings):
“There was arich farmer's daughter lived near the town of Ross;
She courted a Highland solder, his name was Johnny Hart;
Says the mother to her daughter, I'll go distracted mad
If you marry that Highland soldier dressed up in Highland plaid.”
Stop that noise.
(Man wraps up his ballads and shuffles towards the steps.)

148



Sergeant.

Man,

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Where are you going?

Sure, you told me to be going, and I am going.

Don't be a fool. I didn't tell you to go that way; I told you to go back
to the town.

Back to the town, is it?

(taking him by the shoulder and shoving him before him). Here, I'll
show you the way. Be off with you. What are you stopping for?
(who has been keeping his eye on the notice, points to it). 1 think I
know what you're waiting for, Sergeant.

What's that to you?
And I know well the man you're waiting for...  know him well...
I'll be going. (He shuffles on.)

You know him? Come back here. What sortis he?

Comeback is it, Sergeant? Do you want to have me killed?

Why do you say that?

Never mind. I'm going. I wouldn't be in your shoes if the reward
was ten times as much. (Goes on off stage to L.) not if it was ten
times as much.

(rushing after him). Come back there, come back. (Drags him
back.) What sort is he? Where did you see him?

I saw him in my own place, in the County Clare. I tell you, you
wouldn't like to be looking at him. You'd be afraid to be in the one
place with him. There isn't a muscle as hard as that board.
(slaps barrel).

Is he as bad as that?

Heisthen.

Do youtell me so?

There was a poor man in our place, a sergeant from
Ballyvaughan... . It was with a lump of stone he did it.

Inever heard of that.

And you wouldn't, Sergeant. It's not everything that happens gets
into the papers. And there was a policeman in plain clothes, too...
It is in Limerick he was. It was after the time of the attack on the
police barrack at Kilmallock... Moonlight... just like this...
waterside. .. Nothing was known for certain.

Do you say so? It's a terrible country to belong to.

That's so, indeed! You might be standing there, looking out that
way, thinking you saw him coming up this side of the quay

149



Sergeant,

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Sergeant.

(points), and he might be coming up this other side (points), and

he'd be on you before you knew where you were.

It's a whole troop of police they ought to put here to stop a man like

that.

But if you'd like me to stop with you, I could be looking down this

side. I could be sitting up here on this barrel.

And youknow him well, too?

I'd know him a mile off, Sergeant.

But you wouldn't want to share the reward?

Is it a poor man like me, that has to be going the roads and singing

in fairs, to have the name on him that he took a reward? But you

don't want me. I'll be safer in the town.

Well, you can stop.

(getting up on barrel). All right, Sergeant. I wonder, now you're

not tired out, Sergeant, walking up and down the way you are.

IfT'mtired I'm used to it.

You might have hard work before you to-night yet. Take it easy

while you can. There's plenty of room up here on the barrel, and

you see farther when you're higherup.

May be so. (Gets up beside him on barrel, facing right. They sit

back to back, looking different ways.) You made me feel a bit

queer with the way you talked.

Give me amatch, Sergeant (he gives it and Man lights pipe); take a

draw yourself? It'll quiet you. Wait now till I give you a light, but

you needn't turn round. Don't take your eye off the quay for the life

of you.

Never fear, I won't. (Lights pipe. They both smoke). Indeed it's a

hard thing to be in the force, out at night and no thanks for it, for all

the danger we're in. and it's little we get but abuse from the people,

and no choice but to obey our orders, and never asked when a man

is sent into danger, if you are a married man with a family.

(sings):

“As through the hills I walked to view the hills and shamrock
lain,

?stood awhile where nature smiles to view the rocks and streams.

On amatron fair I fixed my eyes beneath a fertile vale.

As she sang her song it was on the wrong of poor old Granuaile”.

Stop that; that's no song to be singing in these times.

150



Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Ah, Sergeant, I was only singing to keep my heart up. It sinks
when I think of him. To think of us two sitting here, and he
creeping up the quay, may be, to get to us.

Are youkeeping a good look-out?

I am; and for no reward too. Amn't I the foolish man? But when I
saw a man in trouble, I never could help trying to get him out of it.
What's that? Did something hit me?

(Rubs his heart.)

(patting him on the shoulder). You will get your reward in heaven,
I know that, I know that, Sergeant, but life is precious.

Well, you can sing if it gives you more courage.

(sings):

“Her head was bare, her hands and feet with iron bands were
bound,

Her pensive strain and plaintive wail mingles with the evening
gale,

And the song she sang with mournful air, I am old Granuaile.

Her lips so sweet that monarchs kissed. ..

That's not it. “Her gown she wore was stained with gore.”... that's
it... youmissed that.

You're right, Sergeant, so it is. I missed it. (Repeats lire.) But to
think of a man like you knowing a song like that.

There's many a thing a man might know and might not have any
wish for.

Now, I dare say, Sergeant, in your youth, you used to be sitting up
on a wall, the way you are sitting up on this barrel now, and the
other lads beside you, and you singing Granuaile?

Idid then.

And the Shan Bhean Bhocht?

Idid then.

And the Green on the cape?

That was one of them.

And maybe the man you are watching for to-night used to be
sitting on the wall, when he was young, and singing those same
songs ... It’saqueer world...

Whisht!...... I think I see something coming ...... It’s only a dog.
And isn’t it a queer world? ...... Maybe it’s one of the boys you
used to be singing with that time you will be arresting to-day or to-

151



Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

Man.

Sergeant.

morrow, and sending into the dock.
That’s true indeed.
And may be one night, after you had been singing, if the other
boys had told you some plan they had, some plan to free the
country, you might have joined with them ...... and maybe it is you
might be in trouble now.
Well, who knows but I might? I had a great spirit in those days.
It’s a queer world, Sergeant, and it’s little any mother knows when
she sees her child creeping on the floor what might happen to it
before it has gone through its life, or who will be who in the end.
That's a queer thought now, and a true thought. Wait now till I
think it out... Ifit wasn't for the sense I have, and for my wife and
family, and for me joining the force the time I did, it might be
myself now would be after breaking gaol and hiding in the dark,
and it might be him that's hiding in the dark and that got out of gaol
would be sitting up where I am on this barrel... And it might be
myself would be creeping up trying to make my escape from
himself, and it might be himself would be keeping the law, and
myself would be breaking it, and myself would be trying maybe to
put a bullet in his head, or to take up a lump of a stone the way you
saidhedid ... no, that myselfdid... Oh!

(Gasps. After a pause) What's that?

(Grasps Man's arm.)

(jumps off barrel and listens, looking out over water). It's nothing,
Sergeant.
I thought it might be a boat. Thad a notion there might be friends of
his coming about the quays with a boat.
Sergeant, I am thinking it was with the people you were, and not
with the law you were, when you were a young man,
Well, if T was foolish then, that time's gone.
May be, Sergeant, it comes into your head sometimes, in spite of
your belt and your tunic, that it might have been as well for you to
have followed Granuaile.
It's no business of yours what I think.
Maybe, Sergeant, you'll be on the side of the country yet.
(gets off barrel.) Don't talk to me like that. I have my duties and I
know them. (Looks round) That was aboat; I hear the oars.
(Goes to the steps and looks down.)

152



Sergeant.

Sergeant.

Sergeant.

Man.
Sergeant.
Man.
Sergeant.
Man.

Voice of
Policeman X
outside.
Sergeant.
Man.

Voice of

Policeman B.
Policeman X.

(sings):

“Q, then, tell me, Shawn Q'Farrell,
Where the gathering is to be.

In the old spot by the river.
Right well known to you and me
Stop that! Stop that, I tell you!
(sings louder):

“One word more, for signal token,

Whistle up the marching tune,

With your pike upon your shoulder,

AttheRising of the Moon.”

If you don't stop that, I'll arrest you.

(A whistle from below answers, repeating the air.)

That's a signal. (Stands between him and steps.) You must not pass
this way... Step farther back... Who are you? You are no ballad-
singer.

You needn't ask who I am, that placard will tell you.(Points to
placard).

You are the man I am looking for.

(takes off hat and wig. Sergeant seizes them). 1 am. There's a
hundred pounds on my head. There is a friend of mine below in a
boat. He knows a safe place to bring me to.

(looking still at hat and wig.) It's a pity! It's a pity. You deceived
me. You deceived me well.

I am a friend of Granuaile. There is a hundred pounds on my head.
It's a pity, it's a pity!

Will you let me pass, or must I make you let me?

I'am in the force. I will not let you pass.

I thought to do it with my tongue. (Puts hand in breast.) What is
that?

2
!

Here, this is where we left him.
It's my comrades coming.
You won't betray me... the friend of Granuaile. (Slips behind

barrel)

That was the last of the placards.
(as they come in). If he makes his escape, it won't be unknown he'll

153



Policeman B.

Sergeant.

Policeman B.

Sergeant.

Policeman B.

Sergeant.

Policeman B.

Sergeant.

Policeman B.

Sergeant.

Policeman B.

Sergeant.

PolicemanB.

Sergeant.
Sergeant.
Man.

Man.

Sergeant.

make it.

(Sergeant puts hat and wig behind his back).

Did anyone come this way?

(after a pause). No one.

Nooneatall?

Nooneatall.

We had no orders to go back to the station; we can stop along with
you.

I don't want you. There is nothing for you to do here.

Youbade us to come back here and keep watch with you.

I'd sooner be alone. Would any man come this way and you
making all thattalk? It is better the place to be quiet.

Well, we'll leave you the lantern anyhow. (Hands it to him.)

I don't want it. Bring it with you.

You might want it. There are clouds coming up and you have the
darkness of the night before you yet. I'll leave it over here on the
barrel. (Goes to barrel )

Bring it with you. I tell you. No more talk.

Well, I thought it might be a comfort to you. I often think when I
have it in my hand and can be flashing it about into every dark
corner (doing so) that it's the same as being beside the fire at
home, and the bits of logwood blazing up now and again.

(Flashes it about, now on the barrel, now on Sergeant.)
(Furious.) Be off, the two of you, yourselves and your lantern!
(They go out. Man comes from behind barrel. He and Sergeant
stand looking at one another.)

What are you waiting for?

For my hat, of course, and my wig. You wouldn't wish me to get
my death of cold? (Sergeant gives them. )

(going towards steps.) Well, good night, comrade, and thank you.
You did me a good turn to-night, and I'm obliged to you. Maybe
I'll be able to do as much for you when the small rise up and the big
fall down... when we all change places at the Rising (waves his
hand and disappears) of the moon.

(turning his back to audience and reading placard,) A hundred
pounds reward! A hundred pounds! (Turns towards audience.) 1

wonder, now, am I as great a fool as I think [am?
CURTAIN

154



Reading and Thinking Skills:

iii)

iv)

Answer the following questions.

What is the play “The Rising of the Moon™ about?

What sort of placards are the policemen pasting?

Which place does the Sergeant say to be minded well?

Who are the Sergeant and policemen looking for?

What is the complexion of the man who had fled from the jail?

What rewards will the man get from the Government, who arrests the fled
man?

Why does the people love the man who is struggling for their freedom?
Who is the ragged man?

Why does the ragged man try to go towards the steps?

Why is the ragged man singing songs?

Mark the sentences True or False.

There are four policemen in the play “The Rising of the Moon™.

The policemen are pasting placards.

The placards are about a man who has broken the jail.

The height of the wanted man is about six feet.

The Government offers a hundred pounds as a reward for the arrest of the
wanted man.

If any policeman arrests the wanted man, he will be cursed by the people.
The wanted man is in the disguise of a balled singer.

The sergeant is in the dilemma to arrest the wanted man or not.

The Sergeant arrests the wanted man.

The Sergeant orders the two policemen to go away.

Choose the correct answer.

Who is the ragged man in the play?

a)asoldier b)apoliceman c)afreedom fighter d)arobot
The two policemen are pasting:

a)banners b)placards ¢) panna flex d) newspapers
The placards are about:
a)awantedman  b)aminister c)ajudge d) asoldier

The ragged man says to the Sergeant, “I have come
a) inthe train withthe soldier.  b) by air with the judges.

c¢) with the judges by train. d) with the judges on foot.
The ragged man says to the Sergeant, “ I thought to sell some ofthese to the:
a)soldiers  b)sailors ¢)policemen d) sergeant

155



vi) Theragged man says to the Sergeant, “Iam:

a) John Hunter b) Jimmy Bull

¢) Jimmy Walsh d) James Walsh
vii) Theplay “The Rising of the Moon™ is about:

a) slavery b) freedom

c¢) democracy d) dictatorship

viii) Inhisyouth, the Sergeant also had a great passion for:
a) the freedom of his country. b) the progress of his country.

c¢) joining police force. d) becoming a doctor.
ix)  Theragged manis givenasignal by:

a) his brothers. b) his relatives.

c) his cousins. d) his friends.

X) The Sergeant at last recognizes the ragged man that he is:
a) the wanted man they are looking for.
b) the soldier they are waiting for.
c) the policeman they are wishing to see.
d) the fisherman they are trying to arrest.

Critical Thinking:

o Why did the Sergeant let the ragged man go away with his friends?
Writing Skills:

| Activity: |

turn, rise up, rising, obliged, comrade, moon, fall down

Well, good night, , and thank you. Youdidmeagood
to-night, and I'm to you. Maybe I'll be able to do as much for you
when the small And the big ... when we all
change places at the ofthe

e ctiaivh

Write down the summary of the play, “The Rising of the Moon” in your own
words by using summary skills.

156



addle
adversity:
aghast:
antique:
appal:
application
asphalt:
assize
avalanch:
awkward

banished:
banquet:
bantu
bark:
barrack
barren
betray
bison
bionic
bramble
breech

burst into tears

bivouac

cajol
carcasses
charge
choppers:
clamber
cloak
compost
concentrate
congealing

conglomeration

CN Tower
comrades
cant
cognitive
contrariness

daisy

. Clossany__ay

confused

affliction an unfortunate happening.

struck with amazement

ancient

greatly dismay and horrified

diligence

dark bituminous pitch

a court which formerly sat at intervals in each country of England
sudden abundance

clumsy

exiled

sumptuous, esp. formal, feast or dinner.
a member of a large group of indigenous african people.
any small sailing vessel.

a large building used to house soldiers
unable to produce fruit, unproductive.
be disloyal.

a large mammal of the ox family
having parts of body that are electronic
a blackberry bush or similar bush

back part of a rifle or gun barrel
suddenly begin to shed tears

temporary camp

persuade by flattery

the dead body of an animal

rush forward, esp. in attack

helicopters

climb with difficulty.

mantle

mixture of decayed organic matter.

give full attention to the given work.

thickening

collections

Concrete Communication and Obsecrvation Tower (Toronto, Canada)
a colleague or a fellow member of an organization
hypocrisy

perceptive

stubborn opposition

a small flower with many white petals.

157



death toll

debris

deliberate

demon

detest

detriment

disclaim

do not ... boundary

drift
designer compost
diction

enlightenment
epicenter
ethereal
exterminate
WEP

flicker
flung
fondly
forged
frantically
forlorn
fraught
fortnight

gaze
giggle

gilded

glee

glow-worm
graffiti

gregory powder
grimalkin

gaol

grocery
gruff

heartrending
hedges

height be taken
hemlock

the number of dead people.

scattered fragments esp. of wreckage.
intentional

an evil spirit or a devil.

have great hate for.

damage, loss, injury

renounce legal claim to

do not complete their education, fail to get the required
degree, etc.

2o aimlessly.

untidy

language

knowledge

point at which earthquake reaches the earth's surface.
belong to the sky and the air, unsubstantial.

destroy utterly (esp. a living thing)

World Food Programme

a wavering light, shine unsteadily
threw

lovingly

formed/false

madly/wildly

abandoned/sad

uneasy

14 day period

look fixedly

laugh in silly or nervous manner
covered with golden foil.

mirth , delight

a kind of beetle that gives out light.
writing or drawing scribbled on surface.
compound powder of rhubarb.

old she — cat.

jail

items of food sold in a grocer's store or super market.
hoarse, rough & rude

very painful
barrier of closely grooming bushes.
although its height may be measured.

a coniferous north america tree. in england the name is used

for poisonous plant.

158



herculean
highfalutin
hillock

is'pose

Icre

ignited
impediments
inflict
intimidated
intrepid
ironic twist

incumbent
kopeck

lair
laudanum
linnet

litter

loom

loping away
lor

lulled
lantern

maliciously
mamba
meadow
menacing
might
milky

motes
much-lauded

mug up (slang)
musket

myrtyl
murmured
matron
monarchs

native ability

extremely difficult and laborious; pertaining to hercules.
(slang), bombastic pompous writing.
small hills

1 suppose

international committee of the red cross.

caught fire

hindrance or obstruction.

cause something painful or unpleasant to be suffered.
frightened

fearless

it is one that is unusual or amusing because something
strange happens or opposite of what is expected happens.
€.g., in ironic twist the most trustworthy character in a film
turned out to be the thief.

compulsory

a very small unit of russian money, a small fraction of a ruble.

the den of a wild animal

solution prepared for opium.

a small bird

rubbish left in public place.

appear dimly esp. threatening shape.
running with a long bounding stride
lord

soothed

a lamp with a transparent case

hearing malice, intending harm.
venomous african snake

a field of grass

threatening, dangerous
strength, power

galaxy

specks

greatly praised

learn by concentrated study

a light gun with a long barked.

evergreen shrub with shing leaves and white scented flowers.
whispered

a woman in charge of domestic and medical arrangements at

a boarding school
emperors

natural ability

159



newman, john henry
(1801-90)

o'erhead
oft

ogre

On purpose
oscar wilde
outlay

palsies:
palsy:
perched
perverted
pesticide
poise... fidgets
portico
promptly
pull through
proclaim
placards
plaid

quadrille
quay

rebuked:

receptive

remnant

remote

rip

robert louis stevenson
ragged man

samuel butter
scaffold:
scramble
selfish
shillings
shambles
sherry
shove
shrivel
shudders
sickle
simba

a cardinal, the roman catholic church. master of a distinctive,
and flowing literary style.

Overhead

often

a man eating giant.

intentionally

one of the most elegant writers of the late 19 century.
expenditure, as of money

people effected with palsy.

paralysis.

bar, branch etc. used by a bird to rest on.

get turned to a wrong use.

substance that kills pests.

balance and self-discipline which keep back nervous excitement.
a roof supported by columns, used as a porch
given without delay.

recover

declare

a printed or handwritten notice for public display
a long piece of tartan worn over the shoulder

a formal dance with four or more couples; popular in the past.
a long platform beside the sea

scold

able or quick to receive ideas.
something left over

far away.

pull feasibly away, tear

novelist, essayist and poet. his style was easy and graceful.
a man with old and tom clothes

one of the greatest English prose satirists.
platform for the execution of criminals.
move quickly and awkwardly.

showing interest only in oneself.

a former British coin

butcher's slaughter's house.

a strong wine from southern spain.

put someone carelessly or roughly.
wrinkle as a result of loss of moisture.
tremble violently

an agriculture tool with a curved blade.
lion

160



sinister
slumber
snag
solitude
specs
spill
spunt
sprightly
spur
squat
stalling
starving
stench
stickle's compass come
stncco
strewn
strife
sublime
survival
swahili
swamp
suffice

take ... collar
tendous
thine

thriving
titamic
tramp
travail
trespassers
trifles

trip over
twist
twittering with delight
tempest
thesis

uncanny
undertaker
up and doing
unobtrusive

vale

warbler
wicked
wrapped

yarn

seeing evil dangerous, wicked
sleep (old english).
an unexpected difficulty.

loneliness
spectacles

flow over

gush out in a stream / move with a sudden burst of speed
lovely, brisk

shoots

short and thick crouch

obstruct

suffering or dying from hunger.
an offensive odour, a fowl smell
within the range of times sickle.
plaster, cement

sprinkled

make great effort.

of great beauty or excellence of the most extracted or noble kind

the state of surviving

a bantu language widely used in east africa
a marsh, a bog

be sufficient

deals firmly with himself.
bands of tissues attracting muscles to bones

wordsworth imagines that the skylark sings so that its chicks

in the nest on the ground can hear it.
prospet, flourish go rich.
vary large

a homeless person who travels around and lives by begging.

painful labour

intruders

trivial, things of slight importance.
stumble

curve, bend

singing with joy

storm

research report

weird, mysterious

a person whose job is to prepare dead bodies for burial.
to be active occupied

unnoticeable

valley

who sings in a gentle thrilling manner.
evil, bad
covered with

story, anecdote

161



For the Teacher

® Help students to understand the use of punctuation marks:

® Full stop, question mark, inverted commas, commas, colon, semi-colon, apostrophe,

exclamation mark and hyphen.
Punctuation Marks

The full stop (.)

Itisused at the end of a sentence that is not a question or an exclamation. It is also used

in abbreviations.
The Question Mark (?)
Itis used at the end of a direct question.
The Quotation Marks/Inverted Commas (%)
Quotation marks are used to enclose words and punctuation in direct speech.

Thecomma(,)

It is used to separate words in a list, though thy are often omitted before and:

The Colon (:)

Itis used to introduce a list of items.

The Semicolon (3)

It is used instead of a comma to separate parts of a sentence that already contain

comrna.
The Apostrophe
With's' to indicate that a thing or person belongs to somebody:
The Exclamation Mark (!)
It is used at the end of a sentence expressing surprise, joy, anger, shock or another

strong emotions”

The Hyphen (-)

It is used to form a compound from two or more other words.

® Help students to plan and draft their writing, revise and edit it for logical flow of
ideas. Students may be encouraged to proof- read each other's writing for the errors

mentioned in the check list.

162



Help students to analyze story elements and ask them to recognize Author's

purpose and point of view as well.

Help students in presenting story elements.

Help the students to recognize all kinds of nouns.

Help the students to identify and demonstrate the use of relative pronouns.

Help the students to identify the pronunciation of the words with the help of

pronunciation key given in the dictionary.

Recite the poem with proper stress and intonation and how reading poetry is

different from reading prose.

Encourage students to complete the given research project.

Explain the use of figurative language and literary techniques such as simile,
metaphor and imagery.

Motivate students to construct dialogues by using expressions to inquire.

Help students how to use a dictionary and also locate appropriate synonyms and

antonyms in a thesaurus.

163



L Encourage students to find the meanings and pronunciation of the given words

with the help of dictionary and pronunciation key.

L Motivate students to collect the data on the given research project and preset their
findings in the class.

* Simple sentences consist of one verb clause. A verb clause is an independent clause
that is formed by a subject and a predicate.
o Compound sentence is one made up of two or more main clauses. The clauses in

compound sentences can be joined by a comma and a coordinating conjunction

(and, yet, but, for) or by a semi-colon.

L Complex sentence consists of one independent clause and one or more
subordinate clauses.
L Arrange a group discussion on the given topic.

Skimming and Scanning
The main ways of reading are:

i) Skimming: Quickly running one's eyes over atextto get a general idea.
ii) Scanning a Text: Quickly going through the text to find out particular piece of

information.
® Identify the key points in a text.
® Readbetween the lines.

® Draw conclusions carefully.
Noun Phrases
Noun phrase consists of a noun and the modifier which distinguishes it.
Noun Clauses
A noun clause is a subordinate clause which functions as a noun in relation to the

main clause.

164



Colloquialism

These are phrases and words that are part of our everyday speech, but they are not
[part of our formal language.
Idiomatic Expressions:

Idiomatic are expressions peculiar to a language. These should not be taken

literally. Use the following expressions in your own sentences:

Active Voice
It is used when one needs to focus on the subject, the doer of the action, rather than

the object
Passive Voice
Itis used when one needs to focus on the receiver of the action rather than doer.

Oral: Students may also be asked to give direction for nearly places outside your college.

“Odd one out” a person
SONNET (CXVI) or thing differing from
Sonnet is a poem of fourteen lines that follows a strict all other members of
a particular group or

rhyme scheme and specific structure. .
e sel in some way.

CXVIstands for 116

Explain for the students how to write a friendly /

informal letter by giving them a layout of an informal letter.

Synonym

° A synonym is a word which has almost the same meaning as another. The purpose
of synonyms is to give flexibility and variety of a style. The great speakers and

writers are lavish in their use of synonyms,
Antonym

L Antonym is a word having the opposite meaning of another word.
Oral Communication
Encourage students to use the given expressions in dialogue.

165



NOTE: Whom is very rarely used in modern English.
Conditional sentences
These are the sentences in which a condition and result is pointed out. There are

three types of conditional sentences. (Type I, Type Il and Type III)

1. Adjective of Quality:
This kind of adjective shows the quality of a person or a thing.
2. Adjective of Quantity:
This kind of adjective shows the quantity of a thing.
3. Adjective of Number:
This kind of adjective shows how many persons or things are meant.

4, Demonstrative Adjective:
This kind of adjective is used to point out to a person or thing.
S. Possessive Adjective:

This adjective shows the possession of a thing.
6. Distributive Adjective:
This adjective refers to each one of a number.
Comparison of Adjectives
There are three degrees of adjective for comparison.
1. Positive Degree
The positive degree of adjective is simple form of adjective.
2. Comparative Degree
The comparative degree of adjective shows a higher degree of quality than the

positive.
3. Superlative Degree
The superlative degree of adjective shows the highest degree of quality.

Adjective Phrase

When a group of words without subject and predicate performs the function of an
adjective, itis called adjective phrase.
Adjective Clause

An adjective clause is a clause which does the work of an adjective.

1166



L Explain all rules of changing direct speech into indirect. i.e.
. Basicrules
° Rules of changing pronouns
° Rules of changing tenses.
° Rules of changing words like here' into 'there'.
° Rules of changing declarative, imperative, exclamatory and interrogative

sentences into indirect speech.

Modal Verbs
Modal verbs are auxiliary verbs which perform special functions. They are; can,

could, may, might, shall, should, will, would, must, ought to, used to, need and dare.

L Argumentative/Persuasive Essay
Keep in mind the following points when writing a composition of an argumentative

or persuasive nature.

e Distinguish fact from opinion.

° State an opinion on the topic

L Listideas and arguments that support opinion.

e Organize ideas and supporting arguments in a clear, structured and logical manner.
° Distinguish between language used for persuasion and propaganda.

L Use persuasive language to enhance ideas.

o Use special devices to support arguments e.g. appeal to logic through reasoning,

appeal to emotion or ethical belief,
L Participate and respond to opposing arguments by defending point of view with

factual evidence, quotation ,expert opinion, logical reasoning and commonly held
beliefs.

167



Unit-13
Adverb
Adverb is a word which tells more about a verb, an adjective or another adverb.
Adverbial Phrase
An adverbial phrase is a group of words without subject and predicate, which
performs the function of an adverb.
Adverb clause
An adverb clause is a dependent clause which works as an adverb.
Unit-14
Future continuous tense
We can use the future continuous to say that something will be going on at a certain

time in the future.
Future perfect
We can use the future perfect to say that something will have been completed by a

certain time in the future.

Future perfect continuous
It indicates an action a part of which will be completed at some point in future and

the rest will be continuous.

‘ o

Cloze Passages

A cloze passage is a passage
with blank spaces in it,
The blank spaces occur at
irregular intervals.

L Help students in recognizing elements of the play.
L Explain the play by highlighting the role of different characters in the play.

168



	1_Page_001
	1_Page_002
	1_Page_003
	1_Page_004
	1_Page_005
	1_Page_006
	1_Page_007
	1_Page_008
	1_Page_009
	1_Page_010
	1_Page_011
	1_Page_012
	1_Page_013
	1_Page_014
	1_Page_015
	1_Page_016
	1_Page_017
	1_Page_018
	1_Page_019
	1_Page_020
	1_Page_021
	1_Page_022
	1_Page_023
	1_Page_024
	1_Page_025
	1_Page_026
	1_Page_027
	1_Page_028
	1_Page_029
	1_Page_030
	1_Page_031
	1_Page_032
	1_Page_033
	1_Page_034
	1_Page_035
	1_Page_036
	1_Page_037
	1_Page_038
	1_Page_039
	1_Page_040
	1_Page_041
	1_Page_042
	1_Page_043
	1_Page_044
	1_Page_045
	1_Page_046
	1_Page_047
	1_Page_048
	1_Page_049
	1_Page_050
	1_Page_051
	1_Page_052
	1_Page_053
	1_Page_054
	1_Page_055
	1_Page_056
	1_Page_057
	1_Page_058
	1_Page_059
	1_Page_060
	1_Page_061
	1_Page_062
	1_Page_063
	1_Page_064
	1_Page_065
	1_Page_066
	1_Page_067
	1_Page_068
	1_Page_069
	1_Page_070
	1_Page_071
	1_Page_072
	1_Page_073
	1_Page_074
	1_Page_075
	1_Page_076
	1_Page_077
	1_Page_078
	1_Page_079
	1_Page_080
	1_Page_081
	1_Page_082
	1_Page_083
	1_Page_084
	1_Page_085
	1_Page_086
	1_Page_087
	1_Page_088
	1_Page_089
	1_Page_090
	1_Page_091
	1_Page_092
	1_Page_093
	1_Page_094
	1_Page_095
	1_Page_096
	1_Page_097
	1_Page_098
	1_Page_099
	1_Page_100
	1_Page_101
	1_Page_102
	1_Page_103
	1_Page_104
	1_Page_105
	1_Page_106
	1_Page_107
	1_Page_108
	1_Page_109
	1_Page_110
	1_Page_111
	1_Page_112
	1_Page_113
	1_Page_114
	1_Page_115
	1_Page_116
	1_Page_117
	1_Page_118
	1_Page_119
	1_Page_120
	1_Page_121
	1_Page_122
	1_Page_123
	1_Page_124
	1_Page_125
	1_Page_126
	1_Page_127
	1_Page_128
	1_Page_129
	1_Page_130
	1_Page_131
	1_Page_132
	1_Page_133
	1_Page_134
	1_Page_135
	1_Page_136
	1_Page_137
	1_Page_138
	1_Page_139
	1_Page_140
	1_Page_141
	1_Page_142
	1_Page_143
	1_Page_144
	1_Page_145
	1_Page_146
	1_Page_147
	1_Page_148
	1_Page_149
	1_Page_150
	1_Page_151
	1_Page_152
	1_Page_153
	1_Page_154
	1_Page_155
	1_Page_156
	1_Page_157
	1_Page_158
	1_Page_159
	1_Page_160
	1_Page_161
	1_Page_162
	1_Page_163
	1_Page_164
	1_Page_165
	1_Page_166
	1_Page_167
	1_Page_168

